
HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION 
 
Venue: Rotherham District 

General Hospital, 
Moorgate Road, 
Rotherham  
S60 2UD 

Date: Thursday, 13th June, 2013 

  Time: 9.30 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine whether the following items should be considered under the 

categories suggested in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended 
March 2006)  to the Local Government Act 1972  

  

 
2. To determine any item the Chairman is of the opinion should be considered 

later in the agenda as a matter of urgency  
  

 
3. Apologies for Absence  
  

 
4. Declarations of  Interest  
  

 
5. Questions from members of the public and the press  
  

 
6. Communications  
  

 
7. Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 12) 
  

 
8. Health and Wellbeing Board (Pages 13 - 25) 

 
- Minutes of meeting held on 8th May, 2013 

 
9. Representation on Working Groups/Panels  

 
1) Health, Welfare and Safety Panel 
 One Member plus a substitute 
 Meets quarterly on a Friday 
 (next meeting on 21st June) 
 
(2) Recycling Group 
 One Member 
 Meets quarterly on a Tuesday at 10.00 a.m. 
 (next meeting 18th June) 
 

 



 
 
10. Rotherham Foundation Trust - Update  

 
- Chair and Acting Chief Executive to report 

 
11. Nursing Care in Rotherham Foundation Trust  

 
- Chief Nurse 

 
12. Quality Accounts for Rotherham Foundation Trust (Pages 26 - 93) 

 
- Dr. Trish Bain to present 

 
13. Ward Visit  
  

 
14. Scrutiny Work Programme 2013/14 (Pages 94 - 104) 
  

 
15. Date and Time of Next Meeting  

 
- Thursday, 11th July, 2013 at 9.30 a.m. 

 



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13 65A 

 

 

HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION 
18th April, 2013 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Steele (in the Chair); Councillors Wyatt, Barron, Beaumont, 
Dalton, Goulty, Hoddinott, Kaye, Roche and Wootton and Vicky Farnsworth (Speak-
Up). 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beck, Middleton, Peter 
Scholey and Russell Wells.  
 
70. DECLARATIONS OF  INTEREST  

 
 There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

 
71. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
 There were no members of the public or press at the meeting. 

 
72. COMMUNICATIONS  

 
 Deborah Fellowes, Scrutiny Manager reported the following:- 

 
Children’s Cardiac Surgery Review 
On March 27th the High Court found that the consultation and decision-
making process which underpinned the Joint Committee of Primary Care 
Trusts (JCPCT) reconfiguration of Children's Heart Surgery Services in 
England and Wales was flawed and that its assessment of Quality of 
Services was unfair and unlawful.  The case was brought by Save Our 
Surgery Ltd. (Leeds) a body affiliated to the charity linked to the Heart 
Unit at Leeds Children’s Hospital (part of Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Trust).  
 
The National Commissioning Board (the new body replacing the JCPCT) 
had been asked to reconsider the elements identified by the Judge, 
including how they arrived at the quality scores, issues of travel and 
access, co-location of vital services, strength of cardiac care network and 
financial viability.  The Judge had asked that they then report back on 
their findings and decide upon which Centres were to be designated on 
those new grounds.   
 
On the same day as the judgement was made, services at Leeds were 
suspended because of concerns about mortality rates and patient 
outcomes. There has been considerable press and media attention in this 
issue. However, after rigorous examination of evidence surgery was 
reinstated last week, concluding that there was "no evidence of significant 
safety concerns in terms of governance, staffing or the management of 
the patient pathway for surgical care in the unit or referral to other units as 
required" and added that "A number of very positive aspects of practice 
are present in the service provided… the teamwork is strong, inter-

Agenda Item 7Page 1



66A  HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13  

 

 

professional working is effective, surgical staffing levels are comparable to 
other units."  
 
The Joint HOSC met in Leeds on April 10th. Cllr Ali has been the scrutiny 
representative on this body since the process started in 2011.  
 
The meeting was originally convened to discuss the Secretary of State's 
referral of the proposed closure of the surgical unit to the Independent 
Reconfiguration Panel and their response.  However, following recent 
developments regarding the provision of Children’s Cardiac Surgery and 
interventional cardiology at Leeds Children’s Hospital, the focus of the 
JHOSC meeting had changed from what was originally planned. 
 
The JHOSC considered the outcome and implications of the High Court 
ruling that found in favour of Save Our Surgery Ltd.  It also considered 
issues associated with the implementation phase of the review, with 
representatives from NHS England in attendance. The meeting also 
focussed on issues/ concerns about the service provision at LTHT, which 
resulted in the suspension of services.   
 
Following the meeting, the JHOSC concluded "Our prime concern 
throughout has been the welfare of the children concerned and limiting 
the anxiety of their parents and families.  We hope that the restoration of 
services and the outcome of the joint review being made available 
through NHS England and Leeds Teaching Hospitals Trust will bring 
families peace of mind and the certainty that their children are in safe 
hands.  We must now focus our attention on the ongoing issue of 
retaining these key services In Leeds for children and families across the 
whole of Yorkshire and the Humber" 
 
Although the IRP was expected to report its findings by April 30th, in light 
of the Judge finding in favour of Save Our Surgery Ltd. and the 
requirement placed upon the National Commissioning Board to consider 
the judgement, it was unlikely that the IRP would report its finding to the 
Secretary of State within the timescale. 
 
Further information was being sought on when the IRP was expected to 
report. This would be fedback in due course.  In the meantime, a press 
release had been issued outlining Rotherham's participation in the Joint 
HOSC and expressing continued support to retain services in Leeds. 
 
Review of Services for Adults with Congenital Heart Disease 
The Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee had taken the view that 
there was a strong link between the 2 Services and that the work that had 
been carried out on the Children’s Cardiac Services needed to be linked 
into the work on the Adult Services.  The Committee were requesting that 
individual authorities consider whether they thought it was the right 
approach with the 2 reviews being integrated which would necessitate a 
new set of Terms of Reference.   
 

Page 2



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13 67A 

 

 

It seemed appropriate that the Health Select Commission nominate a 
representative for Rotherham. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee be 
informed of this Council’s endorsement of the proposed linkage of the 2 
reviews. 
 
(2)  That Councillor Steele represent the Health Select Commission. 
 
Conference 
It was noted that Councillor Dalton was to attend a Teenage Pregnancy 
conference to be held in London on 23rd April, 2014, on behalf of the 
Cabinet Member of Health and Wellbeing. 
 

73. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting of the 
Health Select Commission held on 7th March, 2013. 
 
Resolved:-  That the minutes of the previous meeting be agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

74. HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board held on 27th February and a verbal update on the 
meeting held on 10th April, 2013. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing highlighted:- 
 

− Progress of the workstreams 

− Community Alcohol Partnerships 

− Police and Crime Commissioner 

− NEETS 

− Refresh of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

− Health and Wellbeing Conference 
 
The following issues were raised by members of the Health Select 
Commission:- 
 

− Smoking was 1 of the 6 Priority Themes and had set quite ambitious 
targets to reduce the number of people smoking in Rotherham.  The 
South Yorkshire Pensions Authority invested money in British 
American Tobacco which meant that Council employees’ contributions 
were being invested in tobacco ironically when the Authority had  
taken over responsibility for Public Health.  Was this an issue for the 
Health and Wellbeing Board and may be start a conversation with 
neighbouring authorities? 
Councillor Goulty, representative on the South Yorkshire Pension 
Authority, stated that this had been discussed in great detail at the last 

Page 3



68A  HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13  

 

 

Pensions meeting due to the new Legislation.  For years the SYPA 
had had a successful investment and ethical policy but it was charged 
with the duty of getting the best for its membership.  A number of 
councillors and councils had taken it on board in light of the new 
Legislation so it may be, even though there was a duty to get the best 
returns, they may be now be able to argue the ethical argument which 
outweighed the financial 

 

− The target for the number of quitters would be hard to achieve.  The 
biggest issue was that of youth smoking and the prevalence of “bad” 
cigarettes in Rotherham.  A lot of work was taking place particularly 
with the Tobacco Alliance 
 

− Overarching Information Sharing Protocol – its importance was 
stressed particularly with regard to issues of child sexual exploitation 
and domestic violence 
 

− The national charity, Schools Food Trust, worked in schools and 
colleges on healthy eating.  It was suggested that the Health and 
Wellbeing Board should look at forming links with the Trust and the 
Obesity Scrutiny Review Group  

 

− 3,000 children in Rotherham who were entitled to free school meals 
did not take them up.  With the impact of the Welfare Reform it was 
important to continually highlight their availability.  It was suggested 
that the Governors Section request that schools remind parents on a 
termly basis how to apply for a free school meal 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the minutes and verbal update be noted. 
 
(2)  That the Overarching Information Sharing Protocol be submitted to 
this Select Commission for information. 
 

75. ROTHERHAM HEART TOWN - ANNUAL REPORT  
 

 Councillor Wyatt, Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing, presented 
the annual report of the Rotherham Heart Town project outlining the 
activity undertaken by the Heart Town Partnership and its constituent 
partners during 2012. 
 
During the first year of the Partnership, activities had included:- 
 
 

− Establishing a steering group 

− Establishing a fundraising branch 

− Holding a large stakeholder event 

− Attending events to promote the partnership, raise awareness and 
raise funds 

− Establishing the Circle of Hope One Day event 

Page 4



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13 69A 

 

 

− Running school and health professional education workshops 

− Delivering Olympic Legacy events at two schools 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

− Rotherham was looked on as a leading Heart Town by the British 
Heart Foundation 
 

− 14 new defibrillators were now in place throughout Rotherham 
 

− As a result of the publicity arising from the Fabrice Muamba incident 
last year, the British Heart Foundation had had to stop funding due to 
the increase in requests.  However, as Rotherham was a Heart Town 
and worked with the Ambulance Services, the Authority had continued 
to receive funding 
 

− Staff at the Civic Centre had raised 50% of the funding required to 
provide a defibrillator 
 

− Ability to measure the impact the defibrillators had had in the future 
 

− 999 should be the first port of call in an emergency.  The Ambulance 
Service would know where the nearest defibrillator was to the address 
in question.  Some of the machines would be publically accessible 
and others on private property. 
 

− There was no target numberwise for defibrillators but more with 
regard to location 
 

− Continued funding from the British Heart Foundation due to the ability 
to demonstrate the rationale for their location as well as the match 
funding that had been provided. 

 
Resolved:- That the report be received and its contents noted. 
 

76. HOSPITAL DISCHARGE ARRANGEMENTS  
 

 Maxine Dennis, Interim Director of Patient and Service Utilisation, 
Rotherham Foundation Trust, reported that, due to the pressure and 
demand on hospital beds and the need to be able to accommodate the 
admission of acutely ill patients, it was important that the hospital could 
expedite discharge where the patient no longer needed to be in hospital.  
Whilst it was important to discharge patients in a timely way it was equally 
important that the discharge was safe and that patients who had complex 
discharge needs had their needs carefully planned for and executed.  As 
a result, the Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust had a comprehensive and 
detailed Discharge Policy which had been systematically reviewed. 
 
 

Page 5



70A  HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13  

 

 

There would always be some patients who experienced a delay to their 
discharge.  The Delayed Discharge Act clearly defined the criteria for 
reportable delayed discharges and the Trust, working closely with the 
Council, had a low rate of reportable delayed discharges. 
 
The Discharge Policy pulled together all potential complex issues in order 
to ensure that any discharge or transfer of care was safe and effective 
whilst keeping the patient/family needs at the centre of the decision 
making process. 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

− Rotherham Hospital dealt with approximately 70,000 inpatients a year 
– admitted for planned procedures or emergencies.  This figure did 
not include any patients that were admitted via outpatients, day 
surgery, medical day assessment or Accident and Emergency.  An 
additional 75,000 attended A&E 
 

− An increase seen in the number of patients attending hospital.  Last 
year 7.6% increase in emergency admissions and this year already a 
further 5% increase additional to the 7.6% 
 

− The increase in admissions was significant for the frail elderly persons 
category. They required a complex discharge plan not just involving 
the Hospital but across all social care providers 
 

− Rotherham worked in partnership with Primary Care and Social Care 
colleagues and, as a result, performed very well and had low 
percentage of reportable delay discharges.  However, there were still 
a number of patients whose discharge plans were very complex and 
took time to discharge 
 

− It was important that once a patient was fit enough for discharge it 
was expedited in a timely manner 
 

− “Out of hours” was defined as discharge no later than 10 p.m. but 
depended upon patient choice.  Vulnerable patients would not be 
discharged in an evening 
 

− Approximately ¼ of discharges were out of hours (which included 
weekends) 
 

− Reports were received on failed discharge where a patient or other 
provider felt that the Hospital had failed.  Another measure was how 
many patients were readmitted within 24 hours, 7 days and 28 days.  
Currently that ran at 10% which did not mean that the Hospital had 
failed in that 10% but needed to understand the reasons why the 
patient had returned to hospital.  There was no external scrutiny of 
this 
 

Page 6



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13 71A 

 

 

− A patient may return to hospital due to the Hospital’s failure but it may 
also be due to the failure of other parts of the care plan 
 

− Once a patient had been deemed medically fit for discharge currently 
it was a medical consultant in charge of that person’s care who would 
authorise discharge.  Work was currently taking place on where a 
patient had a plan of care and it had been completed and deemed 
medically fit for discharge, a Nurse or Doctor qualified to make that 
decision could authorise discharge 
 

− Some of the reasons for delayed discharge was due to family choice 
 

− Re-admission rates were monitored by CQC – details could be 
supplied 

 
The Chairman suggested that at the next meeting, to be held at the 
Hospital, a spotlight review take place on this issue with appropriate 
representation invited. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the report be noted. 
 
(2)  That Select Commission Members e-mail the Scrutiny Manager with 
issues they would like to discuss further at the spotlight review to be held 
on 13th June. 
 

77. URGENT CARE REVIEW - NHS ROTHERHAM  
 

 Dr. Ian Turner, GP, Lead for Primary Care Quality and Efficiency, Clinical 
Commissioning Group, gave the following powerpoint presentation:- 
 
Proposals 

− Right care, first time 
Everything for urgent care in one place 

− Quality of care 
Bringing together Primary Care skills with the skills and facilities of 
Accident and Emergency 

− Sustainable for the future 
Re-investing in urgent care would make the whole NHS in Rotherham 
work better 

 
By urgent care we mean 

− Treatment/advice for minor injuries or illnesses which cannot wait 
Broken bones 
Burns/scalds 
Infections 
Sprains 
Wounds 

 
 
 

Page 7



72A  HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13  

 

 

Why re-invest in urgent care? 

− To improve the quality of care 
Bringing together the skills of primary care and Accident and 
Emergency in one place 

− Because the current system was confusing 
Patients with urgent care needs often do not know where to go or may 
access several services before they got the care they needed 

− To ensure the NHS in Rotherham was sustainable for the future 
More and more patients would need urgent care 

 
 
A new Urgent Care Centre for Rotherham 

− Open 24/7 

− Purpose-built at Rotherham Foundation Trust Hospital 

− Staffed by experienced and specially trained nurses and GPs 

− Joined up with Accident and Emergency 

− Reinvesting money from the Walk-in Centre into urgent care 

− Urgent care services currently provided at the Walk-in Centre would 
transfer to the Urgent Care Centre 

− The Walk-in Centre would close (but not the building) 

− New NHS111 service would provide advice and support for non-
urgent care 

 
How the proposals were developed 

− Based on best clinical practice 

− A review by local GPs 

− An assessment of local needs and all of the alternatives 

− Discussions with the clinical teams from the Walk-in Centre and A&E 

− Discussions with local Councillors, MPs and other stakeholders 

− The views of patients and local people 
 
Where we are today 

− Hope that the Council would support the proposals and help to 
improve urgent care for local people 

− Recognise that for some the proposals would raise issues.  Feedback 
had already been received on some of the main concerns – would 
continue to listen and work to address over the coming months 

 
 
What people were asking about the plans 

− Did closing the Walk-in Centre affect other services at the same 
location? 
No.  All of the other NHS and Community Services would remain on 
site including Family Planning/Sexual Health Services, GP Surgery 
and clinics 

− Would public transport be an issue 
There were already comprehensive public transport services to the 
hospital and consideration would be given as to how they might be 
improved with the transport providers and the Trust 

Page 8



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13 73A 

 

 

− Would car parking be an issue 
Discussions with the Trust.  There were already plans for the 
development of car parking facilities at the hospital 

 
Next Stage – Public Consultation 

− Full 12 weeks consultation – 6th May-26th July 

− Combination of online, traditional, social and media channels 

− Working through local networks of voluntary, community and patient 
groups 

− 4 public meetings 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

− The Centre would be open 24/7 – longer hours than the Walk-in 
Centre 
 

− It would provide the same services for patients that required urgent 
care 
 

− Wanted to encourage people to attend the correct place for their 
needs.  It was known that sometimes the Walk-in Centre was used as 
a General Practice which was not the optimum place for a patient; it 
may be more convenient but they may not receive the quality of care 
required.  The GP surgery would remain on the site 

 

− Due to prudent financial planning, the CCG had some non-recurrent 
funds for the build of the new Centre.   Estimated costs were in the 
region of £1.5M but the full design process would take place once the 
consultation process has ended 
 

− Discussions were currently underway with the Foundation Trust and 
Care UK who were the 2 providers of Urgent Care in Rotherham as to 
the running of the Centre.   

 

− There were no financial incentives not to refer people to A&E  
 

− The CCG had engaged with the Local Medical Council as part of the 
consultation process with regard to urgent care.  There was an 
agreement that most GPs should have some facility to see a patient 
within the same working day if they had urgent medical needs but it 
was acknowledged that there was an issue with regard to GP 
accessibility 
 

− There were advantages of having an Urgent Care Centre located at 
the hospital e.g. when someone had acute chest pains they could be 
transferred next door to the hospital but a child with a temperature 
would be better served at the Centre 
 
 

Page 9



74A  HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13  

 

 

− Concern that from some parts of the Borough getting to the hospital 
site involved 2 buses or parking issues for those travelling by car.  
The current Walk-in Centre was accessed by a free car park as well 
as being next to the bus station in a central location.  Research had 
shown that the overall maximum travelling time for a patient in 
Rotherham would remain unchanged and there would be more 
advantages than disadvantages 
 

− The issue of parking had been raised and, as part of the consultation 
on design, it would be ensured that there was an appropriate amount 
of accessible parking 
 

− The new 111 service was completely separate for this proposal.  The 
money currently spent in Rotherham for Rotherham patients would 
remain in Rotherham for Rotherham patients and would not transfer to 
111 
 

− Use Parish Councils as part of the consultation process 
 

− The detail had yet to be finalised but probably some of the outpatient 
services accessed at the hospital would be re-located to the current 
Walk-in Centre.  This would also free up parking spaces at the 
hospital  
 

− The area around the hospital was already gridlocked at certain times 
of the day – the proposal would exacerbate the situation 
 

− Other areas of the country had closed Walk-In Centres without any 
consultation, however, that was not felt to be appropriate in 
Rotherham and wanted to ensure that patients were still able to 
access appropriate services.  It was a Primary-care lead patient care 
service which had been rolled out in many places across the country 
and viewed very positively.  A lot of work had been carried out with 
A&E and GPs working alongside  as their skill sets complimented 
each other 
 

− It was envisaged that there would be a skilled nurse triage system.  
This system was currently operated at the Walk-in Centre and worked 
very well 
 

− The consultation ran from 6th May-26th June.  Hopefully there would 
then be a position that would enable the CCG to ensure that it was up 
and running by the end of 2014 if not the middle of 2015 

 
The Chair thanked Dr. Turner for his presentation.  However, he felt that 
the Select Commission was not in a position to respond to the 
consultation as there was further information required:- 
 
 

Page 10



HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13 75A 

 

 

• Statistics for patients journeys  

• Proposed opening times 

• Predicted costs 
 

Resolved:-  That a sub-group, Chaired by Councillor Dalton,  be 
established to further discuss the proposal with particular reference to the 
above points. 
 

78. RESIDENTIAL HOMES SCRUTINY REVIEW  
 

 Deborah Fellowes, Scrutiny Manager, submitted the findings and 
recommendations of the Scrutiny Review of the 2 residential homes in 
Rotherham operated by the Council.  The review had also included visits 
to 2 independent homes for benchmarking purposes 
 
The overall aim of the review was to achieve an understanding of value 
for money, outcomes and quality of Service provision and, in particular, 
the potential impact of budgets cuts on this.  As well as making 
recommendations to be considered alongside the process of setting and 
reviewing the 2013/14 budget, it aimed to support the achievement of the 
Council priorities i.e. ensuring care and protection were available for those 
people who needed it most and helping to create safe and healthy 
communities. 
 
The review had been split into 2 distinct pieces of work:- 
 

− To understand the workings of the residential homes set in the context 
of Adult Social Care delivery, funding and regulations.   

− To receive a summary of the work completed by PWC and the main 
recommendations regarding the future of the Homes 

 
The Key messages from the Review were as follows:- 
 

• The 2 Council Homes would always struggle to remain competitive in 
terms of costs with the independent sector because of the terms and 
conditions of the staff employed by the Council 
 

• The majority of the costs of the Homes were related to staffing  
 

• For a number of reasons including vacancy rates and annual leave, 
staff would regularly find themselves working longer hours than 
contracted for and also created significant staff shortages 
 

• The high quality of care provided in the Homes was largely 
attributable to the staff who were proud to work for the Council and 
extremely committed to driving up quality standards for the residents 

 

• The 2 Home Managers demonstrated an inclusive management style 
and strong leadership 

Page 11



76A  HEALTH SELECT COMMISSION - 18/04/13  

 

 

 

• The entertainment and activities programme provided for residents 
were of a high quality 

 

• Costs associated with the maintenance contract and how staff would 
prefer to be involved in the process 

 
The Chairman thanked Deborah on behalf of the Review Group for her 
work on the Review and the staff of the 2 Homes for their openness and 
honesty. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the findings and recommendations set out in the 
report be endorsed. 
 
(2)  That the report be forwarded to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board and Cabinet. 
 
(3)  That the Cabinet response to the Scrutiny Review recommendations 
be fed back to this Select Commission. 
 

79. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That a further meeting be held on Thursday, 13th June, 2013, 
commencing at 9.30 a.m. to be held at Rotherham District General 
Hospital. 
 

 

Page 12



69S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 

 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
Wednesday, 8th May, 2013 

 
Present:- 
Members 
Councillor Ken Wyatt Cabinet Member, Health and Wellbeing 
    (in the Chair) 
Tom Cray   Strategic Director, Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 
Councillor John Doyle Cabinet Member, Adult Social Care 
Chris Edwards  Chief Operating Officer, Rotherham Clinical 
    Commissioning Group 
Brian Hughes  Director of Performance and Accountability, 
    National Commissioning Board 
Councillor Paul Lakin Cabinet Member, Children, Young People and Families 
Shona McFarlane  Director of Health and Wellbeing 
Michael Morgan  Rotherham Foundation Trust 
Dr. John Radford  Director of Public Health 
Dr. David Tooth  Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group 
Janet Wheatley  Voluntary Action Rotherha m 
 
Also Present:- 
Stuart Booth   Director of Financial Services 
Alison Iliff   Public Health Specialist 
Ian Jerrams   RDaSH 
Clair Pyper   Interim Director, Safeguarding Children and Families 
Dr. Richard Turner  Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group 
Chrissy Wright  Commissioning Manager, RMBC 
 
Observers:- 
Penny Fairman, local pharmaceutical company 
Richard Hackett, Rotherham Local Pharmaceutical Committee 
Dr. Kamal, CCG representative for Yorkshire and Humber 
Natalie Yarrow 
Sharon Hellewell, Supporter 
 
Officers:- 
Kate Green   Policy Officer, RMBC 
Gordon Laidlaw  Communications, NHS Rotherham 
Dawn Mitchell  Democratic Services, RMBC 
 
 
S85. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
 Resolved:-  That the minutes be approved as a true record. 

 
Arising from Minute No. S76 (Healthwatch), it was noted that the 
interviews for the position of Chair were to be held the following week. 
 
Arising from Minute No. S80 (Joint Strategic Needs Assessment), 
Councillor Lakin questioned whether the refresh should look at Planning 

Agenda Item 8Page 13



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 70S 

 

 

and Licensing policies and procedures for fastfood outlets and the sale of 
alcohol.   
 
John Radford reported that discussions were underway on this issue with 
a report to be submitted to a future meeting. 
 
Arising from Minute No. S81 (Making Every Contact Count), it was 
reported that the steering group had met to work through the practicalities 
of what would be appropriate intervention/sign posting/advice given the 
different professionals that were involved.  An action plan was being 
drawn up, which would be submitted to a future meeting, containing the 
outcomes and outputs that contributed to the health and wellbeing of the 
Borough. 
 

S86. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

 (1)  Disabled Children’s Charter 
A request had been received from The Children’s Trust Tadworth that the 
Board sign the Disabled Children’s Charter. 
 
Claire Pyper, Interim Director, Safeguarding Children and Families, 
reported that the Authority already had a Charter for Disabled Children 
which had been agreed with the Parents and Carers Forum.   
 
The Disabled Children’s Charter was being developed nationally for 
Health and Wellbeing Boards to ensure that they had integrated services 
for disabled children within their Priorities.  It recognised the additional 
support that parents and carers of disabled children/young people needed 
together with the universal services they were entitled to as well and the 
link into transitional services into Adult Services.  It stressed the 
importance of good governance but also placed real emphasis on making 
sure Boards focussed on the Charter and within the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment so there was an awareness of the needs in the area. 
 
It was proposed that work would take place on ensuring that Rotherham’s 
current Charter linked with the national Charter. 
 
It was noted that the Charter had not been considered by the Children, 
Young People and Families Partnership as yet. 
 
Resolved:-  (a)  That the Disabled Children’s Charter be submitted to the 
next meeting of the Children, Young People and Families Partnership. 
 
(b) That, subject to the agreement of the Children, Young People and 
Families Partnership, the Board be minded to sign the Disabled Children’s 
Charter. 
 
(2)  Teenage Pregnancy Conference 
Board members were provided with a report on the above conference 
attended by Councillor Dalton. 

Page 14



71S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 

 

 

 
The report was also to be forwarded to the Health and Improving Lives 
Select Commissions for information. 
 

S87. NHS ENGLAND  
 

 Brian Hughes, National Commissioning Board, presented a report on 
NHS England (formerly the NHS Commissioning Board) which had 
become operative as from 1st April, 2013, illustrating:- 
 
Purpose 

− Create the culture and conditions for health and care services and 
staff to deliver the highest standard of care 

− Ensure that valuable public resources were used effectively to get the 
best outcomes for individuals, communities and society for now and 
for future generations 

 
Objectives 

− Priority – improving patient satisfaction 

− Priority – improving staff satisfaction 

− Preventing people from dying prematurely 

− Enhancing quality of life for people with long term conditions 

− Helping people recover from episodes of ill health or following injury 

− Ensuring people had a positive experience of care 

− Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting 
them from avoidable harm 

− Promoting equality and reducing inequalities in health outcomes 

− Enabling more people to know their NHS Constitution rights and 
pledges 

− Becoming an excellent organisation 

− Ensuring quality financial management 
 
Functions 

− Oversight, facilitation, co-ordination and leadership 

− Direct commissioning 

− Supporting the commissioning system 

− Emergency planning, resilience and response 
 
Organisation 

− 1 national public body working to 1 operating model 

− 1 national support centre, 4 regions and 37 Area Teams – South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw covered Rotherham 

− Specialised commissioning was carried out by 10 of the 27 teams 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 72S 

 

 

Discussion ensued with the following issues raised:- 
 

• Was there sufficient dental provision within Rotherham compared to 
other areas? 

• Was the number of GP practices in Rotherham comparable with other 
areas? 

 
Brian undertook to look into the 2 matters and report back to the 
Chairman. 
 
Resolved:-  That the report be noted. 
 

S88. COMMISSIONING PLANS  
 

 Council’s Budget 2013/14 
In accordance with Minute No. S74, Stuart Booth, Director of Financial 
Services, gave the following powerpoint presentation:- 
 
Meeting the Financial Challenge – An overview of the Council’s 
Budget 2013/14 and beyond 

− The scale of financial challenges/risks facing local government was 
set to continue for at least until 2017 (possibly a decade) 

− Increasing financial risk transferred to local councils through the Local 
Government Finance and Welform Changes and restrictions on 
finances 

− Sustainable medium/long term financial planning was now even more 
critical 

− The lack of financial certainty e.g. the next Spending Review was only 
to be announced in late June, 2013, and the likelihood of further 
finance reform/restrictions made financial planning extremely difficult 

 
What this meant for Rotherham 

− Never faced such financial challenges before… 
– 2010/11 £5m (emergency budget) 
– 2011/12 £30m 
– 2012/13 £20m 
– 2013/14 £20m  
– 2014/15 £20m+? 
– 2015/16  £??m 

− Localisation could have significant, adverse impact on future Council 
resources 

 
Approach Taken 

− Established a clear set of budget principles 

− Started early in redesigning services and budget…..reduced head 
count in last 2 years by over 1,000 and had pushed back the financial 
‘cliff edge’ into later years (2015/16?) 

− Strategic re-positioning and re-integration of its partnerships e.g. 
RBT and 2010 Rotherham allowing further savings to be made 

Page 16



73S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 

 

 

− Focus on reducing the ‘back office’ to a minimum level – over 15% 
reduction in last 2 years 

− Concentrated on reducing management posts which had reduced by 
26% at Director level and 43% from next tier - overall management 
reduction of 19%; while front line reduction has only been 8%. 

 
Rotherham’s 2013/14 Budget Challenge 

− Initial Funding Gap in MTFS  £14.1m 

− Additional challenges (October): 
o Specific grants rolled into Formula Grant at reduced levels (net) 
                       +£2.9m 

o Freezing Council Tax           +£2.2m 
o CTRS 8.5% max pass through to working age claimants 
      +£1.0m 

− Revised Funding Gap           £20.2m  
 
Meeting the Challenge 

− By working together with a clear set of budget principles, we have 
managed to meet the budget challenge while protecting front line 
services and those most in need in the Borough, and minimising job 
losses ..........  

− Over 70% (c£14M) of savings proposals  did not affect front line 
service delivery  - key examples being: 

• Reviewing inflationary assumptions (£4M) and MTFS 
assumptions (£0.9m) 

• Further back office streamlining (£2.2M) 

• Rationalising customer access (£0.5M) 

• Realising benefits from improved cash flow management (£2.4M) 

• Maximising opportunities through joint working on Public 
Health/NHS (£0.8M) 

• Working with partner organisations to improve efficiency (£1M)  

• Maximise income from other sources (£0.8M)  

− The remaining savings would come from: 

• Front Line Services: 

• Children and Young Peoples     £1.776M 

• Neighbourhoods and Adult Social Care    £2.974M 

• EDS (excl Customer contact)        £1.000M  

• Staff savings to be agreed with TUs    £0.300M 

• Critical Friend Reviews of Front line services £0.341M 

− Further job losses expected to be contained at 50 to 60 FTEs  

− Accepted  the Council Tax Freeze Scheme – to protect low income 
families who were vulnerable in the Borough 

− Designed Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) to protect 
vulnerable groups by retaining income disregards, allowances and 
premiums and by taking up the Government’s Transitional Grant 
Support Scheme.  

− Used reform of Council Tax discounts and exemptions to minimise 
cost of CTRS to working age claimants – likely cost £1.56 per week in 
a Band A property   

Page 17



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 74S 

 

 

− Maintaining Financial Resilience through: 
• Sustainable budgeting 
• Effective, medium term management of reserves to meet future 

significant risks – circa £7M General Reserve 
 
RMBC Revenue Expenditure 2013/14 

   Summary 

 
Directorate 

Gross 
Expenditure 

Gross 
Income 

Net  
Expenditure 

CYPS 276,238,494 -230,824,494   45,414,000 

EDS   80,133,120   -29,462,201   50,670,920 

NAS 125,248,989   -50,291,989   74,957,000 

Resources 156,392,212 -129,777,697   26,614,516 

Central   35,417,273   -11,599,708   23,817,565 

 673,430,087 -451,956,689 221,474,000 

 
RMBC Directorate’s Net Revenue Budget 2013/14 
£221.474m 

− Children and Young Peoples Services £45.4M 

− Environment and Development Services £34.8M 

− Neighbourhoods and Adult Services £75M 

− Resources £24M 

− Levies etc. £19.2M 

− Other Services £23.1M 
 
RMBC Income 2013/14 

− Dedicated Schools Grant 27.7% 

− Formula Grant 20.85% 

− Council Tax Reduction Scheme Transitional Grant 0.07% 

− Fees, Charges and other Grants 39.84% (includes Public Health grant 
£13.78M) 

− Collection Fund Surplus 0.21% 

− Council Tax 11.62% 

− Council Tax Freeze Grant 0.14% 
 
Future Years – Financial Challenge 

− Significant reductions in resources were anticipated for 2014/15 
nationally - a reduction of 8.6% was planned - in Rotherham 9.1% 

− Next Spending Review to be announced …by end June 2013 

− Chancellors view……..austerity programme needed to be extended 
until (at least) 2018 – Autumn Statement  

− Further restrictions on finances may come forward – e.g. more 
stringent Council Tax referenda principles for those not accepting 
Council Tax Freeze grant have been muted 

− Further reform of Local Government Finance bringing about a further 
transfer of risk to Local Government Finances 

− Impact of localisation of Business Rates – first year? 

− Other likely Formula Funding changes e.g. Education, Social Care 

Page 18



75S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 

 

 

− Impact on local economy of Welfare Reform changes e.g. Council Tax 
Reform Scheme, Bedroom Tax etc. including need to annually review 
Council Tax Reform Scheme; loss of Transitional Grant (£0.5m); 
introduction of Universal Credits 

− Impact of Triennial Revaluation of  LG Pension Fund – April 2014 

− Pressure to prioritise local economic growth initiatives to stimulate the 
local  economy 

 
Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/clarified:- 
 

• The impact of the Bedroom Tax was not known as yet 

• Evidence had shown that incoming Governments did not reverse the 
spending plans of the previous Government  

• High Needs Block in CYPS (Special Educational Needs, Behavioural 
Support Services etc.) had been identified as under pressure in the 
region of £.5M.  This could be further challenged when assessments 
of children had been carried out as part of the new academic year  

 
Stuart was thanked for his presentation. 
 
Public Health 
Dr. John Radford presented the 2013/14 Spending Plan and the Plan for 
Developing 2014/15 Commissioning Intentions as follows:- 
 
2013/14 Spending Plan 

− Total Income £13,983,338 

− Public Health Grant £13,790,300 

− Other Income £193,038 
 
Planned Spending 

− Total £13,983,338 

− Contracted Services £11,996,638 

− Advice Functions £1,112,706 

− In-House Services £322,420 

− Running Costs £551,573 
 
Breakdown of Planned Spending 

− Drug and Alcohol advice 2%  

− Drug and Alcohol Contracts 30% 

− Health Improvement Contracts 23% 

− Health Improvement advice 2% 

− Health Improvement services 1% 

− Health Protection Contracts 27% 

− Health Protection advice 1% 

− Other Contracts 5% 

− Other 9% 

• Healthcare Public Health Contracts 1% 

• Healthcare Public Health Advice 2% 

Page 19



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 76S 

 

 

• Creative Media Services 1% 

• Director of Public Health 1% 

• Running Costs 4% 
 
Running Costs - £551,573 

− Pay 25% 

− Non-pay 26% 

− Central Charges/Overheads 49% 
 
Discussion ensued on the presentation with the following issues 
raised/clarified:- 
 

• The Department of Health Grant had to be separately accounted for 
by the Council 

• Need to review how contracts were placed and the way Services were 
delivered for 2014/15 

• In 2014/15 needed to balance drug and alcohol spend – currently the 
majority of spend was currently on Drug Treatment Services and 
whether that needed realigning more towards prevention services and 
the very small amount currently spent on Alcohol Services 

• NHS Health Checks were very important and could make a significant 
impact on identifying people with existing conditions.  Performance 
was very good but people were not systematically identified and 
offered a Health Check 

• There had been quite a wide range of work going on over the 
Authority as a whole in connection with Roma/Slovakian health 
issues.  Rotherham had lead on a Yorkshire and Humber-wide funded 
pilot programme for Roma health champions which had just finished.  
A report would be produced on what the benefits had been and what 
had not worked so well.  At the moment there was no identified 
funding.  It was included in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment as 
a priority 

 
John was thanked for his presentation. 
 
RMBC Commissioning Priorities 
Chrissy Wright, Strategic Commissioning Manager, presented a report 
setting out the proposals for the 2013/14 Council commissioning priorities 
that met the identified priorities for the Council’s Directorates, Children, 
Young People and Families Partnership and Adult Partnership and 
aligned to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
The focus of the commissioning priorities were as follows:- 
 
Children and Young People Services – Starting Well and Developing Well 
Adult Services – Living and Working Well and Aging and Dying Well 
 
 
 

Page 20



77S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 

 

 

For 2013/14 all commissioning activity and reviews not included in the 
priorities would be set out in Strategic Commissioning work plans.  The 
plans would grow with new activities and change as work progressed. 
 
Discussion ensued on the report with the following issue raised/clarified:- 
 

− Work on the Dementia Strategy was underway but was a very 
complex area of work 

 
Discussion ensued on the need to ensure alignment for commissioning, 
rationalise how and what was commissioned and how to create 
efficiencies in the system as well as learning from the successes there 
currently was in terms of commissioning.  It was suggested that a steering 
group be established to ensure linkage of activity to achieve the different 
objectives. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That representatives from the Health and Well Being 
Steering Group are asked identify a set of overarching principles to 
establish better alignment and coherence of  commissioning activities.  
 
 
(2)  That Kate Green be congratulated on her efforts in organising the 
Heart Town Run in Clifton Park. 
 

S89. WORKSTREAM PROGRESS - DEPENDENCE TO INDEPENDENCE  
 

 Shona McFarlane, Director of Health and Wellbeing gave the following 
powerpoint presentation:- 
 
Dependence-Independence 

− Rotherham people and families would increasingly identify their own 
needs and choose solutions which were best suited to their personal 
circumstances 

 
What needs to change to achieve this? 

− A significant shift towards self-care and self-management and use of 
Assistive Technology/Telehealth 

− Commissioners to review and evaluate plans and approaches to 
ensure that independence was promoted 

− A defined and agreed approach to risk taking, risk sharing.  Needed to 
move away from defensive decisions which historically had focused 
on avoiding risk and towards defensible decisions.  A critical shift in 
thinking 

− Co-production, customers at the centre 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 78S 

 

 

Priority One 
We will change the culture of staff from simply ‘doing’ things for people to 
encourage and prolong independence and self-care 
Actions 

− Personal health budgets workstream was on target 

− Assistive Technology Strategy had been drafted 

− Self-Care work group initiated 
Progress 

− We will embed a culture through the development of workforce 
development strategies shared by all relevant agencies that 
emphasises the promotion of independence and social inclusion – 
started 

− Benchmark workforce development plans 

− Identify tools available to support staff to achieve independence and 
supported risk-taking 

− Empower people to remain in control of their lives by embedding 
approaches such as self-care, self-directed support and personal 
health budgets 

 
Priority Two 
We will seek out the community champions and support them with 
appropriate resources, to take action and organise activities 
Progress 

− Engage with key community groups to identify current activity 

− Ageing Better bid to Lottery Fund 
 
Priority Three 
We will support and enable people to step up and step down through a 
range of statutory, voluntary and community services, appropriate to their 
needs 
Progress 

− We will check and challenge commissioning strategies to ensure they 
reflect this aspiration – programme in place 

− Engagement with voluntary sector taking place 
 
Priority Four 
We will properly enable people to become independent and celebrate 
independence.  A longer term goal but some areas have began to work 
this object in already 
Action 

− Young People’s Achievements, conference, apprenticeship 
celebration event 

− Reshape News 

− Making recovery (alcohol) more visible through events such as 
Recoverfest 

 
Health and Wellbeing Board Actions 

− Commissioners needed to ensure that all commissioning strategies 
reflect and enable this outcome consistently 

Page 22



79S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 

 

 

− Commissioners needed to find ways to incentivise providers to 
promote/achieve independence with customers and providers 

− Having a shared commitment to the risks and opportunities that the 
commitment provided – helping people to help themselves could 
mean saying ‘no’ to some 

− Ensuring that the significant culture change was embedded 
 
Challenges 

− Achieving significant culture change at a time where Welfare Reforms 
may be driving dependence 

− Partners having a consistent approach to customers and 
understanding when one part of the system said no 

− Understanding the behaviours that underpinned and drove 
dependence 

− Engaging effectively and honestly with citizens 
 
Shona was thanked for her presentation. 
 

S90. LOCALLY DETERMINED PRIORITY MEASURE: SMOKING  
 

 Alison Iliff, Public Health Specialist, gave the following powerpoint 
presentation:- 
 
Why is tobacco a priority? 

− Smoking rates were above the national average and had plateaued 

− Young people’s smoking rates were higher than the national average 

− Smoking in pregnancy rate were still very high 

− Could have serious health consequences and impacts on the 
economy 

− Tobacco was the only product that, when used as the manufacturer 
directs, killed 50% of its consumers 

 
Health Consequences: Preventable Deaths in Rotherham 2011 

− Smoking 488 

− Obesity 171 

− Alcohol 36 

− Suicide 16 

− Traffic 4 

− Assault 5 
 
Tobacco:  Intervention Pyramid 

− Social norms 

− Restrict supply 

− Health intervention 

− Illness treatment 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 80S 

 

 

What do we need to do? 

− Deliver and fund a comprehensive programme of tobacco control:- 
Raise public awareness 
De-normalise smoking – smoke-free homes, smoke-free play areas 
Prevent access to cheap and illicit tobacco 
Stop children and young people starting to smoke 
Help smokers to stop and to engage with services 

 
Challenges 

− Changing behaviour amongst those that most need to change 

− Believe that cheap and illicit tobacco was a ‘Robin Hood’ crime 

− Electronic cigarettes – less known harms than smoking but long term 
safety unclear 

− Acceptance that the current service provision needed radical change 
 
Rotherham Tobacco Control Alliance wanted Board members to:- 

− Recognise that smoking was not only a Public Health issue but should 
also be part of funded clinical treatment pathways 

− Support collaborative commissioning across South Yorkshire 
 
Discussion ensued with the following issues raised/clarified:- 
 

• Nothing in Queen’s Speech about “plain” packaging for cigarettes – 
Legislation about “plain” packaging would boost the work of local 
authorities/Tobacco Alliance 

• Electronic cigarettes – less known harms but long term safety was not 
known 

• Smoke Free Charter – all organisations would sign up to 4/5 key 
points around smoking and tobacco control which were very 
achievable with regard to promoting support for stopping smoking, the 
risks of second hand smoke and a Smoke Free Champion in the 
workforce.  Most of the Charters included a clause where staff visiting 
a client’s home, a requirement that the client would be asked to make 
the room to be visited smoke free for 30 minutes prior to the visit 
taking place 

 
Alison was thanked for her presentation. 
 
Resolved:- (1) That partners should contribute to the prevention of uptake 
in children and young people through the promotion of smoke-free spaces 
and smoke-free social norms. 
 
(2)  That a Rotherham Smokefree Charter be adopted and promoted. 
 
(3)  That minutes of the Tobacco Control Alliance be submitted to the 
Board in future. 
 
 
 

Page 24



81S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - 08/05/13 

 

 

 
 

S91. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 Agreed:-  That further meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board for 
2013 be held on Wednesdays, commencing at 1.00 p.m. in the 
Rotherham Town Hall as follows:- 
 
12th June 
10th July 
25th September 
23rd October 
27th November 
18th December  
22nd January, 2014 (9.30 a.m.) 
19th February 
26th March 
30th April 
 

 

Page 25



  
The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust 

 

Quality Account 
2012-2013 

 

Agenda Item 12Page 26



 

1 

 

1 Message from the Chief Executive 

2012-13 has been a challenging year for TRFT, one which has seen significant changes – not least of which 

being the retirement of the previous Chief Executive, Brian James, and the appointment of myself as interim 

Chief Executive.  

Since then there have been numerous changes to the Board structure, the current version of which is smaller, 

and forms a strong foundation for moving towards a healthcare management model which will exceed 

expectations of the Rotherham residents whom we serve. 

The Trust Electronic Patient Record system – Meditech v6, has been implemented; this has led to numerous 

operational issues which could not have been overcome without the hard work and dedication of our staff, 

which in the short time I have been here, I have been convinced – are our number one asset. 

It has been widely reported in the press that the Trust is in a situation referred to as ‘significant breach’ of its 

terms and conditions of operating; the Trust was informed of this by Monitor – the NHS Foundation Trust 

regulators, early in 2013. This is a deeply regrettable situation for the Trust to be in, however, I must stress 

that the reasons for this were based on Trust financial situation as it was then – and in no way is a reflection of 

the high quality clinical care which we, as a Trust, continue to provide. 

The trust continues to be in the upper quartile Nationally, for having the lowest waiting times for surgery; we 

have some of the lowest C.Difficile and MRSA infection rates in the Country, have had zero never events and 

continue to meet all of our CQC standards. The myriad of clinical quality indicators continue to reflect 

improvements against previous years. 

Our performance against Nationally and locally agreed Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) 

targets have been good – particularly in the area of Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) assessment and 

prophylaxis. Our nominated improvement programmes also show significant progress against areas where 

improvement was sought. 

The Trust has again been awarded a ‘Top 40 Hospital’ award by CHKS, an organisation specialising in 

benchmarking Acute Trusts against clinical quality and efficiency indicators; we are delighted to receive this 

award once again. 

The Trust Care Coordination Centre has opened early in 2013, a new initiative to ensure that patients are 

signposted to the most appropriate service to meet their needs – but also aiding in improving our operating 

efficiency by reducing avoidable admissions to hospital beds. 

In summary, in spite of the many challenges faced by TRFT in 2012-13, we have taken significant interventional 

actions to address these – whilst maintaining high standards of service to those in need. These were the right 

things to do and, in doing so – I remain convinced that the Trust is now in a much stronger position than it was, 

to safeguard it’s future for the benefit of the populace it serves. 

The Trust Quality Account for 2012-13 outlines some of the challenges we have faced in relation to delivering 

quality care, alongside many of the successful outcomes we have achieved in this respect. In consultation with 

my Board members and other colleagues, I am confident that the information reflected in this report 

represents an accurate picture of our activity throughout 2012-13. 

I look forward to providing the Trust with the direction and strategy it requires in delivering further success in 

2013-14. 

Page 27



 

2 

 

Yours faithfully 

Michael Morgan 

Interim Chief Executive 

  

Page 28



 

3 

 

Statement of director’s responsibilities in respect of the Quality Report 

The Directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service Quality Accounts 

Regulations to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. 

Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of annual quality reports 

(which incorporate the above legal requirements) and on the arrangements that foundation trust boards 

should put in place to support the data quality for the preparation of the quality report. 

In preparing the Quality Report, directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves that: 

• the content of the Quality Report meets the requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 

Annual Reporting Manual 2012-13 

• the content of the quality report is not inconsistent with the internal and external sources of 

information including: 

o Board minutes and papers for the period April 2012 to June 2013 

o Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2012 to June 2013 

o Feedback from commissioners dated 8
th

 May 2013 

o Feedback from Governors dated  11
th

 April 2013 

o Feedback from Local Healthwatch organisations (previously LINks) dated 27
th

 March 2013  

o The Trust complaints report published under regulation 18 of the local Authority Social 

Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated  21
st
 May 2013 

o The latest national patient survey 16
th

 April 2013 

o The latest national staff survey 20
th

 March 2013 

o The draft Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the trust’s control environment dated 

21
st
 May 2013 

o CQC quality and risk profiles data 15
th

 May 2013 

• the Quality Report represents a balanced picture of the NHS foundation trust’s performance over 

the period covered; 

• the performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate; 

• there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of 

performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review to confirm 

they are working effectively in practice; 

• the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Report is robust and 

reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed definitions, is subject to 

scrutiny and review; and the Quality report has been prepared in accordance with Monitor’s annual 

reporting guidance (which incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations) (published at 

www.monitor-nhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) as well as the standards to support data 

quality for the preparation of the Quality Report (available at www.monitor-

nhsft.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) 

 

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above 

requirements in preparing the Quality Report. 

By order of the Board 

28/05/2013   Peter Lee    Chairman 

28/05/2013   Michael Morgan  Interim Chief Executive 

Page 29



 

4 

 

2A Our Priorities for improvement and progress last year (2012-13) 

 

Our focus on quality 

 

The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust continues to focus on quality of care, driving forward integrated care services for the benefit of patients, relatives and carers. 

Progress towards achieving many of the aims set out in our Quality Strategy 2012-215 remains on track, whilst a review of Service Delivery Strategy 3 is underway to 

ensure that it continues to support our long term vision in what remains a very challenging environment for the whole of the NHS.  

 

Emphasis on patient experience 

 

Throughout the year we have continued to review patient feedback and our patient experience strategy in response to this; we have achieved success in increasing 

the volume of complaints to obtain more feedback (up by 43% on 2011-12) whilst also reducing the overall severity of complaints. In 2012-13 we received 4 

complaints rated “red” according to our Red, Orange, Amber, Green (RAG) classification system, against 7 “red” complaints in 2011-12. Overall for 2012-13 – 6.1% 

of our complaints were rated “Red” or “Orange”, against 11.0% rated at that level of severity in 2011-12.  

 

There has been a shift in themes of complaints for 2012-13, whilst the principal theme relates to medical care, there has been a significant increase in complaints 

relating to administration and appointments from 6.9% in for the two themes in 2011-12, to 30.7% for the two themes in 2012-13. This shift has been largely 

attributed to issues surrounding outpatient appointments and associated administration, which were incurred due to issues arising soon after the implementation 

of Meditech Electonic Patient Record v6. 

 

In addition to complaints review and analysis, two other sources contribute to our monitoring of this area – the National Inpatient Survey and Meridian’s Optimum 

Contact patient experience tracking system. During the year, the decision was made to move to Meridian OC from Dr Foster Patient Experience Tracker, as it was 

proven to provide a greater degree of flexibility in terms of its analysis functionality, combined with more options for review of feedback by relevant users. The 

same questions and response options were used on the new system, enabling continuity of performance monitoring. 

 

Patient experience capture, using Meridian OC, is now captured directly from patients using handheld ‘tablet’ devices, rather than proprietary units – these are 

proving popular with both staff and feedback providers – as well as providing opportunities for the same device to be used for a number of uses. 

 

The national inpatient survey is coordinated and published by the CQC on an annual basis. Performance in this survey forms part of our CQUINs target for the acute 

element of the Trust, monitored by local surveys throughout the year (via Dr Foster/Meridian OC) whilst CQUIN performance targets for the community element of 

P
a
g
e
 3

0



 

 

the Trust are based entirely on results from our local patient experience surveys (no national community patient survey is performed by CQC). Que

the local inpatient surveys are the same as those which the national survey is based upon.

 

The chart below reflects how we have performed in the national inpatient survey in 2011 and 2012, as well as results from our local patient experien

both years for CQUIN related questions. Local surveys take place throughout the year and capture considerably more r

2,881 local survey responses for 2010-11 and 2012-13 against 432 and 331 for the national surveys respectively); the extra level of response received from local 

surveys is only set to increase – given that patients are now given the option to provide feedback after their time in hospital, by the use of a weblink to capture data.   

 

In terms of the national inpatient survey, 2 questions in which the Trust was rated comparatively as 

offered a choice of food” and “being given printed information about what you should or should not do on leaving hospital”. T

other Trusts’ in 5 of the 70 questions asked. Data available from

to enable corrective or improvement action to be taken; on that basis local surveys will continue to be used to identify pote

specific issues. This is in addition to a programmatic review of all patient experience related initiatives, led by the Chief

recommendations. 

 

National & local inpatient surveys: CQUIN results 2011

 

 

5 

entirely on results from our local patient experience surveys (no national community patient survey is performed by CQC). Que

the local inpatient surveys are the same as those which the national survey is based upon. 

s how we have performed in the national inpatient survey in 2011 and 2012, as well as results from our local patient experien

both years for CQUIN related questions. Local surveys take place throughout the year and capture considerably more responses than the national survey (1,545 and 

13 against 432 and 331 for the national surveys respectively); the extra level of response received from local 

nts are now given the option to provide feedback after their time in hospital, by the use of a weblink to capture data.   

In terms of the national inpatient survey, 2 questions in which the Trust was rated comparatively as being ‘worse than most other Tr

offered a choice of food” and “being given printed information about what you should or should not do on leaving hospital”. T

other Trusts’ in 5 of the 70 questions asked. Data available from the national inpatient survey does not go to a sufficiently granular level (i.e. ward or specialty) so as 

to enable corrective or improvement action to be taken; on that basis local surveys will continue to be used to identify potential improvement action

specific issues. This is in addition to a programmatic review of all patient experience related initiatives, led by the Chief Nurse, in light of the Francis report 

National & local inpatient surveys: CQUIN results 2011-12 vs 2012-13 

entirely on results from our local patient experience surveys (no national community patient survey is performed by CQC). Questions asked by 

s how we have performed in the national inpatient survey in 2011 and 2012, as well as results from our local patient experience surveys for 

esponses than the national survey (1,545 and 

13 against 432 and 331 for the national surveys respectively); the extra level of response received from local 

nts are now given the option to provide feedback after their time in hospital, by the use of a weblink to capture data.    

‘worse than most other Trusts’ were concerning “being 

offered a choice of food” and “being given printed information about what you should or should not do on leaving hospital”. The Trust was rated ‘better than most 

the national inpatient survey does not go to a sufficiently granular level (i.e. ward or specialty) so as 

ntial improvement actions for these 

Nurse, in light of the Francis report 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



 

6 

 

National Staff Survey results 

 

 
The National Staff Survey is an annual initiative, commissioned by the Department of Health for all NHS trusts; it provides us with a useful means of benchmarking 

our staff perceptions of the Trust as an employer, against those of other Trusts. 

 

The response rate for TRFT, for the 2012-13 survey, is significantly lower than that in 2011-12; this decrease is mirrored by the national average for Acute Trusts but 

to a greater extent. This correlates with some of the key findings for 2012-13 which highlighted that staff engagement and motivation are both in the lowest 20% of 

Acute Trust outcomes. The reasons for these outcomes are no doubt multi factorial, but the impact of Electronic Patient Record implementation cannot be 

overlooked as a contributory factor to these issues; local staff surveys will continue to provide a more timely measure of staff satisfaction and the most recent 

results are reflected below. 

 

Aspects which can be seen in a positive light include the fact that levels of staff experiencing discrimination (in the last 12 months) are almost half of that reflected 

in the previous survey and the National average. Staff witnessing potentially harmful errors, near misses etc. have also reflected a significant reduction – well under 

the National average by approximately one third. Whilst 2 of the top 4 ranking scores have shown an increase (harassment, bullying etc. from staff & feeling 

2012 Response rates

TRFT
National Avg 

(Acute Trusts)
TRFT

National Avg 

(Acute Trusts)

Response rate 264 395 408 427

Response % 32% 49% 49% 53%

Top 5 ranking scores 2012 (2012-13 vs 2011-12)

TRFT
National Avg 

(Acute Trusts)
TRFT

National Avg 

(Acute Trusts)

TRFT 

variance

National 

Avg variance

Percentage of staff experiencing discrimination at work in last 12 months (KF28) 6% 11% 11% 13% -45.5% -15.4% KF38

Percentage of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from staff in last 12 months (KF19) 17% 24% 14% 16% 21.4% 50.0% KF26

Percentage of staff experiencing pressure in last 3 months to attend work when feeling unwell (KF20) 22% 29% 20% 26% 10.0% 11.5% KF29

Percentage of staff witnessing potentially harmful errors, near misses or incidents in last month (KF13) 22% 34% 27% 35% -18.5% -2.9% KF20

Percentage of staff experiencing bullying, harassment or abuse from patients, relatives or the public in the last 12 months (KF18) 22% 30% 14% 15% 57.1% 100.0% KF24

Bottom 5 ranking scores 2012 (2012-13 vs 2011-12)

TRFT
National Avg 

(Acute Trusts)
TRFT

National Avg 

(Acute Trusts)

Staff motivation at work (KF25) 3.73 3.84 3.80 3.82 -1.8% 0.5% KF35

Percentage of staff suffering work related stress in last 12 months (KF11) 41% 37% 29% 29% 41.4% 27.6% KF18

Staff recommendation of the Trust as a place to work or receive treatment (KF24) 3.35 3.57 3.50 3.51 -4.3% 1.7% KF34

Percentage of staff agreeing that their role makes a difference to patients (KF2) 88% 89% 91% 90% -3.3% -1.1% KF2

Percentage of staff feeling satisfied with the quality of work and patient care they are able to deliver (KF1) 74% 78% 74% 74% 0.0% 5.4% KF1

* Italics indicate the the KF# has changed relative to the previous comparative year

2012-13 2011-12

2012-13 2011-12

Previous 

indicator 

ID*

TRFT 

variance

National 

Avg variance

Previous 

indicator 

ID*

2012-13 2011-12

-35%

TRFT 

variance

National 

Avg variance

-7%

P
a
g
e
 3

2



 

7 

 

pressure to attend work) –this must be taken in the context that they remain well under the National averages for these Key Findings, which have increased by a far 

greater extent. 

 

Short and medium term actions to be taken by the Trust as a result of these outcomes include: 

• A formalised means for staff to communicate queries, comments and concerns directly to the Chief Executive – and receive feedback within 7 days 

• The Human Resource function coming under the direct supervision of the Chief Executive 

• Human Resources and staff centric issues being made a key focus in the upcoming strategic planning process (due for release in September 2013) 

 

Local Staff Survey results 

 
 

The overall score for the staff survey has varied little in comparison to that carried out in April 2012, decreasing by only 0.1 - where 10 equates to the most positive 

result possible and 1 being the most negative result possible.  

 

The main areas of concern remain the same as last year – staff opinions on learning & development, performance (feedback & development reviews) and job 

satisfaction having scored the lowest of all categories. Of these low scoring areas, 2 of 3 reflect the most decreased score against last year (learning & development 

and performance) – with communication from managers reflecting the third largest decrease. 

 

Areas of strong performance remain the same as last year, increasing in 2012-13 by 0.1 at most; some of the most encouraging individual scores in the conflict 

resolution category relate to staff feeling able to handle conflict appropriately – although this is to be tempered by the fact that many staff agree that they have 

experienced some form of conflict within their role. 

 

Response ca tegory

2011-12 Ad justed  

score  by Ca tegory

2012-13 Ad justed  

score  by Sub ject a rea

Feeling valued 7.2 7.2

Learning and Development 6.0 5.4

Performance 6.1 5.6

Health and Wellbeing 7.3 7.4

Communication from managers 6.6 6.4

Job satisfaction 5.7 5.6

Conflict resolution 7.0 7.1

Overa ll score 6.5 6.4

P
a
g
e
 3

3



 

8 

 

Actions to be taken in relation to local survey results, in addition to those mentioned in response to national survey outcomes, include the introduction of a more 

participative management style - involving employees more in decision making and establishing the future direction of the Trust; alongside this, TRFT is exploring 

the implementation of a staff engagement strategy to enhance commitment, motivation and inclusion during a time of significant organisational change. 

 

Quality Governance 

 

The Quality Governance Framework process includes: 

 

• Standard Operating Procedure for the Quality Governance Framework – covering the assurance and reporting process  

• Executive and non-executive sign off 

• Monthly reporting to the Board 

• Quality Governance Standards database provides evidence to assure executive members that assigned RAG ratings are appropriate 

• Quarterly agreement by the Board prior to Monitor sign off 

Currently our status is a score of 3, most areas are green/amber (rated at 0-0.5), one area we are continuing to declare as red (rated at 1), is data quality; this issue 

is anticipated to be resolved as part of our data quality/EPR recovery programme by the end of the year. 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

4



 

9 

 

Looking back:  Achievements against our quality priorities for 2012-13 

How did we prioritise our quality improvement initiatives? 

During the year we have been monitoring our progress against the targets we set in last year’s quality report. 

Due to progress made against our improvement programmes (outlined below), the Trust has chosen to set 

new targets in areas which are current priorities. Our main focusses this year reflect this and sets out new 

targets in areas we maximum benefit will be achieved.  

In making these decisions we have also consulted and received feedback, through various methods from our 

key stakeholders - including patients, public, carers, governors, LINks members, the Health Scrutiny 

Commission and our commissioners.  The majority agreed with the further development of topics and 

continued links to our CQUIN priorities. The initial agreement stage of the process was conducted by the 

Corporate Safety and Experience Committee and then reported to the Board for final approval in March 2013. 

Our overarching strategic objectives for the next 3 years as set out in our Quality Strategy, against Safety, 

Experience and Effectiveness are 

Key Aims: 

SAFE 

•Reduce mortality: achieve a position in upper quartile of organisations with the lowest Summary level 

Hospital Mortality (SHMI) 

•Reduce harm: 95% of patients to receive ‘harm free’ care 

CARING 

• Improve the patient/staff experience: achieve a position in the top 20% for patient and staff experience 

surveys 

RELIABLE 

• Provide reliable care: ensuring that evidence based practice is followed by meeting 90% compliance with all 

NICE quality standards 

 

• The Trust Risk Adjusted Mortality Index (RAMI) score for 2011-12 was 87, indicating that mortality at 

the trust was ‘lower than expected’ according to the model parameters. This has increased in 2012-13 

to 89, although still remains lower than the expected level of mortality as calculated by the 

methodology. RAMI is no longer the methodology promoted by the DoH – instead Summary level 

Hospital Mortality Index (SHMI) is the preferred comparator, this is reported in the mandatory 

indicator table later in the report.  

• The Trust has achieved its aim of achieving 95% patients receiving ‘harm free care’, as measured and 

reported by the NHS Safety Thermometer initiative. The year end outcome for 2012-13 in respect of 

this indicator was 95.7%; CQUIN targets for 2013-14 will incentivise further improvements in 

performance. Which will be measured against the 2012-13 baseline. 

• The Trust has reflected improvement in some aspects of the National inpatient surveys – with 2 out of 

10 sections scoring ‘better than most other trusts’ in 2012-13, against 1 out of 10 scored in that 

category in 2011-12. 1 section was scored as ‘worse than most other trusts’ for 2012-13 – this section 

was related to ‘the hospital and ward’; where the Trust was scored ‘worse than most other trusts’ in 

relation to offering a choice of food. 

• The Trust has improved its position in relation to staff surveys, compared to the previous year. For 

2012-13, the Trust has achieved 53.6% (n=28) of key findings where the response was in the upper 

quintile or ‘better than average’ – against 44.7% (n=38) in 2011-12. 

Page 35



 

 

• 21 of 24 published NICE standards are applicable to TRFT, we have a process in which we assign a 

clinical lead for each of the standards, these sta

reporting to the Clinical Effectiveness team and Clinical Effective and Research Group (CEG). We have 

introduced a random sampling process this year, which assesses the evidence against the self 

assessment process to ensure that full compliance has been achieved. The s

and we currently only have on element of one standard that is rated red (1 out of 210 standards) 

relates to the link between GPs and the Trust for patients discharged on VTE prophylaxis.

Our detailed quality improvement projec

Priority 1a: Compliance with medications management guidelines (Royal Pharmaceutical Society

“To ensure that all Trust medicine management systems and processes adhere to The Royal Pharmaceutical 

Society Safe and Secure Storage and Handling

What the results mean for the Organisation

The Organisation has made huge strides forward in increasing compliance against Royal Pharmaceutical 

Society (RPS) guidelines in relation to storage and handling of medications. W

vastly improved safety and security of our drug stocks in wards and departments where medication is used 

(this excludes Pharmacy main stores).

However, the setting of absolute targets for these indicators (i.e. 100%, 0% inc

checks) has meant that in many cases these ‘stretch’ targets have not been met.  

What the results mean for our patients

Patients can be assured that the organisation is handling medications appropriately, and that they are b

kept in good condition (at the right temperature) as well as being secured against potential tampering or 

adulteration – assuring against incidents such as that which was reported in a Manchester hospital in 2011. 

Given the significant level of improvement against this programme (notwithstanding the achievements against 

the challenging targets set), this will not be set as an improvement programme in the coming year.

Further improvements identified 

Although improvement is evident in all areas; aspects

locking of drug fridges and cabinets –

an improvement programme for the coming year, performance against the RPS standards wil

reviewed in the nursing accreditation scheme and monthly nursing forum to ensure meeting these standards 

remains a priority. 

  

10 

21 of 24 published NICE standards are applicable to TRFT, we have a process in which we assign a 

clinical lead for each of the standards, these standards are monitored via a self 

the Clinical Effectiveness team and Clinical Effective and Research Group (CEG). We have 

introduced a random sampling process this year, which assesses the evidence against the self 

assessment process to ensure that full compliance has been achieved. The standards are RAG rated 

and we currently only have on element of one standard that is rated red (1 out of 210 standards) 

relates to the link between GPs and the Trust for patients discharged on VTE prophylaxis.

Our detailed quality improvement projects for 2012/13 

Compliance with medications management guidelines (Royal Pharmaceutical Society

“To ensure that all Trust medicine management systems and processes adhere to The Royal Pharmaceutical 

Society Safe and Secure Storage and Handling of Medicines guidance (2005)”. 

What the results mean for the Organisation 

strides forward in increasing compliance against Royal Pharmaceutical 

Society (RPS) guidelines in relation to storage and handling of medications. We can take great pride in having 

vastly improved safety and security of our drug stocks in wards and departments where medication is used 

(this excludes Pharmacy main stores). 

However, the setting of absolute targets for these indicators (i.e. 100%, 0% incidences or ‘zero days’ without 

checks) has meant that in many cases these ‘stretch’ targets have not been met.   

What the results mean for our patients 

Patients can be assured that the organisation is handling medications appropriately, and that they are b

kept in good condition (at the right temperature) as well as being secured against potential tampering or 

assuring against incidents such as that which was reported in a Manchester hospital in 2011. 

vement against this programme (notwithstanding the achievements against 

the challenging targets set), this will not be set as an improvement programme in the coming year.

Although improvement is evident in all areas; aspects where most room for improvement still exists are the 

– alongside the siting of Drug Disposal Units. Whilst this will not be set as 

an improvement programme for the coming year, performance against the RPS standards wil

reviewed in the nursing accreditation scheme and monthly nursing forum to ensure meeting these standards 

21 of 24 published NICE standards are applicable to TRFT, we have a process in which we assign a 

ndards are monitored via a self assessment process 

the Clinical Effectiveness team and Clinical Effective and Research Group (CEG). We have 

introduced a random sampling process this year, which assesses the evidence against the self 

tandards are RAG rated 

and we currently only have on element of one standard that is rated red (1 out of 210 standards) – this 

relates to the link between GPs and the Trust for patients discharged on VTE prophylaxis. 

Compliance with medications management guidelines (Royal Pharmaceutical Society) 

“To ensure that all Trust medicine management systems and processes adhere to The Royal Pharmaceutical 

 

strides forward in increasing compliance against Royal Pharmaceutical 

e can take great pride in having 

vastly improved safety and security of our drug stocks in wards and departments where medication is used 

idences or ‘zero days’ without 

Patients can be assured that the organisation is handling medications appropriately, and that they are being 

kept in good condition (at the right temperature) as well as being secured against potential tampering or 

assuring against incidents such as that which was reported in a Manchester hospital in 2011.  

vement against this programme (notwithstanding the achievements against 

the challenging targets set), this will not be set as an improvement programme in the coming year. 

where most room for improvement still exists are the 

alongside the siting of Drug Disposal Units. Whilst this will not be set as 

an improvement programme for the coming year, performance against the RPS standards will continue to be 

reviewed in the nursing accreditation scheme and monthly nursing forum to ensure meeting these standards 

Page 36



 

11 

 

Priority 1b: Introduce data collection for NHS Safety Thermometer 

“Introduce and improve data collection in relation to falls, pressure ulcers, UTIs and VTE assessments in acute 

and community setting from April 2012 baseline.” 

 

NB. Other areas of clinical effectiveness were measured during this process, but not required by Safety Thermometer – hence the 

number sequence is not sequential 

What the results mean for the organisation 

As a National CQUIN also, a significant amount of funding could be withheld by commissioners if the Trust fails 

to achieve its targets for this improvement programme. The Trust has achieved all the in-year targets in 

relation to this initiative, and hence will receive in the region of £300,000 when year-end review of CQUINs 

performance is finalised. 

The Trust has not only achieved targets set, it has exceeded them significantly – by instigating a robust method 

for capturing and providing data to the NHS Information Centre as per the formal objectives, but at the same 

time evidencing improvement against most of the mandated performance indicators.  

It must be borne in mind that the specific CQUIN goals are not related to improvement in performance, but 

evidencing improvement in the data capture and submission process itself. This has been achieved by using a 

robust in-house developed solution, utilising SNAP
TM

 optical character recognition software in combination 

with SQL Server 2008
TM 

to provide not only timely, accurate data submission to the NHS Information Centre – 

but the same data source seamlessly updates the Trust intranet where ward managers etc can view their own 

performance, ‘drilling down’ into the data to identify where problems are occurring. 

The benefits from this programme are principally securing CQUINs funding for this programme, alongside 

maintaining an extremely useful online data source for clinical staff (also reflecting many other quality 

metrics).  

The main dis-benefit for the Trust, in some respects – is it’s over achievement in terms of performance 

outcomes, rather than simply managing to submit data on time. Next year the targets will be based on this 

year’s performance, with a view to improving it. As the Trust has already performed extremely well this year – 

we have made targets even more challenging to achieve against next year. 

What the results mean for our patients 

Patients can be assured that the Trust is already performing strongly in the ‘Harm Free Care’ domains 

mandated by NHS Safety Thermometer, both against National, SHA Cluster and other peer groups.  

Not only is TRFT performing well against peers, but in terms of day to day management – patients can feel safe 

in the knowledge that appropriate staff – from Ward Managers to Heads of Specialty, are able to review and 

rapidly respond to any issues affecting patient care if they are identified. 

Funding from the CQUINs ring fenced budget will be released in due course – which will be ploughed back into 

the Trust to support and further develop patient care. 

Baseline 

period

Baselin

e value

Year 

end 

target

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 YTD
Qtr 

change

YTD 

Rating

ST_1 No Harm - Falls April 2012 97.7% Increase 97.9% 98.9% 99.0% 98.7% 98.6%

ST_2 No Harm - New pressure ulcer April 2012 96.8% Increase 97.2% 97.6% 97.8% 97.9% 97.6%

ST_4 No Harm - VTE April 2012 97.7% Increase 98.5% 98.9% 99.6% 99.5% 99.2%

ST_5 No Harm - UTI April 2012 93.9% Increase 94.1% 95.4% 96.4% 96.3% 95.6%

ST_7 No Harm - Old pressure ulcer April 2012 97.3% Increase 92.6% 92.3% 93.0% 95.2% 93.4%

Introduce and improve data collection in relation to 

falls, pressure ulcers, UTIs and VTE assessments in 

acute and community setting from April 2012 baseline 

Page 37



 

12 

 

Further improvements identified 

CQUIN Safety Thermometer goals have been developed further for the coming year. The CQUIN goal for 2013-

14 is to not only continue data collection in respect of these indicators, but to evidence improvement against 

the actual outcomes from 2012-13. Having set a challenging target by performing strongly this year – striving 

to exceed that will result in even higher levels of care for our patients. 

Priority 2a: End of Life care 

“Increasing compliance to 65% for 5 key measures of the Liverpool Care of the Dying Pathway (LCP) by April 

2013” 

 

What the results mean for the organisation 

The Trust has exceeded the targets set for 2012-13 across all areas of the 5 key measures. The main 

achievement arising from this programme is an increased application of the Liverpool Care Pathway (up to 

51.6% in 2012-13, from 47.0% in 2011-12). Of similar importance, is the vast improvement made in careful 

documentation of provision of five of the crucial measures listed in the Liverpool Care Pathway document. 

Whilst crude mortality (raw numbers of deaths) is extremely difficult to influence, the Trust did not achieve a 

reduction in the number of deaths occurring on wards, by 16 cases. 

The organisation can be assured that a step change has occurred, not only in the provision of care to those 

nearing death and their relatives – but that this is being more carefully recorded in patient notes. It has long 

been the view that these elements of care are provided, by reference to the volume of work performed by the 

Palliative Care Team (for example); but also it is acknowledged that completeness of nursing documentation 

could have been improved in this respect.  

What the results mean for our patients 

Patients nearing or on the End of Life care pathway (and their relatives), can be assured that their last days will 

be as comfortable as possible, that their wishes in relation to death will be discussed and – wherever possible, 

acted upon.  

This could be anything from wishing to hear particular music, or receive any blessing that they wish to take 

part in, according to their culture and religious belief. Relatives can also take comfort in knowing that pain 

relief for their loved ones will be provided carefully, to not only minimise any pain or discomfort – but to 

reduce anxiety also. 

Support to relatives, in respect of keeping them informed of the patients care plan, and in the form of 

information leaflets regarding ‘Coping with death’ (signposting where to go for further support and assistance) 

Baseline 

period

Baseline 

value

Year 

end 

target

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 YTD
Qtr 

change

YTD 

Rating

2011-12 1,055 Reduce 261 234 267 309 1071

2011-12 47.0% Increase 58.2% 56.8% 49.1% 44.3% 51.6%

LC_1 Has the patient had the opportunity to discuss what is important to them and their wishes? (Q5) 2011-12 42.7% 65% 43.0% 93.2% 86.3% 96.4% 78.6%

LC_2 Has the relative/carer had the opportunity to discuss what is important to them ans their wishes? (Q6) 2011-12 42.7% 65% 44.4% 91.0% 85.5% 97.1% 78.4%

The patient has medication prescribed on a PRN basis for the following: 2011-12 35.6% 65% 41.1% 88.3% 80.8% 89.6% 73.9%

 Pain (Q7a) 2011-12 40.9% 65% 45.0% 91.7% 84.0% 92.7% 77.4%

Agitation (Q7b) 2011-12 38.7% 65% 42.4% 90.2% 80.9% 92.7% 75.5%

Respiratory tract secretions (Q7c) 2011-12 36.1% 65% 41.1% 88.0% 80.2% 87.6% 73.2%

Nausea/vomiting (Q7d) 2011-12 31.9% 65% 39.7% 86.5% 77.9% 88.3% 72.6%

Dyspnoea (Q7e) 2011-12 29.6% 65% 37.1% 85.0% 80.9% 86.9% 71.4%

LC_4 Has a full explanation of the current care plan been given to the relative/carer? (Q13) 2011-12 41.9% 65% 45.0% 94.0% 86.3% 97.1% 79.5%

LC_5 Has the LCP 'Coping with death' leaflet been given to the relative/carer? (Q14) 2011-12 39.5% 65% 44.4% 90.2% 85.5% 97.1% 78.3%

Average across 5 key measures 2011-12 38.4% 65% 42.5% 90.0% 83.0% 92.8% 76.0%

Number of deceased (mortality DB - excludes deaths occuring in Accident & Emergency)

Proportion of those deceased, who were on the LCP

LC_3

Page 38



 

13 

 

have in the past, been regarded as useful, practical support at a time of great distress and loss for relatives of 

those recently passed away. 

Further improvements identified 

Whilst all areas of the Liverpool Care Pathway improvement have achieved against their target, some areas 

(notably provision of medication as required and explanation of care plans to relatives) have shown variable 

performance through the year. It is the aim of the on-going monitoring to bring focus to these areas to attain a 

greater level of consistency; this will be achieved by inclusion of the indicators as part of the nursing 

accreditation scheme initiative.  

Priority 2b: Responsiveness to patient’s needs 

“Increasing our responsiveness to our patients needs using a composite indicator of care, from April 2012 

baseline” 

 

What the results mean for the organisation 

The Trust has broadly achieved its aims in respect of improving the positivity of patient feedback in a variety of 

care settings. Where increased scoring by patients has not been achieved this year – it is acknowledged (as in 

the case of Community Adult Health Services) that the baseline to evidence improvement against, was already 

extremely high – hence not attaining this level is in no way a sign of poor performance. 

Midway through the year, the Trust switched to a different patient experience capture system – Meridian 

Optimum Contact. Some of the new features of the system enable appropriate staff to review feedback 

relevant to their areas, online and in a variety of different means – with increased functionality to identify 

trends in feedback according to day of the week etc.  

The new system also provides more ways in which to provide feedback – via a weblink (for example), which 

can be used after the patient has left the hospital itself. This increased flexibility means it is even easier for 

patients to provide feedback about the service they have received – which in turn means TRFT captures more 

feedback, this can then be used to formulate actions for improving our services further. 

What the results mean for our patients 

Patients and relatives can be assured that the Trust not only seeks feedback from service users regularly – but 

that we seek to take action on this feedback. 

Further patient experience initiatives have been introduced during this year, by mandate from the DoH; this 

new ‘friends and family’ test seeks the view of every patient that has attended Accident & Emergency, 

Baseline 

period

Baseline 

value

Year 

end 

target

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 YTD
Qtr 

change

YTD 

Rating

PR_1a Did a member of staff tell you about medication side effects to watch for when you went home? April 2012 84.3 Increase 84.7 83.6 79.8 87.6 83.7

PR_1b Did hospital staff tell you who to contact if you were worried about your condition or treatment after you left hospital?April 2012 68.9 Increase 72.2 77.4 82.9 87.8 79.3

PR_1c Did you find someone on the hospital staff to talk to about your worries and fears? April 2012 87.3 Increase 87.8 85.9 87.8 89.8 87.8

PR_1d Were you given enough privacy when discussing your condition and treatment? April 2012 80.5 Increase 83.0 81.4 91.4 93.8 86.8

PR_1e Were you involved as much as you wanted to be in decisions about your care and treatment? April 2012 78.5 Increase 79.5 80.0 89.0 92.2 84.6

PR_1 Inpatient CQUIN template overall score April 2012 79.1 Increase 80.9 81.4 86.5 90.4 84.4

PR_2a Have you been involved as much as you wanted to be in decisions about your care and treatment? April 2012 94.6 Increase 88.9 91.5 93.6 94.2 93.0

PR_2b Were you given enough time to discuss your condition with healthcare professionals? April 2012 96.3 Increase 87.1 91.6 92.3 93.1 92.0

PR_2c Do you know what number/who to contact if you need support out of hours (after 5pm)? April 2012 96.5 Increase 93.6 94.8 85.1 81.4 86.8

PR_2d Overall, have staff treated you with dignity and respect? April 2012 99.6 Increase 95.5 97.8 96.4 97.3 96.9

PR_2e Overall, are you satisfied with the personal care and treatment you have received from community services? April 2012 98.9 Increase 94.0 96.8 95.5 96.7 96.1

PR_2 Community Health Adult Services overall score April 2012 97.2 Increase 91.8 94.5 92.7 92.9 93.1

PR_3a Were you given enough time to discuss your child’s health with the healthcare professionals? April 2012 94.4 Increase 95.2 96.2 96.0 97.9 96.3

PR_3b Did staff clearly explain the purpose of their contact with you in a way that you could understand? April 2012 98.4 Increase 98.2 95.3 98.1 98.3 97.2

PR_3c Do you know what number/who to contact if you need support out of hours (after 5pm)? April 2012 85.2 Increase 86.8 84.8 89.2 92.4 88.0

PR_3d Overall, have staff treated you and your family with dignity and respect?* April 2012 97.6 Increase 98.4 98.8 98.9 98.4 98.6

PR_3e Overall, are you satisfied with the service you have received from community services? April 2012 96.8 Increase 96.1 97.7 98.7 98.7 97.8

PR_3 Community Health Universal Services April 2012 94.7 Increase 95.1 94.8 96.3 97.2 95.8

Increasing our responsiveness to out patients needs using a composite indicator of care, from April 2012 

baseline

Page 39



 

14 

 

alongside inpatients – to ascertain whether they would recommend the Trust to their family and friends as a 

place to be treated. Responses to this ‘test’ are captured utilising the same technology used to administer our 

in-house feedback surveys, hence enabling relevant staff to view feedback in real time, identifying trends at 

department level with a view to taking corrective action where necessary. 

Further improvements identified 

Continued use of our new patient opinion capture solution, in combination with deployment of the DoH 

mandated ‘friends and family’ test, will provide TRFT with a wealth of data that can be used to inform service 

improvement initiatives throughout the Trust. This information will continue to be monitored at Patient 

Experience Committee meetings, and reported in summary level to the Board via quarterly Quality Account 

updates. 

2c: Dementia screening, assessment and referral 

“To deliver the locally agreed improvement targets for early identification of patients with dementia – Find, 

Assess/Investigate and Refer (F.A.I.R) - in relation to all admitted patients aged 75 years and older by April 

2013” 

 

What the results mean for the organisation 

Unfortunately the organisation has not achieved its target for this year, which is also a CQUIN goal agreed with 

our commissioners. The target was to achieve 90% for each element of the process, for at least 3 months in 

the year. 

The Trust acknowledges that it did not begin the data capture and screening processes early enough in the 

year, to affect changes in performance which would have led to achievement of this goal. Part of the reason 

for this was the anticipation that data capture for this target would be performed via the new EPR system – 

although difficulties experienced through implementation meant this was not possible. The introduction of a 

paper pro forma and associated administration processes therefore led to delays in starting the process. 

Whilst not achieving this goal, it must also be recognised that the Trust did not simply intend to perform 

dementia screening for 75 year olds and over, but to achieve against our own locally imposed ‘stretch’ target – 

for 65 year olds and over.  

What the result mean for our patients  

Patients and relatives can take some comfort in the knowledge that this programme will ‘roll over’ into 2013-

14 – with increased resource and effort applied to attain these goals. 

Patients and relatives should also be aware of the benefits of TRFT’s ‘stretch’ target of achievement for all 65 

plus year olds – so a larger group of people will be screened than originally mandated by the DoH. This is very 

much to our patients’ advantage, as early identification of dementia – with appropriate intervention, leads to 

much better outcomes for patients in terms of longevity and quality of life.  

Baseline 

period

Baseline 

value

Year 

end 

target

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 YTD
Qtr 

change

YTD 

Rating

DE_1a
Percentage of emergency admissions aged over 75 (minus exclusions), who are asked the case finding 

question within 72 hours  of admission (FIND)
- - 90% 56.7% 56.7% -

DE_1b
Percentage of emergency admissions aged over 65 (minus exclusions), who are asked the case finding 

question within 72 hours  of admission (FIND)
- - 90% 53.8% 53.8% -

DE_2a
Percentage of emergency admissions aged over 75 (minus exclusions), scored positively by case finding 

OR having a clinical diagnosis of delirium, who are recorded as having a dementia diagnostic 
- - 90% 76.2% 76.2% -

DE_2b
Percentage of emergency admissions aged over 65 (minus exclusions), scored positively by case finding 

OR having a clinical diagnosis of delirium, who are recorded as having a dementia diagnostic 
- - 90% 75.5% 75.5% -

DE_3a
Percentage of emergency admissions over 75 (minus exclusions), with a 'positive' or 'inconclusive' 

outcome  from a dementia diagnostic assessment, who are referred for further diagnostic advice or follow 
- - 90% 16.7% 16.7% -

DE_3b
Percentage of emergency admissions over 65 (minus exclusions), with a 'positive' or 'inconclusive' 

outcome  from a dementia diagnostic assessment, who are referred for further diagnostic advice or follow 
- - 90% 16.7% 16.7% -

Page 40



 

15 

 

Newly developed drug treatments for dementia can slow (and in some cases, slightly reverse) the onset of 

dementia – it is clinically proven that these are most effective when administered as soon as possible after 

dementia is diagnosed. Early diagnosis, for a wider age range – can only have a positive impact on the lives of 

older adults served by TRFT. 

Further Improvements identified 

As targets have not been met by the Trust this year, they will continue to be an area of focus. Sustained 

resource is to be applied to achieving these goals – which will also remain a CQUIN target; it is highly probable 

that they will be achieved prior to mid 2013-14, now that a robust monitoring system is in operation. 

Performance information will be provided to a number of Trust committees – including the Dementia Strategy 

Committee, Patient Experience Committee and, on a quarterly basis, to the Corporate Safety & Experience 

Committee and Board via the Quality Account report.   

3a: Health Assessments for Looked After Children 

“Increasing the number of assessments carried out for looked after children and young people, from the April 

2012 baseline” 

 

Unfortunately the Trust has not delivered the aims of this programme during the financial year. In quarter 2, as 

part of the Trust’s data assurance review for Quality Account indicators – issues were identified with the 

reliability of the data. 

This led to a revised process being implemented to track health assessment activity, utilising SystmOne. This is 

now working well, but the anticipated baseline and on-going operational performance data was not available 

until the beginning of quarter 4. 

As no progress, other than quality assurance of data sources, has been made with this initiative – it will 

continue to be monitored as part of Quality Accounts 2013-14 (Quality at a Glance) metrics, and reported to 

the appropriate forums on that basis. 

Further improvements identified 

On-going performance will be discussed, alongside other indicators, at regular meetings with the relevant 

clinical service units and the Healthcare of Tomorrow Programme Board (CQUINs module) and reported 

quarterly via the Quality Account Report to the Board. 

  

Baseline 

period

Baseline 

value

Year 

end 

target

Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 YTD
Qtr 

change

YTD 

Rating

HA_1a Percentage of under 5's receiving a health assessment within timeframe (every 6 months) - In area Qtr4_2012-13 100.0% Increase 100.0% 100.0% -

HA_1b Percentage of under 5's receiving a health assessment within timeframe (every 6 months) - Out of area Qtr4_2012-13 55.6% Increase 55.6% 55.6% -

HA_2a Percentage of 5-18's receiving a health assessment within timeframe (every 12 months) - In area Qtr4_2012-13 75.0% Increase 75.0% 75.0% -

HA_2b Percentage of 5-18's receiving a health assessment within timeframe (every 12 months) - Out of area Qtr4_2012-13 61.5% Increase 61.5% 61.5% -

HA_3a Percentage of under 5's receiving a health assessment within timeframe (every 6 months) - Total Qtr4_2012-13 78.4% Increase 78.4% 78.4% -

HA_3b Percentage of 5-18's receiving a health assessment within timeframe (every 12 months) - Total Qtr4_2012-13 71.7% Increase 71.7% 71.7% -

Increasing the number of assessments carried out for looked after children and young people, from the 

April 2012 baseline

Page 41



 

16 

 

Looking forward: Our quality improvement priorities for 2013-14 

The Board agreed the strategy and the improvement programme priorities for the year 2013-14. NHS Safety 

Thermometer and patient responsiveness will continue to be monitored in the Quarterly Quality Accounts, as 

part of our quality reporting framework.  

The priorities for improvement for TRFT in the year 2013-14 are set out below. Each of the programmes 

supports, directly or indirectly, many of the recommendations arising from the outcomes of the Francis report 

– following issues highlighted surrounding the quality of care provided at the Mid Staffordshire NHS 

Foundation Trust. 

In selecting these programmes, the views of staff were also sought as part of our annual Quality Account staff 

survey. The views of patients and the wider public, encouraged to contribute at the Trust annual general 

meeting, were also taken into account - as were those of our Governors and other agencies. 

The improvement projects will support our aims to provide ‘safe, caring and reliable’ care, and are 

summarised as: 

Quality Projects: 2013-14 (and on-going 2012-13) Improvement Programmes 

Topic 
New or On-

going 
Objectives : 2013-14 

1. SAFE 

Never Events On-going Zero Never Events 

Death certification 

process 
New 

To increase the number of recorded causes of death in the 

electronic discharge summary, from April 2013 baseline.  

2. CARING 

Dementia New/on-going 

To deliver the locally agreed improvement targets for early 

identification of patients with dementia  – Find, Assess and 

Refer (F.A.I.R) -  in relation to all admitted patients aged 75 

years and older by April 2014 

3. RELIABLE 

NICE Quality Standards 

Dementia 
New/on-going 

Meeting NICE quality standards for Dementia (as part of 

programme above) 

Intra Operative fluid 

management 
New 

To increase the number of patients receiving IOFM to the 

standards stipulated in National guidance, from baseline April 

2013. 

Improving data quality  New 
Improve from our current position on the National and Regional 

benchmarking statistics by April 2014. 

 

Priority 1:  Patient Safety: (CQUIN pre-qualification indicator), Intra-operative Fluid management (IOFM) 

How and who collects the Data? 

The data for this programme will be collected via the patient administration and electronic patient record 

codes and collated by the information department. Additional data involving the NHS Safety Thermometer will 

be collected via our monthly data collection method. 

Page 42



 

17 

 

Why is it important to us? 

Intra-operative fluid management is an important aspect of care for patients who are at high risk during 

certain operative procedures.  Although we have implemented specific management for patients undergoing 

colorectal surgery we now need to expand this to other high risk operations as set out in the national IOFM 

standards framework and as part of our pre-qualification for CQUINs payment. 

Over the previous years we have also included a fluid management performance indicator within the ward 

quality monitoring regime, to ensure that the care of patients undergoing surgical and medical procedures is 

optimal. Although we have shown significant improvement in our assessment of fluid balance on patients we 

still feel we have areas that we can improve further.  We have therefore included the whole care pathway for 

patients undergoing surgery for inclusion in our improvement programmes this year and in addition fluid 

balance in the ward setting.  

What are we going to do? 

We will initially carry out a baseline assessment of procedures against the national standards and set out an 

improvement trajectory and gain agreement from our Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) on the target. 

Following agreement we will ensure that we have the correct equipment to undertake the monitoring of all 

relevant surgical patients and also put in place data collection methods to ensure we can monitor progress 

during the year. We will also assign and resource a project lead, working within the anaesthetics and surgical 

clinical service unit to ensure implementation of activities. 

In addition we will continue to monitor fluid balance assessment and actions as part of the additional 

monitoring we undertake whilst conducting our NHS Safety Thermometer surveys.  A project team will be 

established to ensure that all aspects of the work are reported and any non-compliance, issues or good 

practice is feedback to relevant wards and surgical areas. 

How and where will the progress be reported? 

The patient safety committee will have this as a standard agenda item for monitoring issues via the project 

group.  Progress will be reported as per our usual quarterly quality accounts monitoring report all information 

and any escalations will be reported to the Board via these mechanisms. 

Board Sponsor:  

Chief Nurse 

Implementation Leads:   

Lynne Betts Theatres Manager - Quality Improvement Lead: Patient Safety Team  

Ian Wigley - Governance Lead: Anaesthetics and Theatres   

Programme manager: Fiona Middleton - Associate Director of Patient Safety and Risk  

Priority 2:  Supporting the Quality Agenda: Improving Data Quality 

How and who collects the Data? 

All of our commissioning targets, including 18 week cancer targets, will form the basis for monitoring the 

outcomes of our data quality improvement programme, in addition we will also aim to improve our depth of 

Page 43



 

18 

 

coding and take forward the action plan based on the outcomes from our PbR audit (Audit Commission), see 

the Data Quality section in part 2b for details. 

Why is it important to us? 

During the year the implementation of the Electronic Patient Record (EPR) has brought significant challenges 

in terms of data quality.  Many of the data quality issues relate to user error and training issues in entering 

data into the system. Other errors have occurred because of the way in which the system has been configured. 

This has clearly had an impact on our financial activity payments from the commissioners and has limited the 

amount of information we have in terms of some of our performance indicators, i.e. 18 week waits, cancer 

targets.  

Given heightened public scrutiny of the Trust, as a result of some high profile press coverage during the year in 

relation to EPR implementation – the Trust believes that focussing attention on publicly available data quality 

indicators will aid in restoring confidence in the Trust’s administrative support systems. 

What are we going to do? 

Following a review of the system and identification of the issues affecting data quality we have developed 

within our new Health Informatics Directorate a Data Quality function. This team will develop an improvement 

plan against all data quality issues. This will involve training of users, changes in the system configuration and 

improved feedback reports to users and to the team to enable actions to be taken in a timely manner. 

We will monitor this situation closely during the year in our progress report s to CCG and Monitor. 

How and where will the progress be reported? 

We will report via our Quality accounts quarterly report. The reports will also be discussed at the monthly 

Corporate Informatics Committee and also be provided to CCG and to Monitor on a monthly update report. 

Board Sponsor:  

Dr Patricia Bain - Executive Health Informatics Officer 

Implementation Leads:   

TBC - Director of Informatics & Intelligence 

Programme managers: 

Ian Stinson - Business Intelligence Development Manager 

Leilei Zhu – Clinical Information Development Manager 

Priority 3:  Clinical Effectiveness: Review of death certification 

How and who collects the Data? 

The death certification process is managed via two main teams, the patient service department who are 

responsible for registration of deaths and the Chief Medical Officer in terms of overall responsibility for the 

clinical directors of each clinical service unit clinical effectiveness leads. The coding department also have a 

role to play in ensuring the cause of death is coded accurately on the system 

Why is it important to us? 

Page 44



 

19 

 

Death certification is important in terms of making sure that for the patient’s family and carers the accurate 

cause of death is recorded. It is also important to ensure that our mortality statistics reflect accurately what 

our patient mortality is caused by, to enable us to focus on areas that may be outliers to ensure that there are 

no clinical reasons for this. In terms of the coronial process it is also important that we ensure all deaths are 

recorded accurately to assist the coroner. 

During the year we had a Care Quality Commission  (CQC) alert requesting information in relation to what 

appeared to be a higher than expected death rate for septicaemia.  Following investigation, junior doctors 

recording of cause of death was found to be inaccurate and in some instances the coding of the cause of death 

was inaccurate. This brings reputational issues to the Trust as well as focusing our efforts in areas that do not 

appear to be clinically significant. 

What are we going to do? 

All clinical directors will be asked to review their process for death certification, in particular the supervision of 

junior doctors. The PGME department will be asked to review their training programmes in relation to death 

certification. In addition, the electronic discharge summary has already been amended to ensure we collate 

the cause of death in addition to the primary diagnosis to ensure that coders can more accurately record this 

information. 

How and where will the progress be reported? 

The quarterly Quality Account report will be used to show improvements with this programme, the report is 

shared with CSUs and the Board. In addition the death certification programme will be included as a standard 

agenda item for the Clinical Effectiveness & Research Group (CEG), progress on this programme will be 

reported by the Clinical Effectiveness lead. Any escalations will be via CSEC. 

Board Sponsor:  

Executive Medical Officer   

Implementation Leads:   

Clinical Effectiveness leads in all CSUs, Clinical Directors, Coding Manager, PGME Director 

Programme managers: Clinical Effectiveness lead identified to lead on programme, Coding Manager 

 

Priority 4:  Patient Experience - Dementia  

How and who collects the Data? 

The data for this programme will be collected via the Chief Nurse senior nursing group as part of the 

requirement under our CQUINs programme.  

Why is it important to us? 

Improving the care of patients who suffer Dementia and ensuring that they are assessed and signposted to the 

appropriate care pathway is vitally important for these patients quality of experience and treatment.  During 

the year we have made good progress in setting up data collection methods to ensure we have a much better 

understanding of where we need to improve our care. This information and the additional information 

required under our CQUIN target will be used to identify improvement programmes during the year. 

Page 45



 

20 

 

What are we going to do? 

On establishing a baseline position we will then develop appropriate improvement programmes and continued 

monitoring via our various mechanisms e.g. Nurse Walk arounds, Nursing Accreditation Schemes. 

How and where will the progress be reported? 

Progress will be reported to the Patient Experience Committee and any escalations to CSEC. The information 

will also be reported via the quarterly Quality Account report and to the Board. 

Board Sponsor:   

Chief Nurse  

Implementation Leads:   

Group Nurses, Matrons 

Programme managers: Named Senior Group Nurse 

Page 46



 

21 

 

2B Statement of assurance: The quality of services provided 

Review of services and income generated 

 

During 2012-13 The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust provided and/or sub-contracted 25 Acute and 40 

Community relevant Health Services. 

 

TRFT has reviewed all the data available to them on the quality of the care in 65 of these relevant health 

services. 

 

The income generated by the relevant health services reviewed in 2012-13 represents 68.6% of the total 

income generated from the provision of relevant health services by The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust for 

2012-13. 

 

Clinical Audit Activity 

 

During 2012-13, 38 national clinical audits and 6 national confidential enquiries covered relevant health 

services that The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust provides. During 2012-13 TRFT participated in 97.4% 

national clinical audits and 100.0% national confidential enquiries of the national clinical audit and national 

confidential enquiries which it was eligible to participate in.  

 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that TRFT was eligible to participate in, during 

2012-13 are as follows: 

 Number of audits relevant to services 

provided by The Rotherham NHS Foundation 

Trust  

Percentage of audits participated in 

National Clinical Audits 38 97% 

National Confidential Enquiries 

National Confidential Enquiries into Patient 

Outcome & Death (NCEPOD) 

4 100% 

Confidential Enquiries into Maternal & Child 

Health  

2 100% 

National Confidential Inquiry into Suicide and 

Homicide by People with Mental Illness 

(NCI/NCISH) 

0 NA 

 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that TRFT participated in during 2012-13 are as 

follows: 

Title  Eligible Participation % Cases 
submitted 

Report published 
2012 (calendar 

year) 

Report 
Reviewed 

Action (s) to improve 
quality of care 

Acute 

Adult community acquired 
pneumonia (British 
Thoracic Society) 

Yes Yes Data collection 
ongoing until 
May 2013 

Yes Yes Incorporate into junior doctor 
teaching sessions the 
importance of chest x-ray 
prior to giving antibiotics, 
calculating CURB65 score; 
considering the need for 
critical care involvement 
where CURB65 4-5; and 
giving antibiotics promptly on 
confirmation of diagnosis.  

Adult critical care (Case 
Mix Programme – ICNARC 
CMP) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes  Yes Following review of the audit 
report, no actions were 
required. 

Page 47



 

22 

 

Title  Eligible Participation % Cases 
submitted 

Report published 
2012 (calendar 

year) 

Report 
Reviewed 

Action (s) to improve 
quality of care 

Emergency use of oxygen 
(British Thoracic Society) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Following review of the audit 
report, no actions were 
required. 

National Joint Registry 
(NJR) 

Yes Yes 98%  
(2012) 

 
100% 

(2013 to date) 

Yes Yes TRFT are currently using the 
recommended implants for 
hip and knee replacements 
and are in line with other 
Trusts regarding the levels of 
types of implant used. 
Therefore no further actions 
are required. 

Non-invasive ventilation - 
adults (British Thoracic 
Society) 

Yes Yes Data collection 
ongoing until 
May 2013 

Yes Yes Develop a patient information 
leaflet to improve 
engagement with patient and 
carers in treatment plans. 
Redesign the BiPAP referral 
form and update the hospital 
CPAP policy to include all 
CPAP patients to be 
transferred to a level 2 care 
facility within 1 hour of 
request. 

Patient Outcome and 
Death (NCEPOD) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes The Resuscitation Committee 
is to set a formal target for 
the number of cardiac arrests 
leading to CPR attempts. The 
trust is taking forward work 
on the recommendation for 
Consultant review of all acute 
admissions within 12 hours of 
admission.  Patient location 
is not routinely recorded on 
the medical history sheets in 
the patient case notes – to 
discuss at the Clinical 
Effectiveness & Research 
Group. 

Renal colic (College of 
Emergency Medicine) 

Yes Yes 100% No NA NA 

Severe trauma (Trauma 
Audit & Research Network) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Improve adherence to the 
fractured rib pathway through 
reminders in newsletters and 
training for junior doctors. 
Review and amend the Trust 
chest trauma guideline 
specifically for A&E. Update 
local guidelines for head 
injury in line with NICE 
guidelines for patients on 
Warfarin/Low Molecular 
Weight Heparin. 

Blood and Transport 

Intra-thoracic 
transplantation (NHSBT UK 
Transplant Registry) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

National Comparative Audit 
of Blood Transfusion:  
a) O neg blood use  
 
 
 
b) Medical use of blood  
 
c) Bedside transfusion  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Yes 
 
 
 

Yes 
 

Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

No data 
collection 
12/13 

 
Yes  
 

No data 
collection 
12/13 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

No data 
collection 
12/13 

 
95% 
 

No data 
collection 
12/13 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

No 
 
 
 

No 
 

Yes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

NA 
 
 
 

NA 
 

Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
NA 
 
 
 
NA 
 
Review Patient Identification 
policy. Develop Patient 
information leaflet ‘Do you 
know who I am’ and 
discharge information so that 
areas other than 
haematology ward can 
provide patients with contact 

Page 48



 

23 

 

Title  Eligible Participation % Cases 
submitted 

Report published 
2012 (calendar 

year) 

Report 
Reviewed 

Action (s) to improve 
quality of care 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
d) Platelet use  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No data 
collection 
12/13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No data 
collection 
12/13   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NA 

details in the event they feel 
unwell after a transfusion. 
Ensure new EPR system 
uses the same core set of 
patient identifiers as all other 
IT systems.   
 
 
NA 

Potential donor audit (NHS 
Blood & Transplant) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Complete and ratify all organ 
and tissue donation policies. 
Develop a teaching 
programme accessible to all 
clinical staff involved in care 
of the dying patient.   

Cancer 

Bowel cancer (NBOCAP) Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Ensure patients with rectal 
cancer are made aware of 
the impact and length of time 
they may have a stoma pre-
operatively.  Review 
radiotherapy rates for 
patients with rectal cancers. 

Head and neck oncology 
(DAHNO) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Discuss the feasibility of 
increasing the working hours 
of the Clinical Nurse 
Specialist. 

Lung cancer (NLCA) Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Work with neighbouring trusts 
to improve the data 
completeness for treatment 
activity. Review records of 
patients who did not have a 
CT scan prior to 
bronchoscopy. Improve 
access to a dedicated 
thoracic surgeon at the 
Rotherham MDT to ensure 
equitable access to surgery.  

Oesophago-gastric cancer 
(NAOGC) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Following review of the audit 
report, no actions were 
required. 

 
Heart 

Acute coronary syndrome 
or Acute myocardial 
infarction (MINAP) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Work is required to improve 
referrals of NSTEMI patients 
to Cardiology. 

Adult cardiac surgery audit 
(ACS) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Cardiac arrhythmia (HRM) Yes Yes 100% No NA NA 

Congenital heart disease 
(Paediatric cardiac surgery) 
(CHD) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Coronary angioplasty No NA NA NA NA NA 

Heart failure (HF) Yes Yes 78.8% based 
on HES data 

 
100% based 
on primary 
ICD10 codes 

Yes Yes Ensure patients are given a 
follow up appointment and 
contact numbers for heart 
failure specialist nurses both 
in hospital and community.  

National Cardiac Arrest 
Audit (NCAA) 

Yes No NA NA NA Non participation due to cost. 

Peripheral vascular surgery 
(VSGBI Vascular Surgery 
Database, NVD) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Pulmonary hypertension 
(Pulmonary Hypertension 
Audit) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Page 49



 

24 

 

Title  Eligible Participation % Cases 
submitted 

Report published 
2012 (calendar 

year) 

Report 
Reviewed 

Action (s) to improve 
quality of care 

Long term conditions 

Adult asthma (British 
Thoracic Society) 

Yes Yes 100% 
 

Yes Yes Respiratory Clinical Nurse 
Specialist to train link nurses 
on wards B1 and A2 and 
work with A&E to develop 
training programme.  Develop 
an asthma protocol. 

Asthma Deaths (NRAD) Yes Yes 100% No NA NA 

Bronchiectasis (British 
Thoracic Society) 

Yes Yes 100%  
(sample 
agreed) 

 

Yes Yes Establish a specialist 
bronchiectasis clinic at 
Breathing Space and develop 
a local protocol to support 
clinical practice. 

Diabetes (Adult) ND(A), 
includes National Diabetes 
Inpatient Audit (NADIA) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Introduce new pathways for 
patients attending A&E and 
Medical Admissions Unit. 
Provide education for nurses 
on diabetes ward and 
consider rolling this out to 
staff on other wards following 
evaluation. Implement the 
Think Glucose programme. 
Recruit an inpatient specialist 
nurse, and ensure specialist 
diabetes team attend ward 
rounds on a regular basis. 
Ensure referrals into the MDT 
are triaged by the whole 
team, and reviewed by a 
diabetes consultant daily. 
Specialist podiatrist to 
provide education on the 
diabetes ward. 

Diabetes (Paediatric) 
(NPDA) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes The proposal to implement 
service changes relating to 
the Best Practice Tariff are 
being worked towards and 
appointments will continue to 
be managed within CYPHS.  
Investigate the use of 
SystmOne for data collection.  

Inflammatory bowel 
disease (IBD) 
Includes: Paediatric 
Inflammatory Bowel 
Disease Services  

Yes Yes Data collection 
ongoing until 
December 

2013 

Yes Yes Investigate increased 
allowance for IBD Dietitian 
and increased access to 
counsellors and psychologist. 
Provide education to IBD 
clinicians on rescue therapy, 
bone protection system and 
referrals for smoking 
cessation. Provide education 
to ward staff on referrals to 
IBD nurse, to increase input 
for inpatients. 

Pain database No NA NA NA NA NA 

Renal replacement therapy 
(Renal Registry) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Renal transplantation 
(NHSBT UK Transplant 
Registry) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Mental Health 

National audit of 
psychological therapies 
(NAPT) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Prescribing in mental 
health services (POMH) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Suicide and homicide in 
mental health (NCISH) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Older people 

Carotid interventions audit 
(CIA) 

No NA NA NA NA NA 

Page 50



 

25 

 

Title  Eligible Participation % Cases 
submitted 

Report published 
2012 (calendar 

year) 

Report 
Reviewed 

Action (s) to improve 
quality of care 

Fractured neck of femur Yes Yes 100% No NA NA 

Hip fracture database 
(NHFD) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Following review of the audit 
report, no actions were 
required. 

National dementia audit 
(NAD) 

Yes Yes 100% No NA NA 

Parkinson's disease 
(National Parkinson's Audit) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Ensure information packs are 
available and medical teams 
make appropriate referrals to 
the Nurse Specialist.  All 
patients to receive a sitting 
standing blood pressure 
measurement in clinic. 
Education for Nurse 
Specialist with regards to 
identifying and referring those 
at risk of osteoporosis to the 
Bone Health Team.  
Occupational Therapist’s to 
investigate the use of 
standardised assessments 
and trial these.  Make greater 
use of the Quick Reference 
Cards for Physiotherapy and 
trial new outcome measures.  
Speech and Language 
Therapists to consider 
making audio recordings and 
documenting whether the 
patient is assessed during an 
‘on/off’ period.  

Sentinel Stroke 
National Audit Programme 
(SSNAP)  
a) Sentinel stroke audit  
b) Stroke improvement 
national audit project  

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Ensure Stroke Unit beds are 
used and prioritised, and 
adopt a policy that non-stroke 
patients on the Stroke Unit 
should be managed as any 
other medical outlier. Discuss 
with Radiology regarding 
providing CT scans for those 
patients meeting NICE 
criteria for urgent imaging, 
and the importance of 
imagining within 1 hour. 
Collect and review data on 
patients missing the 1 hour 
target.  

Other 

Elective surgery (National 
PROMs Programme) 

Yes Yes 59.1%  
(data to 

September 
2012) 

Yes Yes Review participation rates 
and circulate results to 
relevant nursing staff who are 
involved in recruiting patients.  
Ensure patients are aware of 
the requirement to complete 
a follow up questionnaire post 
discharge.  Investigate 
obtaining access to and the 
analysis of local data.   

Women’s & Children’s Health 

Maternal infant and 
perinatal (MBRRACE-UK)*  

Yes Yes 100% No NA NA 

Child Health (CHR-UK) Yes Yes Data collection 
ongoing until 
April 2013 

No NA NA 

Epilepsy 12 audit 
(Childhood Epilepsy) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Referrals to the Epilepsy 
Nurse Specialist need to be 
increased – all staff are to be 
reminded of this requirement 
and referral criteria to be 
circulated. A checklist is 
being developed for first 
clinical assessment and a 

Page 51



 

26 

 

Title  Eligible Participation % Cases 
submitted 

Report published 
2012 (calendar 

year) 

Report 
Reviewed 

Action (s) to improve 
quality of care 

protocol for children with 
convulsive seizure disorder.  
Work is taking place to 
ensure all children are seen 
within a dedicated Epilepsy 
clinic wherever possible.   

Neonatal intensive and 
special care (NNAP) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Investigate patient 
experience and opinion in 
relation to breastfeeding and 
ensure all staff are 
appropriately trained on the 
importance of breastfeeding 
(particularly for pre-term 
babies). Look at the 
possibility of earlier discharge 
for pre-term breastfeeding 
babies where the only need 
to stay in hospital is 
occasional tube feed. Work 
closely with Ophthalmology 
colleagues to increase the 
number of ROP screens at 
the appropriate time.  
Improve data completeness 
by liaising with junior doctors 
and community colleagues to 
raise awareness of the audit 
requirements, in particular 
data relating to 
encephalopathy and follow 
up.  

Paediatric asthma (British 
Thoracic Society) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Continue to work with EPR 
team to ensure all relevant 
audit data is routinely 
recorded.   

Paediatric fever (College of 
Emergency Medicine) 

Yes Yes 100% No NA NA 

Paediatric intensive care 
(PICANet) 

No No NA NA NA NA 

Paediatric pneumonia 
(British Thoracic Society) 

Yes Yes 100% Yes Yes Teaching sessions will be 
delivered to ensure the 
continued implementation of 
the new BTS guidelines on 
the management of 
Paediatric Pneumonia.   

 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that TRFT participated in, and for which data 

collection was completed during 2012-13, are listed in the table above alongside the number of cases 

submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of registered cases required by the terms of 

that audit or enquiry. 

 

The reports of 28 national clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2012-13 and TRFT intends to take 

the actions as listed in the table above to improve the quality of healthcare provided. 

 

The reports of 214 local clinical audits were reviewed by the provider in 2012-13 and TRFT intends to take the 

following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided: 

Clinical Service 
Unit/ Foundation 
Unit 

Audit Title Reviewed Action to improve quality of care 

A&E Anaphylaxis Yes Write anaphylaxis guidelines including the use of tryptase.  Discuss referrals 
to Allergy Clinic with Paediatrics. Produce a leaflet for patients following an 
anaphylactic reaction. Update Emergency Department guidelines. 

A&E Audit of child protection 
questions 

Yes Ensure complete and accurate completion of the mandatory questions for the 
paediatric patients. 

Page 52



 

27 

 

A&E Audit of Emergency 
admissions from Falls 

Yes No actions required.  

A&E Re-audit of admissions 
following Fall 

Yes No actions required.  

A&E Sedation Checklist audit Yes Highlight the importance of correctly completing the checklist, particularly the 
discharge information.  Increase documentation of evidence that verbal 
consent has been obtained. 

Adult Audit of Key Performance 
Indicators for the 
Diabetes Specialist Team 

Yes Feedback the results to staff to ensure all patients receive an annual HbA1c, 
Microalbumin, eGFR and smoking status check and urine dipstick at every 
appointment.  Ensure all sections of the annual review template are 
completed.  Investigate the feasibility of using an electronic system 
(SystmOne) for recording patient contacts. 

Adult - CASH Prescribing of oral 
contraception 

Yes No actions required.  

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

An audit of clinical record 
keeping for dental 
treatment under general 
anaesthesia at Doncaster 
Royal Infirmary (DRI) 

Yes Produce standardised dental General Anaesthetic form.  Pilot General 
Anaesthetic form locally (DRI). Use form throughout Rotherham Foundation 
Trust Community Dental Service.   

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Audit into Rotherham 
Residential Dental 
Screening Service 2008-
2012 

Yes Continue to increase percentage of residents screened by reinforcing the 
importance of screening to care home staff.  Develop fluoride varnish 
programme.  

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Audit into the inclusion of 
FP17DC form in the 
patient's notes 

Yes Ensure surgeries are stocked weekly with all relevant documentation to make 
the consent process easier.  A copy of the FP17 DC form along with the 
consent form should be given to the patient/parent/carer at the appointment 
when treatment moves into band 2 or 3. 

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Audit of compliance with 
NICE CG112 for sedation 
in children and young 
people 

Yes Modify current proforma to include a tick box to record that verbal information 
has been provided regarding the technique, alternatives and risks/benefits. 
Provide all staff delivering inhalation sedation with update on the technique, 
including the need for pre-assessment, every two years. 
Check all clinics have a set of functional weighing scales and if not these to 
be ordered.  Develop a proforma to record pre-inhalation sedation 
information for all patients.  Develop written patient/carer information leaflets 
regarding inhalation sedation technique, alternatives and risks/benefits. 

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Clinical audit of the 
quality of radiographs 
taken in Doncaster 
Community Dental 
Service 2011 

Yes Introduce a new system to ensure consistency of justification and reporting, 
such as when and how to record.  In view of the use of digital radiographs at 
the Flying Scotsman Centre, modify the method of audit, particularly relating 
to developing problems.   A named Radiation Protection Supervisor should 
be designated to oversee a number of specific operators. 

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Compliance with referral 
protocol for extraction of 
lower wisdom teeth in the 
dental sedation service 

Yes Write to referring dentists informing them of the results of the audit and the 
requirement to include a good quality radiograph with their referral letter of 
the wisdom teeth that require extraction. 

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Pre-assessment of 
children prior to dental 
extractions under GA 

Yes Present findings and discuss options for changes to current practice to 
improve service and comply with current guidelines  

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Retention and discharge 
of Paediatric Dentistry 
Patients within Barnsley 
CDS 

Yes Discussion at next departmental meeting to ensure all members are adhering 
to protocol. Amend local protocol for correspondence to ensure referrer 
receives letter of acceptance and discharge and NHS Constitution letter 
pledge is met.   

Adult - 
Community 
Dental 

Service review of 
outcomes and treatment 
provided for patients 
referred by General 
Dental Practitioners 
under the behaviour 
management category 

Yes Provide targeted training to General Dental Practitioners regarding diagnosis 
of dental caries in paediatric patients. 

Adult - Ear Care 
& Audiology 

Treatment of Chronic 
Otitis Media 

Yes Discuss the findings and recommendations with the specialist nurses at the 
clinical supervision meeting in order to: standardise patient assessment and 
diagnosis; ensure appropriate treatment is prescribed with accurate 
documentation; and ensure referrals to ENT are arranged appropriately 
according to clinical need. 

Adult - Nursing Audit of home delivery of 
continence products and 
service user experience 

Yes Standardise telephone response to patient requests for products.  

Adult - Nursing Audit on NICE Guidance 
on the use of long acting 
analogue insulins for the 
treatment of diabetes 

Yes Present findings at Clinical Network meeting to agree further action required 
in order to improve compliance with the guidance.  

Adult - Nursing Liverpool Care Pathway 
Audit End of Life Care 

Yes Share findings with staff to ensure they are aware of the information that 
should be recorded on the end of life template - disseminate end of life 
template and results of audit to all Matrons and District Nurses who will 
discuss with other team members.   

Adult -Community 
Dental 

Antibiotic prescribing 
habits of community 
dentists in Doncaster 

Yes Consider reviewing diffuse swellings after 2-3 days and discontinuing the 
antibiotic if the swelling has resolved and the temperature is normal. 

Page 53



 

28 

 

Anaesthetics An audit of pain relief 
following hip and knee 
replacement - what is 
happening now? 

Yes Investigate the usefulness of the infiltration in hip replacement.  Theatres to 
have a folder with all pain team policies and guidelines including the hip and 
knee guideline.  Investigate how much influence the spinal diamorphine has 
on post-operative nausea and vomiting.  Look at pre-printed analgesia drug 
cards.  All surgeons who use a local anaesthetic block to use the premixed 
syringes. 

Anaesthetics Audit of information 
received on analgesia 
and anaesthesia in 
labour 

Yes Information leaflets to be provided to all women antenatally in all areas - 
leaflets to be ordered and distributed. Development and production of DVD.  
Display posters in all clinical areas with details of Obstetric Anaesthesia 
Association website/App available to download free of charge.  

Anaesthetics Audit of 
thromboprophylaxis given 
to surgical patients 
compared to NICE 
guidelines 

Yes Discussion regarding whether Anaesthetists should be considering VTE risk 
as part of peri-operative care. Feedback results to VTE steering group.   

Anaesthetics Awake shoulder Surgery Yes Feedback the audit information to the orthopaedic surgeons.  Make GPs 
aware of this service. Reduce waiting on all day lists by staggering the 
admission times for some patients on the all-day list. 

Anaesthetics Day case ACL 
reconstruction (ACLr) 

Yes Anaesthetists who do lists with ACLr need to be aware of potential to use 
Prilocaine spinal.  Ensure ACLr are listed on morning lists, scheduling needs 
to do this with the surgeons support.  Explore being able to support ACLr 
surgery being done later in the day, Physiotherapy have revised their rotas to 
offer later reviews. 

Anaesthetics Day case interscalene 
blocks 

Yes Consider the use of ice packs post operatively.  Discuss TTO regime and 
consider guideline.   

Anaesthetics Delayed discharges from 
theatre recovery 

Yes No actions required.  

Anaesthetics Emergency drug use 
audit 

Yes Increase awareness among Anaesthetists through audit presentation - 
highlight the expense to draw multiple drugs with similar actions.   

Anaesthetics Enhanced recovery for 
hip and knee arthroplasty 

Yes No actions required. 

Anaesthetics Fasting times in children Yes Inform maxillo facial team that IV fluids should be considered if the patient 
has oral injuries / dental abscess.  Inform Children's Ward Manager and Day 
Surgery Ward Manager that clear fluids should be actively offered up to 2 
hours before surgery, for both urgent and scheduled children. Ensure clear 
communication from theatre to the wards if there is going to be a delay in the 
emergency/trauma lists - Emergency Coordinator and Trauma Coordinator to 
do this in discussion with concerned Anaesthetist.  Review pre-
assessment/instructions given for inpatient dental patients - speak to Debbie 
Timms and Jocelyn Lee. 

Anaesthetics Fracture neck of femur 
(#NOF) study to improve 
care of #NOF 

Yes No actions required.  

Anaesthetics Post Partum 
Haemorrhage & cell 
salvage audit 

Yes Purchase 2 cell salvage machines: 1 for Delivery Suite, and 1 for main 
theatre - discuss purchase at CSU 

Anaesthetics Preoperative testing and 
its compliance with NICE 

Yes Local guidelines for pre-assessment nurses on Perioperative Blood Tests 
and ECGs.  Regulate testing of patients against the recommendations of 
NICE.  Increase awareness of the importance of accurate documentation of 
Perioperative Tests requested in Surgical Care Pathway 

Anaesthetics Preoperative testing the 
routine use of pre-
operative tests for 
elective surgery 

Yes Increase awareness of the importance of accurate documentation of 
perioperative tests requested in Surgical Care Pathway. Regulate testing of 
patients against the recommendations of NICE.  Produce Local guidelines for 
pre-assessment nurses on perioperative blood tests and ECGs 

Anaesthetics Re-audit of Compliance 
of RFT with the National 
NAP4 project for airway 
management in theatres. 

Yes Stock obstetric recovery with basic airway equipment - discuss with 
Operating Department Practitioners who cover Labour Ward.  Ensure 
availability of Oxford Pillow for A&E - liaise with A&E Liaison Anaesthetist. 
Consider the need for Manujet/Aintree catheter in A&E.  

Anaesthetics Review of patients re-
routed to day surgery due 
to bed pressures 

Yes Continue to collect and analyse data. 

Anaesthetics The frequency and extent 
of hypotension following 
a subarachnoid block, for 
elective surgery, in the 
Recovery room. 

Yes Ensure primary anaesthetics are informed when their patients become 
hypotensive by introducing a new protocol for Recovery staff.  Ensure 
Anaesthetics complete the recovery section on the anaesthetic chart. 

Anaesthetics Unplanned Admissions 
from Day Surgery 2011 

Yes Anaesthetists should ensure post-operative analgesics and antiemetics are 
prescribed and review patients.  Data forms to be completed for patients who 
go to ward straight from main theatre. Data on patients who are rerouted to 
inpatient on admission to TAU to be collected. Consider later opening times 
for day case. Review of Urology Day cases undergoing stent/stone surgery 
Review of Day case laparoscopic cholecystectomies. 

CYP Service An Audit of Health 
Assessments for Looked 
After Children 

Yes Compile Practice Guidance for Health Practitioners in order to ensure the 
completion of Health Assessments within acceptable timeframes. Compile a 
training programme specifically around Review Health Assessments and 
their quality/completion in relation to the Practice Guidance and provide 
training regarding the health needs of Looked After Children and Young 

Page 54



 

29 

 

People to support the completion of Review Health Assessments. 

CYP Service Audit of compliance with 
speech therapy 
programmes in special 
schools 

Yes Contact the school to recommend that they have a team of staff that are 
responsible for raising the profile of the fundamental nature of communication 
across all learning environments and to recommend that Speech and 
Language Therapy (SLT) are part of this. Develop a new care pathway and 
offer formal training on this.  Meet with school management staff to illustrate 
the new care pathway and recommend that information is cascaded to all 
staff members. Recommend that all children known to SLT have a 
communication target that has been agreed with the Therapist and is 
delivered across the curriculum as part of their Individual Education Plan. 

CYP Service Audit of Consent (2012) Yes Amend current generic food challenge document and ensure this is 
distributed at time of consent.  Re-audit performance - add SCBU consent 
audit to 2013-14 audit plan. 

CYP Service Audit of data input into 
BadgerNet for the 
National Neonatal Audit 
Programme 

Yes Quick reference guidance to be made easily accessible. Raise awareness of 
importance of data entry and how to enter data by using a short hand out 
guide at induction.  Liaise with the NNAP nurse for the network regarding a 
training session for the junior doctors.  

CYP Service Audit of documentation Yes Improve record keeping - Doctors to sign front sheet on records. 

CYP Service Audit of Handover 
(NCEPOD) 

Yes Explore updating computer in sigma room. Speak to radiology regarding the 
availability of a PACS box on children’s ward to view images.  Consider 
implementing an 'education book/log' where topics are noted to be presented 
at a later date.  

CYP Service Audit of Lumbar 
Puncture/Infection 
Screening Guidelines 

Yes Improve documentation of informed consent by developing lumbar puncture 
pack for doctors to use when lumbar puncture is planned.  Pack to include 
information sheet to be given to parents at time of consent.  Weekly feedback 
to be initiated regarding antibiotics duration.   

CYP Service Audit of NICE Guidance 
on Looked After Children 

Yes Remind Social Care of the need for paperwork to be sent prior to/for Looked 
After Children medicals 

CYP Service Audit of Paediatric 
Resuscitation (NCEPOD) 

Yes Recommend dedicated Paediatric Resus trolley, clearly labelled and based 
on model in HDU.  Check availability of drug kardex.  Discuss availability of 
ENT staff.  Junior doctors to visit A&E during induction walk-around to ensure 
familiarity with A&E resus environment.  Circulate information on best 
practice to improve documentation.  Emphasise the importance of completing 
audit forms and update the current de-briefing guidelines to ensure includes 
the requirement to complete resus audit forms. 

CYP Service Audit of Paediatric 
Resuscitation (NCEPOD) 
- Aug 2012 

Yes Implement immediate debrief regarding any issues from Resus/Fast Bleep.  
Prostin to be kept on neonatal unit and made up on neonatal unit for use in 
A&E and other areas. Ensure audit proformas are completed to ensure a 
comprehensive record is available.  Improve orientation of staff joining mid 
post (F2 and other Registrars).  Ensure availability of EMBRACE drug kardex 
within A&E.  

CYP Service Audit of safeguarding 
referrals to social care 

Yes Specific training to be incorporated into induction programme for areas where 
high volumes of social care referrals originate. Training to include informing 
parents in the process.  Seek clarification regarding a proposed multi-agency 
form.  Consider the use of the form used on SystmOne if multi –agency 
documentation not imminent 

CYP Service CAU Re-audit Yes Conduct a monthly prospective audit for 2013.  Feed back audit results to 
nursing staff and action plan.  Review notes for ward attenders to CAU to 
reduce numbers of routine attenders.  Explore use of Rapid Access Clinic for 
child protection to reduce number sent to the ward. 

CYP Service Consultant allocation - 
audit of pathway and 
guidelines of patients 

Yes Ward based Consultant to check allocation on ward round. Retraining on 
consultant allocation for staff, especially out of hours. 

CYP Service Epilepsy a re-audit of 
outpatient clinic services 

Yes Ensure children are seen within 2 weeks of referral - advise all Consultants to 
review Choose and Book for suspected Epilepsy and change appointment 
date and time to ensure appropriate priority has been given.  If Anti Epileptic 
Drugs are prescribed the decision to initiate treatment should be made in 
consultation with the individual and family and/or carers - remind all 
Consultants that this discussion should be clearly recorded in the notes.  

CYP Service Intubation and early 
ventilation guideline audit 
(Network audit) 

Yes Explore possibility of changing to volume guided ventilation. Produce simple 
guidelines for the use of volume guided ventilation. Explore training needs for 
nursing staff and investigate network training available. Reduce time needed 
to administer pre-meds by exploring the costs for pre-filled syringes. 

CYP Service Mental Health 
Admissions re-audit 

Yes Liaise with CAMHS regarding the high percentage of patients admitted that 
were already known to mental health services.  Ensure alcohol misuse 
awareness and questions training and core planning has been undertaken. 

CYP Service Processes followed by 
School Nurses and 
Health Visitors prior to 
and subsequent to 
MARAC meetings 

Yes Develop standards for HV/SN for sharing information prior to and following 
MARAC. Review existing MARAC and DASH risk assessment training to 
ensure it clearly addresses issues identified from this audit (identification, 
assessment and referral).  All HV, SN and Area Manger to attend MARAC 
and DASH Risk Assessment Training 
Circulate Domestic Abuse Practice Guidance 2007 to all Band 6&7 HV/SN 
and Area Managers. Review use of SystymOne Alert Protocol and Risk 
Assessment as result of MARAC. Create rolling programme which allows for 
HV/SN to attend and observe MARAC meeting. Training for band 6&7 HV/SN 
to explore their role and responsibility supporting women and children 

Page 55



 

30 

 

discussed at MARAC. Develop SystmOne templates to improve and support 
information gathering and sharing pre and post MARAC meeting. Promote 
names, roles and responsibilities of TRFT MARAC representatives. Re-audit. 

CYP Service Re audit of NICE 
Feverish Child guidelines 

Yes Parents of children with red/amber classification or any for whom clinical 
feels is indicated should have follow-up contact visit from Community 
Children's Nurse as necessary.  Open access for 48 hrs leaflet should be 
developed and given to any child with fever who is discharged from CAU 
Leaflet on Temperature Control should be revised to include all parent 
information advised by NICE CG47.  Discharge checklist to be revised to 
include tick box for leaflet given.  All Staff to be reminded about importance of 
documentation of all basic observations, discussions and reasons to do / not 
do investigations  

CYP Service Re-audit of NICE 
guidelines on urine 
infections in children 

Yes Raise awareness of departmental guidance -print and laminate copies of the 
guidance and flow diagram and display.  Circulate guidance electronically. 
Raise at staff meeting that when seeing and assessing children on ward 
rounds - there should be a clear plan for children in terms of age, time of 
infection and documentation of what has been done.  Contact Medical 
Physics regarding the cancellation of DMSA investigations without 
Consultant liaison.   

CYP Service RRR015/2010 Prevention 
of over infusion of 
intravenous fluid and 
medicines in neonates 

Yes Consider whether local guidance on fluid management and feeds needs to 
be aligned to network guidance, in conjunction with available evidence 

CYP Service School Nurse 
involvement with children 
subject to child protection 
plans 

Yes Review School Nurse Service in conjunction with current 
guidance/documentation, meet with partner agencies and explore current 
practice in surrounding areas.  Ensure School Nurse case conference reports 
identify health actions which are specific, measurable, achievable, realistic 
and delivered in a timely way (SMART) and develop audit of compliance with 
“Guidance for Writing Report for Case Conference”.  Standardise School 
Nurse record keeping prior to and following case conference to evidence 
assessment, analysis and action planning - review document “Report for 
Initial/Review Case Conference”.  Improve quality of health actions in 
decisions and recommendations to make them SMART - work with 
Independent Case Conference Chairs to update them on the role of School 
Nurse and universal service. 

CYP Service and 
O&G 

Hepatitis B 2010 Yes Improve documentation of discussions antenatally and referrals to 
Hepatologist - emphasise the importance of this to all relevant staff.  Raise 
staff awareness of standards and the need to improve compliance - consider 
providing an education day. Update internal protocol and brief nurses, 
doctors and ward clerks to ensure notifications of vaccinations is correct. 
Explore pharmacy electronically notifying the Child Heath. Consider setting 
up a new system where the immuniser notifies Child Health electronically (in 
addition to red book).  Reconsider pathway for administering 1st Hep B 
vaccinations in hospital.  Ensure complete repeat course recalls can be 
arranged through SystmOne 

CYP Service and 
O&G 

RDS and Early Care 
Audit  

Yes Ensure saturations and heart beat are monitored, monitor to be available for 
every resuscitation on trolley 

Dermatology Audit of Consent 
(Dermatology) 

Yes Circulate a copy of the report and remind everyone to include information on 
anaesthesia and consent for additional use of tissue samples 

Dermatology Audit of monitoring of 
patients on Cyclosporin 
in Dermatology dept 

Yes Design local departmental guidelines.  Keep a copy of the newly 
implemented departmental guidelines in every clinic room as well as being 
accessible via the trust intranet.  Produce an A4 pro-forma for the patient to 
keep and bring to each clinic appointment and also when they see GP.  
Educate stakeholders -relay audit results to all staff in dermatology 
department. To re-audit the same standards once the guidelines and pro-
forma has been implemented to assess for improvement in clinical practice.  

Dermatology Audit of timeliness of 
notification to GPs of a 
diagnosis of skin cancer 

Yes All members of skin cancer MDT to ensure the stamp is put in post MDT and 
filled in when the patient receives diagnosis. Reinforce the need to inform 
GPs within 24 hours - Clinical Nurse Specialist to track when patients coming 
for diagnosis, Outpatient Assistants to alert clinicians. Identify more rare 
cancers on diagnosis and ensure the GP is notified of diagnosis discussion. 

Endoscopy Consent audit Yes Procedure specific consent forms to be developed - a small working group to 
be established and examples from other departments and trusts to be 
considered.  

Endoscopy Number of procedures  Yes No actions required.  

Endoscopy OGD Yes No actions required.  

Endoscopy OGD – GI bleed  Yes No actions required.  

Endoscopy PEG Audit   Yes Use InfoFlex for data on all PEG placements and note review properly. 
Continue education programme 

Endoscopy Unplanned admissions, 
operations within 8 days, 
ventilation, perforation, 
bleeding & 30 day 
mortality (30/7 & 8/7) 

Yes No actions required.  

ENT Audit of Consent (ENT) Yes Improve documentation of when information is given to patients - reminder 
given to all to document when booklet or information sheet given to patient 

Page 56



 

31 

 

ENT Correlation between free-
hand and ultrasound 
guided thyroid FNA 

Yes Discuss the use of a dedicated thyroid cytology request form.  All cyst fluid to 
be sent, not just a representative sample.  Discuss findings with pathologists 
and change preparation technique.   

General Surgery Annual audit of 
Consultant Reviews 
within 24hrs of admission 
(An Acute Problem) 

Yes Remind staff at the next Clinical Effectiveness meeting regarding the 
documentation of timing of reviews. Ensure that evening ward rounds on 
SAU and the new EGS procedures have reduced the number of patients not 
reviewed by a Consultant within 24 hours - re-audit with a larger sample. 

General Surgery Antibiotic prescribing in 
General Surgery 

Yes MRSA swabs need to be taken immediately on admission or as soon as 
possible thereafter, if it is not possible to obtain an MRSA swab and result, 
this should be documented in the notes and microbiology advice sought 
when prescribing antibiotics.  If a previous MRSA status is known, this should 
be documented in the meantime.  It should become standard practice for all 
prescribing doctors to document the indication for treatment on the drug card 
- encourage all doctors to document this on ward rounds. Update any doctor 
who misses August induction with audit findings. F1 doctor to repeat audit 6 
monthly. 

General Surgery Audit of Consent 
(General Surgery) 

Yes Ensure Patient information leaflets are given and documented for common 
procedures such as OGD.  Ensure doctors know which leaflets available and 
where they are stored.  Encourage juniors to consent for photography and 
tissue samples when appropriate - distribute standards handbook.  Establish 
correct procedure for Endoscopists asking about photography during their 
consent process (discuss at the endoscopy users meeting). Re-audit, 
including whether patients' consent has been re-confirmed if procedure 
undertaken on a different date and where consent has been withdrawn.  

General Surgery Comparative audit of 
Sheffield & Doncaster 
Surgery cases for 
Oesophagectomy & 
Gastrectomy. 

Yes No actions required.  

General Surgery Documentation Audit 
(General Surgery) 

Yes Update junior handbook to include a copy of the standards and a copy be 
uploaded to the department shared drive. Investigate the feasibility of having 
the booklet printed. 

General Surgery Re-audit of Accuracy of 
endo-rectal ultrasound in 
rectal cancer staging 

Yes Offer Trans-rectal ultrasound service to Rotherham Patients and monitor 
accuracy. 

General Surgery Re-audit of Antibiotic 
prescribing in General 
Surgery 

Yes MRSA swabs need to be taken immediately on admission or as soon as 
possible thereafter, within 12-24 hours. It should become standard practice 
for all prescribing doctors to document the indication for treatment on the 
drug card - disseminate standards, include information at induction and 
randomly spot check completion at every audit meeting. Upload into the 
department of surgery intranet the relevant guidelines and standards 
expected of antibiotic prescribing documentation into the drug kardex for 
ease of access to all trainees.  Discuss possible changes to the kardex layout 
for antibiotic prescribing:-5 days only, requiring update there after.  Re-audit 
in 4 months.  

General Surgery Re-audit of trans-rectal 
ultrasound scans 

Yes No actions required.  

General Surgery Timely management of 
acute gallstone 
pancreatitis  

Yes Revise Glasgow Pancreatitis Scoring sheet to incorporate time to operate 

General Surgery Use of negative pressure 
wound therapy in the 
management of open 
abdomen 

Yes Designate one named consultant to take the lead on cases of open 
abdomen. Draft guideline for good practice and discuss at Clinical 
Governance and Effectiveness meeting. 

GU Med Outpatient 
Documentation Audit 

Yes History sheets have been changed to include time, and at follow-up 
appointments the notes are stamped ‘time’ as a reminder. 
  

GU Med Uptake of HIV testing and 
reasons for declining 
tests in GU Medicine 

Yes All staff to be made aware that reasons why patients decline tests and risk 
factors should be documented.  Ensure patients who are at high risk and 
decline HIV testing see a health advisor. 

GU Medicine Asymptomatic screening 
by nursing staff in GU 
Medicine department 

Yes All patient notes to include date and time of consultation and signature and 
designation of health care professional - staff to be reminded of this 
requirement.  Nursing staff seeing asymptomatic patients to record the same 
information in Diary.  

GU Medicine Audit of GU med 
department offering 
hepatitis B immunisation 

Yes Amend clinic proforma - insert a box in which the consulting clinician must 
specify whether Hepatitis B immunisation is necessary and if it has been 
offered. 

GU Medicine Audit of PGD use of 
Clotrimazole pessary 

Yes Amend inclusion criteria to be able to treat symptomatic patients when 
microscopy is negative. Amend PGD to include Clotrimazole as second line 
treatment, in the event of patient declining pessary. Include or develop PGD 
for Clotrimazole vaginal cream.  Discuss the documentation of leaflets and 
advice given at Clinical Governance and Effectiveness. Remind nurses, 
health advisors and doctors to sign if medication is given and record in the 
notes and on the drug treatment sheet. Re-audit the administration via a 
PGD within 12 months to re-assess compliance and use of PGD. 

GU Medicine Management of HIV in 
Pregnancy 

Yes Devise new Obstetric data collection proforma of the mother after delivery at 
MDT meeting. Repeat the audit using British HIV Association 2012 
guidelines. 

Page 57



 

32 

 

GU Medicine Patient Group Direction 
Audit for the use of 
Azithromycin in the 
Department of G U 
Medicine 

Yes Amend exclusion criteria adding any known allergy to peanuts to use 
alternative PGD.  

GU Medicine Patient Group Direction 
Audit for the use of 
Doxycycline in the 
Department of G U 
Medicine 

Yes Continue with documenting in PGD audit book – raise awareness at Clinical 
Governance.  Send a copy of the recommendations to the Drugs & 
Therapeutics Committee. Discuss the following at Clinical Governance: 
documentation that verbal and written information has been provided; 
whether referrals have been made to health advisors; medication given under 
PGD; whether allergy status has been checked; last menstrual period, 
contraception and pregnancy risks. Further audit of the administration of 
Doxycycline via a PGD to be carried out in 12 months. 

GU Medicine Patient Group Direction 
Audit for the use of 
Erythromycin in the 
Department of G U 
Medicine 

Yes Remind nursing staff regarding the need to document in the PGD audit book 
when a PGD is given. 1:1 with every nurse prior to signing signature list. Staff 
to be reminded of the need to document the following: Last Menstrual Period, 
Contraception and Pregnancy risks; whether they have referred the patients 
to health adviser; any medication given (within the main body of notes and 
drug kardex); whether a leaflet or verbal information has been provided; 
advice regarding no sex until both treated and 7 days after completion of 
medication; the need for Test of Cure (TOC) at 6 weeks after completion of 
medication and at 36 weeks of pregnancy.  The following will be discussed at 
Clinical Governance/Effectiveness: the need for Erythromycin to be kept as a 
safe option for the use in pregnancy or suspected pregnancy; and diagnosis 
coding of PNC/C4. A re-audit of the administration of Erythromycin via a PGD 
is to be carried out within 12 months to re assess compliance.  

Haematology Documentation Audit Yes Ensure that deletions and alterations are appropriately documented 
Improve recording of time of entry 

Haematology Documentation Audit 
(Haematology) 

Yes Improve documentation of patient first and last names on both sides of the 
page - request ward clerk to use sticker on both sides of each page.  Improve 
documentation when errors are made - discuss with the incoming SpR and 
current CT2 doctors the importance of using a single line to cross out, and 
adding a signature and date to any amendments 

Haematology Infective episodes of 
neutropenic sepsis audit 
(For Better, For Worse?) 

Yes Train staff in the use of PGDs to enable delivery of antibiotics by nursing staff 
whilst awaiting medical review.  Collect Trigger to needle times prospectively 
as a Haematology Quality Indicator. Make pre-emptive ‘antibiotic plan’ formal 
part of ward rounds - add to formal ward round prompt list. 

Integrated 
Medicine  

Adult community 
acquired pneumonia 

Yes Reinforce importance of chest x ray prior to giving antibiotics (unless severe 
disease), calculating CURB65 score, considering the need for critical care 
involvement where CURB65 4-5, and giving antibiotics promptly on 
confirmation of diagnosis. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Alcohol Management Yes Audit alcohol screening on Surgical wards.  Provide education/teaching 
sessions to raise staff awareness. Ensure easier access to withdrawal 
guidelines by uploading to the intranet.  Re-audit performance.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

An audit of the 
pacemaker remote 
monitoring service 2012 

Yes To extend the use of remote monitoring to a greater number of patients 
requiring a premium dual chamber pacemaker, subject to funding by the 
PCT.  Continue to redesign working practices to optimise service provision. 
Audit a larger sample of patients who have a remote monitor in Summer 
2013.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

Anti-pyschotic usage in 
the elderly 

Yes Continue education of medical and nursing staff regarding anti-psychotic 
usage in elderly patients by incorporating into teaching sessions for junior 
doctors and Grand Round. Monitor anti-psychotic usage in elderly patients - 
re-audit in one year.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

Application of TED 
stockings for medical 
inpatients who cannot 
have prophylactic LMWH 

Yes Provide education to junior doctors through their induction programme on the 
importance of correct TEDs prescribing.  Provide education to medical and 
nursing staff on the importance of TEDs application. Provide education to 
medical and nursing staff on the importance of correct documentation of 
TEDs application, and how this should be recorded on the Drug Kardex. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Audit of atrial fibrillation Yes All patients with new onset of atrial fibrillation should have echocardiogram.  
All Patients should be offered a rate or rhythm control strategy and be 
involved in decision-making process.  All Patients should be assessed for risk 
of stroke & given thromboprophylaxis according to the stroke risk 
stratification algorithm. The reason for not giving appropriate 
thromboprophylaxis should be clearly recorded.  All Patients with atrial 
fibrillation should be followed up at 1 month and 6 months.  On each visit 
rhythm should be reassessed by electrocardiogram and the need for 
anticoagulation. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Audit of Consent Yes Present audit to those involved in delivering thrombolysis - Acute 
Thrombolysis MDT Meeting and Stroke Specialist Nurses.  As the completion 
of the documentation is the responsibility of both the Doctor and 
Thrombolysis Nurse it would be good practice to jointly ensure all sections of 
the required documentation are completed once treatment has commenced 
therefore all clinicians involved in delivering Thrombolysis need to agree to 
this recommendation and a re-audit needs to be completed when a sufficient 
number of Stroke patients have been thrombolysed. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Audit of handover Yes To discuss with Trust regarding funding an electronic handover system.  
Discuss with trust management regarding availability of a screen and 
telephone in A1/A2. 

Page 58



 

33 

 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Audit of Handover Yes Look at the feasibility of electronic handover.  Ensure the Haematology SpR 
and Consultants are aware of their responsibilities with regards to handover 
when the CT doctors are absent - circulate audit report to all concerned, and 
raise the issue at the Haematology Clinical Effectiveness Meeting.  Re-audit. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Audit of MAU Yes No actions required.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

Audit of Tuberculosis 
services in Rotherham 

Yes To look at adapting cohort review form to simplify data collection and re-
audit.  

Integrated 
Medicine  

Cardiac Arrhythmia Yes Continue to improve the identification of candidates for CRT and ICD 
implantation through providing an education session for primary care doctors 
about devices and reminders for secondary care physicians in grand round 
and Consultant Physicians forum. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Diagnostic Pathway 
review 

Yes No actions required.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

GLP-1 Agonists for the 
treatment of Type 2 
Diabetes 

Yes The patient should be aware of targets at commencement, there should be a 
3 month review, and an alert at 6 months for a medication review.  Produce a 
laminated information sheet for doctors in the clinic reminding them of all 
indications, side effects and criteria for continuing therapy. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Management of 
Paracentesis 

Yes Re-educate junior doctors regarding drains being removed within 24 hours.  
Continue to monitor against standards using re-audit.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

Management of Severe 
Sepsis 

Yes No actions required.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

Management of status 
epilepticus in adults 

Yes No actions required.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

NICE CG130 
Hyperglycaemia in ACS 

Yes Ensure follow up treatment for patients with hyperglycaemia - discharge 
letters to GP need to state in patients not known to be diabetic if they had 
glucose greater than 11 in association with Acute Coronary Syndrome to do 
fasting glucose within 1 week, and annual screen for Diabetes Mellitus 
thereafter.  Ensure patients with glucose greater than 11 are treated with 
insulin within first 48 hours of Acute Coronary Syndrome, whilst avoiding 
hypoglycaemia - consider either sliding scale insulin or twice daily 
subcutaneous insulin to get glucose 7-11. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Performance indicators in 
Acute Medicine 

Yes Incorporate the audit as an annual Trust Clinical audit. 

Integrated 
Medicine 

Stroke Mortality from 
SHMI 

Yes Provide training for doctors and nurses: a) A&E doctors teaching on Acute 
Stroke assessment/management; b) Medical doctors teaching; c) Nurses 
training.  Revise the acute stroke and TIA pathway and related protocols.   

Integrated 
Medicine 

Trent Cancer Registry 
Lung Outcomes 

Yes No actions required.  

Integrated 
Medicine 

What happens after AMT 
on admission 

Yes Ensure all patients admitted to B1 with a history of memory problems are 
screened using the Abbreviated Mental Test - screening questions to all >65 
years, memory clinic referral to all who score less than 8 on the test. 

Neuro-
rehabilitation 

Re-audit of Spasticity 
Service 

Yes Get hoist in the clinic to allow treatment of patients with severely restricted 
movement. Need to acquire an EMG machine for injections. 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Audit of appropriateness 
of referrals into obesity 
services 

Yes Continued communication to GP’s to explain criteria for GPs to refer to 
Reshape: admin team to continue to write to highest referrers monthly and to 
all surgeries tri monthly. Reshape admin team to send out information 
regarding new developments as requested.  Electronic referrals for Reshape 
once SystmOne use is established.  Review Reshape referral form to include 
offers and incentives available. Target GPs who refer inappropriately to raise 
awareness of Reshape - arrange meeting with GPs who refer patients for 1:1 
intervention when Reshape would have been appropriate.  Develop a 
telephone script for communications with prospective referrals to ensure 
motivation is assessed and patients are aware of what will be involved 
through attending Reshape.  Review departmental policy to consider offering 
one clinic appointment to assess and triage to Reshape if appropriate (or GP 
to refer directly as per above) if Reshape declined despite patient being 
deemed appropriate to discharge.  Clearer advice for Dieticians on discharge 
and maximum number of appointments- protocol e.g. four months, monthly 
appointments for those not appropriate for Reshape but still to be seen in 
clinic 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Audit of Care Home 
Referral System 

Yes Roll out to other 40 homes e.g. learning disabilities/mental health & under 
65’s, train homes and communicate to GP/other referrers 
Target homes with no referrals or inappropriate referrals for training 
To share results and discuss with GP staff asking if possible for care home to 
refer direct 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Audit of home visit review 
times 

Yes Categorise patients into low, medium and high risk. Review caseloads 
regularly and consider splitting into geographical areas. 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Audit of Nursing Staff 
Adherence to the Action 
Plan detailed in the 
Nutritional Screening 
Tool 

Yes Ongoing MUST training to ensure all patients are accurately screened on 
admission to hospital.  Ensure all staff are aware of what snacks are 
available on wards and when they should be offered - information to be 
disseminated to Patient Experience Committee.  Ensure literature is available 
to carers/relatives so they can bring in appropriate snacks.  MUST training to 
emphasise the importance of accurate food record charts. 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Audit of Nutriprem 2 
Pathway. 

Yes Update health visitors and GP’s on the guidelines for prescribing vitamin 
drops and Iron supplementation for pre-term infants in relation to Nutriprem 
2.  Liaise with dietetic prescribing team to format guidelines on how to 

Page 59



 

34 

 

prescribe last prescription for Nutriprem 2 infants. 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Biochemical monitoring in 
patients receiving home 
enteral nutrition 

Yes Amend the Home Enteral Feeding Dietetic Standards, to take account of the 
review of the evidence, the results of this audit and the information from the 
feed companies on the nutritional completeness of feeds 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Documentation audit 
(Nutrition & Dietetics) 

Yes Admin Team will check letters prior to typing to ensure all relevant details are 
included. All content must be legible - Admin staff to read through prior to 
typing – if any more than 3 words are illegible, will be returned.  Clinical staff 
to take care when writing out letters for typing.  If letters are not at final stage, 
and may require a re-write, staff should specify draft copy so further 
amendments can be made. 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Documentation audit for 
Nutrition & Dietetics 

Yes Errors should not exceed more than 2 per month, to meet with those 
Dieticians identified as having most errors and discuss issues with them. 
All handwritten information should be written legibly and accurately and 
checked before being handed in against the record card. 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Is MUST being 
completed accurately on 
the wards in Rotherham 
General Hospital? 

Yes Change MUST tool to make it easier to complete, contact BAPEN re process 
needed to implement changes, and then implement indicated changes.  All 
wards should have the facilities to weigh and height patients. Disseminate 
audit findings to the dietetic department to highlight the need for further 
training for all dieticians and ward staff.   Offer MUST training to all wards 
that were highlighted as having the most discrepancies 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Reshape Audit Yes Consider SMS text reminders.  To meet with weight management team 
leader to review lists of missing data and to plan for delegating follow up of 
this data to team.  Statistics flow chart forwarded to managers each month 
and shared with weight management team where appropriate. Performance 
team to be involved in the data review to improve accuracy and presentation. 
To try and increase the number of successes by more specialised dietetic 
input for complex conditions.  Consider introducing system of daytime and 
evening follow up for DNAs 

Nutrition & 
Dietetics 

Use of STAMP 
(screening tool) on the 
wards 

Yes Consider building the tool into current documentation to avoid duplication of 
documentation. Raise paediatric doctor awareness of STAMP to help support 
the roll out of the tool. Re- train children’s ward staff on the use of STAMP 

O&G Audit of Consent Yes Reminder on labour ward notice board regarding retrospective entry of verbal 
consent and confirmation of consent for all elective caesarean sections. 
Reminder on notice board in doctors office in Green Oaks regarding 
recording of information leaflets on consent form and offering a copy of the 
consent form to patients. Present audit to those involved in delivering 
thrombolysis - Acute Thrombolysis MDT Meeting and Stroke Specialist 
Nurses. 

O&G Audit of counting and 
recording of swabs, 
strings, instruments and 
needles used for vaginal 
procedures 

Yes Ensure improvements embedded in practice by use of spot checks.  Analysis 
of audits to go to labour ward forum.  Issues to be escalated to clinical 
governance and risk management meeting.  Anyone not complying with PEP 
will be referred to labour ward midwifery/obstetric lead as appropriate. 

O&G Audit of emergency 
gynae unit 

Yes To open up the service for GPs, and then monitor the effectiveness over the 
next three months. To ensure that there is always medical cover for the 
Emergency Gynae unit. To allocate one scan slot per day to the Emergency 
Gynae Unit. 

O&G Audit of Gestational 
Diabetes 

Yes Review local guideline.  Consider documenting blood glucose monitoring in 
the care plan booklet when this is reviewed. Consider covering feeding 
options at visits if possible - discussion with Service Manager required.   

O&G Audit of Letz done under 
GA 

Yes No actions required.  

O&G Audit of Medical 
Management of ectopic 
pregnancy 

Yes Ensure all patients have documentation of the risk of possible need for 
surgery in the notes or consent form - add this risk (may need surgery) in the 
New Methotrexate consent form and booklet. Ensure all patients have their 
Methotrexate dose calculation according to Body Surface Area as in the 
guidelines - design a Dosage table in cooperation with the pharmacy to 
reduce errors and user friendly. Make Methotrexate treatment available over 
the weekends - stock new prefilled syringes in B11.  Improve coding for 
Ectopic pregnancy and Pregnancy of Unknown Location (PUL) to facilitate 
future audits - create a 'favourite' list for all Early Pregnancy Assessment Unit 
diagnostic cases - add PUL on SNOMED list. 

O&G Audit of Ward attenders 
to B10 

Yes More effective use of ANDU & Guidance: (Staffing, Logistics, Guidance) - to 
be discussed at Consultant Obstetrician meeting and CSU meeting.  Co-
ordinator for every shift: (Deal with transfers, referrals from CMW, allocation 
of roles, social services issues etc) - to discuss with ward manager and head 
of midwifery. Data collection: (Accurate filling of form, Review of form to 
reflect docs workload, where patient is seen – Triage, ANDU) - redesign 
form.  Spread elective admissions onto quieter days and monitor this - to 
discuss at obstetrics meeting and send a memo to all doctor, to discuss with 
ward manager. Investigate whether wound care can be dealt with elsewhere 
- discuss further with head matron.  Allocate an SHO solely to B10 for the 
day. 

O&G Audit on Gynaecology 
Discharge Letters 

Yes Ensure 100% Accuracy in operation performed and diagnosis.  Raise 
awareness of all doctors in Obstetrics and Gynaecology about the 
importance of documentation of operation date - send a memo to all 
consultants and registrars.  Re-audit, to include looking at admission date 
inaccuracy which should be resolved when migrating to Meditech discharge. 

Page 60



 

35 

 

O&G Caesarean section audit Yes Surgeon to take cord bloods to help improve the percentage of cord bloods 
done - discuss at Labour Ward Forum. To avoid General anaesthesia as 
much as possible for women with BMI >40 who require a crash caesarean 
section even if it requires the baby being delivered after 30 minutes - to 
communicate this to medical staff to counsel patients in clinic.  Incorporate 
the grade of Anaesthetist into the audit form.  Improvement required in 
recording of prophylactic antibiotics and correct dose and timing of 
thromboprophylaxis - surgeon carrying out the operation to check 
documentation. 'Full dilation and extension' slide to be taken to Labour Ward 
Forum.  Findings to be included in teaching sessions for new house - difficult 
births.  

O&G Correlation between 
Scan Findings and 
Hysteroscpy Findings in 
PMB Patients 

Yes No actions required.  

O&G Feasibility of 
laparoscopic surgery in 
obese patients in a 
district general hospital 

Yes No actions required.  

O&G Infection post Caesarean 
Section 

Yes Change the antibiotics used in accordance with NICE guidance.  Disseminate 
updated guidance to all anaesthetists and obstetricians.  Caesarean section 
guideline in development.  Training of Community midwives on surgical site 
infection.  Theatre etiquette to be reviewed by Infection Control to include 
bare below the elbows compliance, adherence to hand hygiene regulations 
and aseptic technique for catheterisation. Consider the use of a coloured 
solution as an alternative to the current colourless solution.  Update training 
for all midwives in aseptic technique. Antibiotics should be given before the 
skin incision. Timing of antibiotics monitored by WHO checklist & timing 
required on theatre white board for each case. 

O&G IPG239 - Laparoscopic 
subtotal hysterectomies 

Yes No actions required.  

O&G Returns to theatre Yes Review returns to theatre cases prospectively in order to identify trends - 
implement new process to identify patients prospectively, and to act on any 
findings. 

O&G Swab findings for 
patients with 
menorrhagia for Mirena 
insertion 

Yes If patients are low risk, do not screen unless specifically requested by patient. 

O&G TA156 - Audit of routine 
anti D prophylaxis 

Yes Provide evidence based information leaflets to patients - contact the 
company that supplies Anti D for further information.  Update the Anti-D 
guidance and discuss at audit meeting.  Re-audit when the guidance has 
been updated and in use for 6 months. Introduction of new Anti D clinic - as a 
means of solving the problem of incorrect labelling of samples. 

OMFS Annual audit of 
Consultant Reviews 
within 24hrs of admission 
(An Acute Problem) 

Yes No actions required.  

OMFS Audit of Consent Yes Documentation of leaflets given at clinic appointment. 

OMFS Audit of Consent for 
treatment of Fractured 
Mandibles 

Yes OMFS teaching session on risks to be documented on consents for 
mandibular fractures.   

OMFS Audit of investigations 
done for patients 
admitted with acute oro-
facial infections 

Yes All patients admitted under the care of OMFS Surgeons with orofacial 
infections should have a full blood count, urea and electrolytes, glucose, with 
a CRP in more complex cases.  If a patient is thought to have an infection of 
dental origin they should have an OPT.  If pus is drained as part of the 
patients treatment, a pus sample must be sent to microbiology - this is to be 
communication to all relevant staff with any necessary explanation/education 
required.   Re-audit. 

OMFS Audit of temporal artery 
biopsy service provided 
by OMFS 

Yes Share audit results with Rheumatology. 

OMFS Microbiology - why 
bother? 

Yes Send a memo to all SHOs informing them that a microbiology sample should 
be sent to pathology for all abscesses where pus is drained and for all wound 
infections where there is concern about infection. 

OMFS National Prospective 
Audit on Bisphosphonate 
Related Osteonecrosis of 
the Jaw 

Yes No actions required.  

Ophthalmology Audit of Accuracy of 
Referrals from 
Optometrists for wet age 
related macular 
degeneration 

Yes Develop a new education programme for optometrists to optimise correct use 
of referral pathways, to include: visiting local optometrists and liaising with 
them to ensure they are aware of wet Age Related Macular Degeneration 
rapid access referral pathway; collaborating with the head optometrist of the 
establishment to ensure locum optometrists are also educated before they 
start; and to ensure all optometrists referring patients are given feedback on 
the referral. 

Page 61



 

36 

 

Ophthalmology Audit of Consent Yes Ensure documentation of whether leaflet/tape has been provided - 
considering use of patient survey to supplement this.  Remind everyone to 
tick photography for all patients on the Consent form in case the desire to 
record arises using the microscope. Check intention to photograph is 
recorded in the history sheet during the next audit, also check operation 
notes as to whether video recording took place. 

Ophthalmology Audit of Ptosis Surgery 
Results 

Yes Prospective documentation to be kept on the database: information from Eye 
log book will be added to Excel.  Staff to document the amount of resection 
done (a column to be added to the spreadsheet to capture this information).  

Ophthalmology Barnsley Consent Audit Yes Distribute scanned copy of consent form highlighting areas which need to be 
filled in to improve compliance. Re-audit.  

Ophthalmology BDGH Trabeculectomy 
Audit 

Yes No actions required.  

Ophthalmology Cataract Audit 
(Rotherham) 

Yes Improve documentation of complications in theatre - encourage theatre nurse 
to document complications and check complication theatre book regularly.  
Ensure all consultants are customising A constants.  Circulate Biometry 
guidelines. Check post-operative refraction feedback from opticians at 6 
weeks. Document pre and post op refraction and target of refraction.  Use 
RCO electronic record (Eye log book). Devise method for recording late 
complications. 

Ophthalmology Clinical Audit of cataract 
for year 2011 

Yes No actions required.  

Ophthalmology Consent audit - Barnsley Yes Leaflet/e-mail with advise on best practice to be e-mailed to colleagues 

Ophthalmology Diabetic Blindness Yes Continue to collect data for next audit. Start recording patients who have 
vision loss due to their diabetes. Develop standard form for feeding back to 
Screening Service.  

Ophthalmology Diabetic Macular Laser 
Audit 

Yes Follow up appointment should be arranged 3-4 months after laser.  Patients 
having FFA should have a copy in notes, photographers to be informed.  
Laser appointment should preferably be arranged within 8 weeks of listing.  
Patient with a VA 0.0 or better should be thoroughly explained risks before 
listing 

Ophthalmology Documentation Audit Yes Adherence to trust recommendations regarding alterations to records 
namely, crossing with one line, dating and signing. 

Ophthalmology Follow up against 
Discharge Guidelines 

Yes Ensure firm adherence to discharge guidelines - discuss and explain to 
colleagues, place details in all clinic rooms and ensure new starters are 
made aware.  

Ophthalmology Initial management of 
patients in Glaucoma 
clinic at Rotherham & 
Barnsley 

Yes Glaucoma proforma sheet to be used in subspecialty clinic. Further attention 
to improve documentations in sheet to raise the standard of care. 

Ophthalmology New Paediatric referrals 
Barnsley 

Yes Ensure all referrals are received and appointments booked. Better referral 
information for patients attending from screening, information leaflet to be 
typed. 

Ophthalmology Outcome of Glaucoma 
Surgery 

Yes Refer cases which need glaucoma surgery earlier. 

Ophthalmology Phaecotrabectuletomy Yes Repeat the audit with increased numbers & record visual acuity later than 1 
month. Define the types of complications to be included. Look into routine 
use of antibiotic cover post operatively and infection rates. 

Ophthalmology Post-Operative Vision 
Loss in Non-Ocular 
Surgery 

Yes Broaden spectrum of surgical procedures for data .Revise data collection tool 
for re-audit to include screen for ischaemic optic neuropathy risk factors and 
patient positioning. 

Ophthalmology Premature Clinic 
Rotherham 

Yes Ensure distribution of information sheets to parents prior to 1st ROP 
screening and documentation that this has been given.  Share results with 
Paediatricians to avoid screening breaches - if risk, Paediatrician to contact 
Consultant Ophthalmologist. Ensure that when babies are transferred to 
RDGH discharge summaries are reviewed and ROP screening booked within 
the time frame set out by the guidelines.  

Ophthalmology Rapid Access Wet 
Macular Degeneration 
Outcomes 

Yes No actions required.  

Ophthalmology Wet age related macular 
degeneration Lucentis 
peruke audit 

Yes To check visual outcome and number of Lucentis injections required 

Orthopaedics A patient-related 
outcome measure audit 
of Hand Surgery 

Yes No actions required.  

Orthopaedics Annual audit of 
Consultant Reviews 
within 24hrs of admission 
(An Acute Problem) 

Yes No actions required.  

Orthopaedics Audit of Consent Yes Correct use of consent 4 form, document reason for lack of capacity and 
ensure form signed by consultant.  Document discussions with patients/ 
families, families are now routinely asked to attend the ward for the morning 
ward round to discuss risks etc. also improving on documentation of all 
meetings.  Senior doctor to obtain consent, encouraging all consultants to 
check/ countersign consent forms if not taken by them.  Clarify what risks 

Page 62



 

37 

 

need to be documented, lists of risk factors are likely to become more 
consistent if consent is taken by more senior surgeons.  Document capacity 
to consent & mental test score, AMT score added to clerking book. Staff 
educated about capacity and need to document. 

Orthopaedics Audit of Consent 
(Orthopaedics) 

Yes Try to clarify precise risk/benefits and make stickers with generic risks for 
each operation.  Clearly document patients' capacity if form 4 used.  Educate 
medical and nursing staff regarding the timely deliver of the hip fracture 
booklet.  

Orthopaedics Documentation Yes Ensure signed as well as having clear name/ designation of person making 
note entry.   Educate staff to ensure labels placed on both sides of page.  
Educate all staff to document time in all entries 

Orthopaedics Emergency readmissions 
to hospital within 28 days 
of orthopaedic admission 

Yes Continue active monitoring of medical problems before discharge e.g. for 
DVT, chest infection, anaemia 

Orthopaedics IPG271 - Audit of wrist 
arthroplasty 

Yes No actions required.  

Orthopaedics IPG43 - Percutaneous 
palmar fasciotomy for 
Dupuytren's contracture 

Yes No actions required.  

Orthopaedics NJR - DePuy implants Yes No actions required.  

Palliative Care Audit of Acute 
Management of 
Hypercalcaemia of 
malignancy at Rotherham 
General Hospital 

Yes Standardise the pre and post treatment blood tests for patients undergoing 
treatment of hypercalcaemia of malignancy/standardise the medical 
treatment of hypercalcaemia of malignancy. Adopt the central guidelines 
issued, with any locality modifications on bisphosphonate choice.  
Standardise the intravenous bisphosphonate used in the management of 
hypercalcaemia of malignancy. 

Radiology DATSCAN audit 
(National) British Nuclear 
Medicine Society 

Yes No actions required.  

Radiology Diagnostic reference 
level audit 

Yes No actions required. 

Radiology Paediatric trauma CT 
head: Dose limit (DLP) 
values - are we heading 
towards the target? 

Yes Review CT Protocols with reference to SCH protocols and NRPB guideline.  
Improve staff training in Paediatric Scanning and ensure regular training 
sessions with input from SCH CT department.  Ensure Protocols for CT chest 
and abdomen in paediatric population are appropriate. 

Radiology Request card details and 
patient checks audit 

Yes All staff to be reminded about the 28 day rule and breast feeding status. 
Staff to be reminded about request justification and ARSAC details. 

Radiology WHO Checklist (RFT 
adaptation) for Radiology 
procedures 

Yes Adapt form to include more information about allergies.  Move date box and 
procedure name so not covered by sticker.  Add base observations to form.  
Remind staff to complete form fully. 

Radiology - 
medical physics 

Audit of MUGA scan 
analysis 2011-12 

Yes No actions required.  

Resuscitation Annual suction audit Yes All areas where problems have been highlighted must: replace/report all 
faulty units to Estates, ensure correct tubing attached, ensure Yankauer 
attached, ensure all Suction equipment ready for use in an emergency.   

Resuscitation Audit of daily emergency 
equipment checks 

Yes Continue to stress the importance of checking emergency equipment in all 
resuscitation training sessions. 

Resuscitation Audit of defibrillator 
(MRx) operational checks 
(weekly) 

Yes Operational check should be completed weekly to comply with 
manufacturer's recommendations for defibrillator. Resuscitation status should 
be documented in patients who are at risk of deterioration.  Encourage 
Consultants/Registrars/Middle Grades to discuss decisions with relatives 
wherever possible and document discussion. If relatives have not been 
spoken to, document why in the case notes 

Resuscitation Audit of documentation of 
DNACPR decisions 

Yes The regional DNACPR should be filled in correctly, in particular the areas 
relating to discussion with relevant others and patient - this will be discussed 
with Resus Committee chair to agree an appropriate plan of action.  Consider 
amending the regional form to make it more user-friendly - this will be 
discussed with the regional DNACPR lead.  

Resuscitation Emergency Equipment 
Audit 

Yes All clinical areas should ensure emergency equipment is checked daily, email 
out to all group nurses/matrons/heads of department to emphasise 
importance of checking emergency equipment. 

Rheumatology Audit of Adherence to 
Trust Temporal Arteritis 
Pathway 

Yes Establish Consultant of the week rota so that one Consultant Rheumatologist 
handles all Temporal Arteritis referrals. Discuss the results with 
Ophthalmologists.  Ensure all consultants are aware to provide personal 
feedback on inappropriate referrals to GPs and send copy of pathway.  Make 
Integrated Care Pathway available centrally. 

Rheumatology Audit of biological 
treatment of RA after 
failure of 1 anti TNF 
medication 

Yes Improve DAS 28 monitoring - ensure monitoring done at least every 6 
months.  Establish Nurse led biologic clinic. Consider Rituximab for all 
patients who have failed to improve on 1st anti-TNFdrug. Continue and 
improve data entry into biologic database. Emphasize DAS 28 monitoring in 
rheumatoid arthritis patients to joining and temporary medical staff. 

Rheumatology Audit of department 
practice against BSM 
PMR guidelines 

Yes Spot survey of how many PMR patients are currently under ongoing care in 
the department, in order to determine the need and feasibility of providing 
this care differently – i.e. via nurse lead clinic, or via shared care with GPs.  
Develop a departmental pathway to support shared care of PMR patients 
with GPs.  Re-audit in 2 years time, using notes in order to determine 
whether urine dip being performed in new patients. 

Page 63



 

38 

 

Rheumatology CG79 - Audit of 
department adherence to 
NICE  for management of 
Rheumatoid Arthritis 

Yes Improved referral rates of patients newly diagnosed with RA to therapy team, 
or documentation of why not if not appropriate.  Quicker escalation of 
treatment where symptoms not adequately controlled through implementation 
of Departmental Treat to Target Pathway.  All clinicians to use DAS or 
alternative to describe disease activity in patients with newly diagnosed RA 

Rheumatology Ethnic minority RA audit 
(National) 

Yes No actions required.  

Theatres & 
Anaesthetics 

Audit of HDU 
documentation 

Yes Handover proforma needed.  Discussion regarding whether HDU be 
incorporated into a Critical Care Unit managed by the Intensivists.  Change 
HDU documentation form.   

Therapy Services Audit of NICE guidance 
on Rheumatoid Arthritis 

Yes No actions required.  

Therapy Services Therapy Records Audit Yes Standardise the use of the audit tool and develop specific standards of what 
should be measured.  Deliver training sessions prior to the next round of 
audit. 

Trust wide Annual audit of Cardiac 
Arrests 

Yes Resuscitation status should be documented in patients who are at risk of 
deterioration - continue to stress the need to document decisions at 
Consultant mandatory Resuscitation training sessions. Examine DNACPR 
audit to determine if there is a trend with either specialities or individuals and 
provide targeted training. 

Trust wide Audit of evaluation of 
Ionising Radiation 
Examinations 

Yes Haematology - discussion with current junior medics on A7 and add to A7 
ward Clinical Effectiveness agenda.  OMFS - raise awareness within 
department, review at Clinical Effectiveness meeting.  O&G - raise 
awareness among doctors, discuss in a CSU CE meeting and also inform 
new doctors at Induction. Disseminate information to Gynae nurses and 
midwives - inform B11 ward manager, B10 and Labour Ward managers and 
clinic manager.  Urology - review cases where x-rays are not being 
recovered.  CYP Service - remind junior medical staff and investigate cases 
with non-compliance.  Rheumatology - alter future audit methodology (CE 
team), ensure all x-ray results are signed and communicated. 

Trust wide Audit of Patient 
Identification 

Yes Re-educate regarding the wrist band being on the dominant arm - ensure as 
part of the re-launch of the reviewed Patient Identification policy that re-
education is provided. 

Trust wide Consultant to Consultant 
Referrals  

Yes No actions required.  

Trust wide Medication storage audit 
& re-audits 

Yes Actions are being taken at specialty level to ensure: Controlled drugs are 
checked daily; fridge temperatures are checked daily; clean utilities are 
locked securely; drugs cabinets are locked securely; no medication is left on 
the side in the clean utility; and drugs fridges are locked securely. 

Urology Audit of effectiveness of 
intravesical botox for 
sensory urinary urgency 

Yes Inform all consultants in Urology that Onabotulinumtoxin A should be offered 
to all patients with sensory bladder so that there is reduced delay in a patient 
receiving their treatment. 

Urology Documentation Audit Yes Improve use of identifying data on history sheets. 

Urology Rigid and flexible 
ureterscopy audit 

Yes Ensure patients for URS are listed as true day cases as appropriate - 
Consultants to list as day cases in young and solitary stones. 

Urology The effect of TVTO on 
the maximal urethral 
closure pressure in 
women 

Yes No actions required.  

Workplace Heath 
& Wellbeing 

National audit of back 
pain management by 
NHS Occupational Health 
Services 

Yes Improve recording of enquiry about barriers to return to work and yellow 
flags.  Training for occupational health technicians is to be provided. 

 

Participation in clinical research 

The number of patients receiving relevant health services provided or sub-contracted by TRFT in 2012-13 that 

were recruited during that period to participate in research approved by a research ethics committee was 654. 

Table 1 illustrates the number of studies currently reported as active within the Trust. The studies are further 

broken down into their relevant funding categories.  Table 2 shows the number of Rotherham patients 

recruited to portfolio studies where the Trust is either hosting a study, or acting as a Participant Identification 

Centre (PIC), the total number was 732 patients. Table 3 also shows the number of studies currently 

undergoing approval within the Trust. 

Table 1: Active Studies 

Page 64



 

39 

 

Study Type Number of Studies 

Commercial 26 

Portfolio 128 

Own Account 55 

EC Funded 0 

Table 2: Recruitment 

Study Type Patient Recruits 

Hosted Portfolio Study 654 

PIC Registered Portfolio Study (Cancer Research Network) 78 

Table 3: Studies currently undergoing approval 

Study Type Number of studies 

Commercial 0 

Portfolio (inc PIC registered) 15 

Own Account 3 

NB. Recruitment study figures are correct at time of publication, final figures are not usually available until the 

middle of June the following year. 

Goals agreed with commissioners: CQUIN Framework 

A proportion of TRFT income in 2012-13 was conditional upon achieving quality improvement and innovation 

goals agreed between TRFT and any person or body the entered into a contract, agreement or arrangement 

with for the provision of relevant health services, through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation 

payment framework. Further details of the agreed goals for 2012-13 and for the following 12 month period are 

available at: http://www.monitor-

nhsft.gov.uk/sites/all/modules/fckeditor/plugins/ktbrowser/_openTKFile.php?id=3275 

The value of income dependent on achieving CQUIN goals by TRFT for 2012-13 was £4.1m, this represents an 

increase on the previous year where the value was £2.5m (this refers to NHS Rotherham CQUINs). 

Progress made against last year’s CQUIN goals can be found at appendix 2a, alongside 2013-14 goals in 

appendix 2b. 

CQC Registration and periodic/specialist reviews 

TRFT is required to register with the Care Quality Commission and its current registration status is fully 

compliant. TRFT has no conditions on registration. 

The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against TRFT during 2012-13. 

TRFT has participated in special reviews or investigations by the Care Quality Commission relating to the 

following areas during 2012-13: 

• Acute Services Review – 13
th

 August 2012 

Page 65



 

40 

 

• Mental Health Act – 7
th

 March 2013 

TRFT intends to take the following action to address the conclusions or requirements reported by the Care 

Quality Commission:  

• To agree and finalise the Memorandum of Understanding with Rotherham Doncaster and South 

Humber NHS Foundation Trust. 

• To facilitate Mental Health Act training for identified staff. 

TRFT has made the following progress by 31 March 2013 in taking such action: 

• The Memorandum of Understanding is currently with the Mental Health Act Manager at RDaSH and is 

being amended following legal advice. Once the amendments are made the Memorandum of 

Understanding will be returned to TRFT for final approval. 

• Training arranged for 23rd April 2013, further date in June 2013 to be confirmed. 

Septicaemia alert 

During 2012-13 TRFT received an alert from CQC regarding an above average outcome for mortality in relation 

to septicaemia, highlighted as a result of the Summary Hospital Mortality Indicator (SHMI) for the range of 

conditions which are classified under the septicaemia group. 

This led to a review of cases involved, with a response to CQC accordingly. The review found that the reasons 

for higher than expected mortality for this condition group were related principally to poor documentation in 

patient notes by junior doctors. This skewed the recording of primary diagnoses for the deaths which occurred 

– inaccurately relating them to septicaemia rather than other causes. 

The responses to CQC was correspondingly made, the current mortality for septicaemia is now showing a 

downward trend. We have also included in one of our improvement programmes for 2013-14 Quality 

Accounts, review of death certification and cause of death to be included in the outcome summary of 

deceased patients. It is anticipated that these changes will reduce the potential for issues such as this to occur 

again.  

Serious Incidents/ Coroner’s inquests 

During the year we had fewer serious incidents declared than the previous year. However, we did have a 

cluster of missed opportunities for Downs Syndrome screening incidents, which were declared as serious 

incidents.  

This led to the main issues related to how the recording and handover of information from parents to 

community midwives, and from community based midwives to hospital based midwives. Following the 

analysis, and working with the Strategic Health Authority, we introduced a health community approach to 

electronically recording all screening requirements. The new reporting system will significantly mitigate the 

risks of this type of incident re-occurring in future.

Page 66



 

 

CQC Quality & Risk Profile 

 

41 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



 

42 

 

Data Quality 

The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during 2012-13 to the Secondary Uses Service for 

inclusion in the Hospital Episode Statistics which are included in the latest published data. The percentage of 

records in the published data which included the patient’s valid NHS number was 98.6% for admitted patient  

care, 99.1% for outpatient care and 79.5% for accident and emergency care (April 2012 – February 2013 data 

only). 

The percentage of records which included the patient’s valid General Practitioner Registration Code was 

100.0% for admitted patient care, 100.0% for outpatient care and 99.9% for accident and emergency care 

(April 2012 – February 2013 data only). At the time of publication of this report, the Health & Social Care 

Information Centre had not yet published full year comparative date in respect of SUS datasets for 2012-13. 

TRFT Information Governance Assessment Report overall score for 2012-13 was 65.0% and was graded red. 

This rating was due to the Trust not achieving attainment level 2 in 1 of the 45 requirements of the 

Information Governance Assessment – “Information Governance awareness and mandatory training 

procedures are in place and all staff are appropriately trained”. 

 

 

TRFT was subject to the Payment by Results clinical coding audit during the reporting period by the Audit 

Commission and the error rates reported in the latest published draft audit for that period for diagnoses and 

treatment coding (clinical coding) were 7.7% and 15.4% respectively. 

In respect of clinical coding audits, the results should not be extrapolated further than the actual sample 

audited; a limited number of services were reviewed in respect of patients admitted with specific problems as 

per the above performance - pneumonia and falls. 

TRFT will be taking the following actions to improve data quality: 

- One of our improvement programmes for this year is specifically focussed on data quality – this is also 

a CQUINs target; Regional and National benchmarking on data quality will be reviewed as part of this 

CQUIN 

- Data quality responsibilities continue to be included as a standard element of staff job descriptions 

- Following consultation, a new Health Informatics Directorate is to be formed, bringing together IT, 

Information Services & Performance Management, Information & Clinical Systems Development, 

Clinical Coding and an Assurance function. A specific, focussed data quality team will be a part of this 

Directorate, taking a lead role in improving TRFT centric data quality issues 

These actions are expected to enable and deliver significant improvements in all aspects of data quality.

Overall score Grade

Information Governance Management 60% Not satisfactory

Confidentiality and Data Protection Assurance 66% Satisfactory

Information Security Assurance 66% Satisfactory

Clinical Information Assurance 66% Satisfactory

Secondary Use Assurance 66% Satisfactory

Corporate Information Assurance 66% Satisfactory

Overall 65% Not satisfactory

Achieved Attainment Level 2 or above on all requirements Satisfactory

Not achieved Attainment Level 2 or above on all requirements Not satisfactory

Page 68



 

43 

 

Table 4: Department of Health Mandatory Quality Indicators for Acute Trusts 

The table below sets out the Trust position, against Acute Trust peers, for applicable indicators mandated for reporting in Quality Accounts by the Department of Health. 

Given the time lag associated with availability of data from the mandated source for peer comparison (the Health & Social Care Information Centre), which on occasions can 

be over a year - these are monitored through the year using a proxy data source which enables corrective actions to be implemented in a more timely fashion, commentary 

on those indicators is included in part 3. 

HSCIC 

Ref 
Indicator name 

Latest & previous 

reporting periods 
TRFT value 

TRFT 

previous 

value 

Acute Trust 

average 

Acute Trust 

previous  

average 

Acute 

Trust 

highest 

value 

Acute 

Trust 

previous 

highest 

value 

Acute 

Trust 

lowest 

value 

Acute 

Trust 

previous 

lowest 

value 

P01544 

(12) 

Summary Hospital Mortality 

Indicator – Value 

Oct 2011- Sept 

2012/Jul 2011- Jun 

2012 

1.08 1.06 1.00 1.00 1.21 1.26 0.68 0.71 

P01544 

(12) 

Summary Hospital Mortality 

Indicator – Banding 

Oct 2011- Sept 

2012/Jul 2011- Jun 

2012 

2 (“As 

expected”) 

2 (“As 

expected”) 
2.06 (n=142) 2.03 (n=142) 

1 (“Higher 

than 

expected”) 

1 (“Higher 

than 

expected”) 

3 (“Lower 

than 

expected”) 

3 (“Lower 

than 

expected”) 

P01544 

(12) 

SHMI: Percentage of 

patient deaths with 

palliative care coding at 

diagnosis level 

Oct 2011- Sept 

2012/Jul 2011- Jun 

2012 

27.55% 25.10% 18.75% 18.22% 43.28% 46.26% 0.20% 0.34% 

P01551 

(18) 

Patient Reported Outcome 

Measure: Groin hernia 

surgery 

April2012 - 

Dec2012/ 

April2011-

March2012 

0.080 0.067 0.090 0.087 0.310 0.249 -0.115 -0.084 

P01551 

(18) 

Patient Reported Outcome 

Measure: Varicose vein 

surgery* 

April2012 - 

Dec2012/ 

April2011-

March2012 

- 0.101 0.089 0.094 0.271 0.240 -0.089 -0.134 

P01551 

(18) 

Patient Reported Outcome 

Measure: Hip replacement 

surgery 

April2012 - 

Dec2012/ 

April2011-

March2012 

0.540 0.415 0.429 0.416 0.791 0.716 0.207 0.282 

P01551 

(18) 

Patient Reported Outcome 

Measure: Knee 

replacement surgery 

April2012 - 

Dec2012/ 

April2011-

March2012 

0.343 0.307 0.3212 0.302 0.621 0.541 0.111 0.114 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



 

44 

 

P00911 

(19) 

Readmissions within 28 

days (same trust) 0-14 

years old (Standardised % - 

medium acute for 

comparison) 

April 2010-

Mar2011/ 

April2009-Mar2010 

10.46% 10.87% 9.87% 10.21% 14.56% 14.70% 5.22% 6.35% 

P01552 

(19) 

Readmissions within 28 

days (same trust) 15 & over 

(Standardised % - medium 

acute for comparison) 

April 2010-

Mar2011/ 

April2009-Mar2010 

12.78% 12.04% 11.16% 11.05% 12.94% 13.17% 7.64% 7.30% 

P01553 

(20) 

CQUIN: Responsiveness to 

patients personal needs 

April2011-

Mar2012/ 

April2010 - 

Mar2011 

69.9 71.5 67.4 67.3 85.0 82.6 56.5 56.7 

P01554 

(21) 

Staff who would 

recommend the Trust to 

their family or friends 

National Staff 

Surveys 2012 & 

2011 

50.6% 61.1% 61.7% 62.3% 85.7% 89.5% 35.3% 33.1% 

P01556 

(23) 

Percentage of patients 

admitted to hospital  and 

risk assessed for VTE 

Qtr3 2012-13/ Qtr3 

2011-12 
92.0% 91.3% 94.1% 90.7% 100.0% 100.0% 84.6% 32.4% 

P01557 

(24) 

Rate per 100,000 bed days 

of cases of C. Difficile 

amongst patients aged 2 or 

over 

April2011-

March2012/ 

April2010- 

March2011 

20.5 29.3 21.8 29.6 51.6 71.8 0.0 0.0 

P01558 

(25) 

Patient safety incidents: 

rate per 100 bed days 

April2012-

Sept2012/Oct2011- 

Mar2012 

7.15 6.91 6.87 6.56 14.44 10.54 3.11 2.21 

P01558 

(25) 

Patient safety incidents: % 

resulting in severe harm or 

death 

April2012-

Sept2012/Oct2011- 

Mar2012 

0.10% 0.43% 0.57% 0.79% 3.56% 3.49% 0.12% 0.10% 

* NB – PROMS data for varicose vein surgery is not available for TFRT in 2012-13 as no procedures have been carried out. 

In terms of indicator P01558 – % of patient safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death - due to the nature of this indicator it is difficult to be certain that all 

incidents are identified and reported and that all incidents are classified consistently within the organisation and nationally. One individual’s subjective view of what 

constitutes severe harm can differ from another’s. As a Trust we work very hard to ensure all our staff are aware of and comply with internal policies on incident 

reporting and standardisation in clinical judgements. 

P
a
g
e
 7

0



 

45 

 

Part 3 Other Information 

Quality at a Glance Commentary 

This section deals with outcomes and commentary for those indicators which are not a summary indicator for improvement programmes, progress against which 

was covered in section 2A. Where available, historical data from the previous year has been used as a baseline from which appropriate targets have been set – 

enabling a view as to whether improvement in these indicators has occurred over time; in addition to this, national performance of peers (where available) has been 

included in the commentary to provide additional context.  

Performance against Acute & Community ‘Quality at a Glance’ indicators has generally been strong for 2012-13, although some opportunities to further optimise 

performance remain. The data table is available for review at Appendix 1. The rationale for maintaining and introducing indicators is covered in table 5, following 

the detailed commentary, alongside details of indicators which will no longer be covered as part of Quality Accounts in table 6.  

 

Patient Safety 

Never events 

The Trust has achieved its target for ‘never’ 

events, having had no such incidents throughout 

the year – these events are drawn from a list 

mandated by the DoH and include such incidents 

as wrong site surgery, falls from unrestricted 

windows etc. 

Reporting of incidents and severity of incidents 

The Trust has achieved targets for increasing 

incident reporting per 1,000 admissions, 

alongside reducing the severity of incidents (any 

incidents where semi-permanent/permanent 

harm or death occur) as recorded on the Datix 

risk management system and reported to the 

National Reporting and Learning System.  This is 

in line with Trust aims to enhance its ‘no blame’ 

reporting culture, as well as reducing the impact 

of harm to patients.  

In terms of benchmarking for context, the most 

recent published data by the National Reporting 

& Learning System (NRLS – April 2012 to 

September 2012) reflects TRFT incident reporting 

to be above the medium acute average per 100 

admissions at 7.15 against 6.87. In terms of 

severity – TRFT results are significantly better for 

% of incidents resulting in moderate/severe harm 

or death - with 1.6% against the medium acute 

average of 7% 

Healthcare Acquired Infections (HCAI’s) 

Targets for reducing incidents of C. Difficile have 

been achieved by a comfortable margin, and 

TRFT is known to have one of the lowest HCAI 

rates in the UK. Unfortunately, the target for zero 

MRSA bacteraemia (blood infection) has not 

been achieved, due to one bacteraemia 

occurring during quarter 1; this was in a patient 

transferred from another trust, however blood 

cultures were not taken within the required 

timescale to discharge responsibility for this 

incident from TRFT. 

Complaints 

The Trust has achieved its target for increasing 

complaints, which reflects our focus on gaining 

feedback on our services – whether positive or 

negative, with a view to continuously improving 

P
a
g
e
 7

1



 

46 

 

them. Year on year - the seriousness of 

complaints has also reduced, with complaints 

rated as orange or red (the more serious 

classifications of complaint) falling from 10.9% in 

2011-12, to 6.3% for 2012-13. 

 

Clinical Effectiveness 

Reducing the number of hospital readmissions 

from care homes within 30 days 

Significant improvements have been achieved 

against baseline for this indicator up to the end 

of Qtr3, with a decrease from 19.7% in 2011-12 

to 11.0% (YTD – Qtr3), in line with the Trusts core 

value of ‘right first time’. Data for this indicator is 

provided by NHS Rotherham. Due to a change of 

organisation for the Information Team to a 

regional Commissioning Support Unit – they are 

currently legally precluded from accessing 

patient level data, hence Qtr4 and full year data 

in relation to this indicator may not be available 

until after this report is published. 

Reducing emergency readmissions to hospital 

within 28 days of discharge 

The Trust has made significant improvements in 

this respect, with a 2012-13 value of 5.8% against 

7.3% the previous year. Our performance this 

year is also significantly better than the HES peer 

average of 6.8%. 

Reduction in mortality – Summary Hospital 

Mortality Index value (SHMI) – CHKS Live 

The Trust has not attained a SHMI value of lower 

than the baseline period, with a rate of 79.2 for 

2012-13; whilst this is above HES peer value of 

68, care must be taken in drawing conclusions 

from this indicator in isolation.  

The SHMI methodology is known to be 

influenced by not only mortality rates against an 

expected value (calculated by taking into account 

‘relative risk’ of death, per patient, given a large 

number of factors such as age, primary diagnosis, 

co-morbidities etc) – but by methods of service 

provision. Also note that whilst more proximate 

in terms of availability, and therefore more 

useful in operational management terms - the 

CHKS Live version of this indicator excludes ‘out 

of hospital’ deaths, due to the length of time 

taken to match this data to Office for National 

Statistics mortality data. As reflected in the 

mandated HSCIC version of SHMI (including out 

of hospital deaths) – our SHMI banding is in the 

‘as expected’ range. 

Reduction in weekend mortality rates 

The Trust has not achieved against target in this 

respect, albeit by a relatively small margin, at 

27% for the year. Appropriateness of baselines 

will be reviewed, as the value for 2011-12 was 

higher than April 2012 at 28.4% - hence year on 

year improvement is evident. 

Patient Experience 

Increasing our responsiveness to patients needs 

using a composite indicator of care 

Our target for increased responsiveness to 

patient needs has been achieved. The overall 

index for patient satisfaction has increased from 

82.9 in 2011-12, to 89.9 for 2012-13. Our new 

patient experience opinion capture system will 

continue to support monitoring of this initiative. 

Occupational Therapist (OT) and Health Visitor 

attendances 

The Trust has achieved its target of >95% and 

improved upon its baseline for OT visits for 

assessment  within 28 days, ending the year with 

performance of 99.4%; exceeding this level of 

performance for 2013-14 will be very challenging 

indeed. Health Visitor attendances within 10-14 

days of childbirth target of 97% has not been 

achieved by a small margin, monitoring of this 

target will continue under Community 

performance reporting. 

Proportion of patients assessed using the MUST 

nutritional tool every 7 days 

P
a
g
e
 7

2



 

47 

 

The Trust has not achieved its target to improve 

base line; monitoring of this indicator across all 

wards, alongside implementation of corrective 

actions, will be progressed as part of the trust 

improvement programme for Intra Operative 

Fluid Management (IOFM). 

Proportion of patients with completed (and 

calculated) fluid balance charts 

Whilst the Trust has achieved its target by 

significant improvement against base line; 

monitoring will be continued as part of 

Service2Board indicators, given the importance 

of this issue in relation to the impact on patient 

recovery. Outcomes against this indicator will be 

progressed as part of the trust improvement 

programme for Intra Operative Fluid 

Management (IOFM). 

Culture 

Applicable staff to have ‘in-year’ Personal 

Development Review (PDR) 

The Trust has improved slightly against baseline, 

albeit not achieving this in the final quarter of 

the year. YTD performance in respect of this 

indicator is above baseline, but this is of limited 

value given the rolling nature of the target as due 

dates for review occur throughout the year. 

IR1 reporting 

The target for increased reporting of incidents via 

Datix (IR1 form) has been achieved, this enables 

action to be taken to mitigate the risk of future 

incidents, the impact and likelihood of which is 

captured – therefore ensuring that incidents are 

reported to the most appropriate level of 

seniority, according to its risk rating. 

Compliance against Mandatory and Statutory 

Training (MAST) 

The Trust broadly achieved improvements 

against baseline for this indicator, although 

slipping slightly at the end of quarter 4.  

Employee sickness rates 

The target for reducing sickness absence was not 

achieved by the Trust for 2012-13, this will 

continue to be monitored. 

Data Quality 

Data Quality Index (HRG4 based) 

The Trust has not achieved against its target of 

increasing our index score against 2011-12 for 

data quality; currently the Trust value for 2012-

13 is 94.6 against HES peer value of 95.5. At the 

time of report publication a number of uncoded 

episodes remain for March data, it is likely that 

these will drive up the year end figure once 

refreshed hence the full year index score will 

improve. 

Blank, invalid or unacceptable primary diagnosis 

rates (HRG 4 based) 

The Trust has not achieved against target for 

2012-13, mainly due to a high number of blank 

primary diagnoses in the last quarter. The rate 

for the Trust of 2.7% blank primary diagnoses 

against 5.1% for HES peers in quarter 4 remains 

favourable however.  As per the Data Quality 

Index, this rate is likely to improve significantly as 

further outstanding episodes are coded. 

Average diagnoses per coded episode 

Trust performance in respect of this indicator 

remains unchanged against last year at 3.2 

diagnoses per coded episode. Our performance 

against HES peers is lower than the 4.2 national 

average. It is anticipated that outcomes from the 

data quality and death certification improvement 

programmes will positively influence this 

situation in the coming year. 

SystmOne Data Quality 

The Trust has not achieved its target of a 97% 

rate for SystmOne, by a very narrow margin at 

96.9%, this will continue to be monitored. 

P
a
g
e
 7

3



 

48 

 

Table 5: Key Quality Indicators for Quality Account monitoring report 2013-14 - New and remaining indicators 

Domain ID Indicator name Rationale for monitoring 

Patient Safety 

PS_1 Have zero ‘Never Events’ Zero target not achieved for 2012-13, monitoring to continue 

PS_2 Rate of patient safety incidents/1000 admissions Linked to ‘no blame’ reporting culture 

PS_3 Percentage of patient safety incidents resulting in severe harm or death 
Linked to ‘no blame’ reporting culture and Harm Free Care 

(NHS Safety Thermometer) 

PS_4a Number of patients with C. Diff On-going infection control surveillance 

PS_4b Number of patients with  MRSA  On-going infection control surveillance 

Patient 

Experience 

PE_1 
Increasing our responsiveness to our patients needs using a composite 

indicator of care, from April 2011 baseline 
Links to ‘caring’ objectives/on-going Trust requirement 

PE_2 Increase in the number of patients assessed using the MUST nutritional tool Target not achieved for 2012-13, monitoring to continue 

PE_3 
Increase in the number of patients with completed (and calculated) fluid 

balance charts 

Monitoring to continue as part of Ward2Board indicators, 

linked to IOFM improvement programme 

PE_4 Increase in number of complaints On-going Patient Experience indicator 

Clinical 

Effectiveness 

CE_1 Reducing emergency re-admissions to hospital within 28 days of discharge Target not achieved for 2012-13, monitoring to continue 

CE_2 Reducing weekend mortality rates as at April baseline 2012 
Reduction target not achieved in 2012-13, monitoring to 

continue 

CE_3 Dementia Find, Assess/Investigate, Refer (F.A.I.R)  
Summary indicator to reflect progress against Improvement 

Programme (NEW) 

CE_4 Looked After Children’s assessments Target not achieved for 2012-13, monitoring to continue 

Culture 

C_1 All applicable staff to have in year PDR Links to ‘caring’ objectives  

C_2 Increase in IRI reporting Linked to ‘no blame’ reporting culture 

C_3 All staff to maintain compliance against MAST training Links to supporting staff objectives 

C_4 Employee sickness rates Proxy marker reflecting morale/wellbeing of staff 

Data Quality 

DQ_1 Data Quality index (CHKS Live -HRG4 based) 
On-going Trust requirement – links to DQ Improvement 

Programme 

DQ_2 
Blank or invalid or unacceptable primary diagnosis rates (CHKS Live -HRG4 

based) 

On-going Trust requirement – links to DQ Improvement 

Programme 

DQ_3 Depth of coding average diagnosis per coded episode (CHKS Live) 
On-going Trust requirement – links to DQ Improvement 

Programme 

P
a
g
e
 7

4



 

49 

 

DQ_4 Data quality summarised indicator – TBC 
Summary indicator to reflect progress against Improvement 

Programme (NEW) 

Notes 

• Baselines for new indicators will be established in quarter 1 of 2013-14, for remaining indictors, 2012-13 outcomes will be used. 

• DoH mandated Quality Account indicators, based on HSCIC publications, will be reported in the Quality Account as a distinct dataset due to the 
time lag associated with data availability 

 

Table 6: Indicators to be removed from Quality Account monitoring report 2013-14 

Domain 
ID (if 

applicable) 
Indicator/programme name Rationale for removal 

Patient safety PS_1 

To ensure that we are meeting 90% compliance against all 

of the standards set out in relation to safe and secure 

storage of medications 

Due to the significant improvements associated with these indicators, on-

going audits will be carried out by the Clinical Effectiveness team and 

included in the annual audit plan. These will be reported via the Clinical 

Effectiveness group 

Patient 

Experience 

PE_2 
Increasing compliance to 65% of 5 key measures on  the 

Liverpool Care of the Dying  Pathway (LCP) by April 2012 

Targets achieved for 2012-13, hence no longer an improvement 

programme and as such will no longer be reported at summary level. On-

going monitoring is to be undertaken as part of the nursing accreditation 

scheme 

PE_3 

Increase the proportion of community OT visits for 

assessment within 28 days from April 2012/13 baseline to 

95% by April 2013/14  

Quality at a Glance to be streamlined - Indicator more appropriately 

monitored via Community performance reporting 

PE_4 
Increase the number of Health Visitor first visit within 10-14 

days of birth from 90% to 97%  

Quality at a Glance to be streamlined - Indicator more appropriately 

monitored via Community performance reporting 

PE_6 PROMS data 
Quality at a Glance to be streamlined - reported in the DoH mandated 

indicator dataset 

Clinical 

Effectiveness 

CE_1 
Reducing the number of hospital re-admissions from care 

homes within 30 days  from April 2012 baseline 

Quality at a Glance to be streamlined - Indicator more appropriately 

monitored via Community performance reporting 

CE_3 Reduction in Mortality:  SHMI value and banding 
Quality at a Glance to be streamlined - reported in the DoH mandated 

indicator dataset 

CE_4 % patients admitted treatment inc palliative care 
Quality at a Glance to be streamlined - reported in the DoH mandated 

indicator dataset 

CE_5 
% patients whose death inc  in SHMI treatment  palliative 

care 

Quality at a Glance to be streamlined - reported in the DoH mandated 

indicator dataset 

P
a
g
e
 7

5



 

50 

 

Improvement 

Programmes 

- 
Medications Management – Compliance with RPS 

guidelines 
Rationale for removal as per PS_1 above 

- Communication Monitoring to be continued via the CQUIN programme 

- NHS Safety Thermometer – Harm Free Care Process established for monitoring, to be reported under CQUINs 

- End of Life care – Liverpool Care Pathway 5 key measures 
Improvement Programme goals achieved, on-going monitoring to be 

undertaken as part of the nursing accreditation scheme 

- Responsiveness to patient’s needs Process established for monitoring, to be reported under CQUINs 

- Looked After Children’s assessments Progress now to be reported under Quality at a Glance 

 

P
a
g
e
 7

6



 

51 

 

National Priorities and Regulatory Requirements 2012-13 

In addition to our quality indicators, the Trust is also assessed through the submission of the following ‘national priorities’ which are set by different organisations: 

Year end position National Target Year end Position National Target

Access to Genito Urinary Medicine Clinic (%) 100% 100% 100% 100%

Number of cases - Clostridium Difficile Infection (Cdiff) � � 35 cases 42 cases 21 cases 31 cases

Number of cases - MRSA � �  1 case 2 cases  1 case 0 cases

Delayed transfers of care � 1.5% 3.5% 1.6% 3.5%

Infant health & inequalities: breastfeeding initiation � 62.0% 64.0% 60.5% 66.0%

VTE - percentage of all adult inpatients who have had a VTE risk assessment on 

admission to hospital using the national tool -
� 90.1% 90.0% 92.3% 90.0%

Nobody waits more than 18 weeks from GP referral to treatment                                                                                                   � �
98% Admitted Patients

98% Non Admitted Patients

90% Admitted Patients

95% Non Admitted Patients

Indicator changed from April 

1st 2012

Indicator changed from 

April 1st 2012

Admitted 
� � 16.1 weeks 23 weeks

Indicator changed from  1st 

April 2012

Indicator changed from 1st 

April 2012

Non-Admitted 
� � 10.6 weeks 18.3 weeks

Indicator changed from  1st 

April 2012

Indicator changed from 1st 

April 2012

Incomplete 
� � 16 weeks 26 weeks

Indicator changed from  1st 

April 2012

Indicator changed from 1st 

April 2012

Admitted 
� � 5.2 weeks 11.1 weeks

Indicator changed from  1st 

April 2012

Indicator changed from 1st 

April 2012

Non-Admitted 
� � 2.4 weeks 6.6 weeks

Indicator changed from  1st 

April 2012

Indicator changed from 1st 

April 2012

Incomplete
� � 3.0 weeks 7.2 weeks

Indicator changed from  1st 

April 2012

Indicator changed from 1st 

April 2012

Admitted � � Not Applicable Not Applicable 93.9% 90%

Non-Admitted � � Not Applicable Not Applicable 98% 95%

Incomplete � � Not Applicable Not Applicable 93.7% 92.0%

Diagnostic waiting times - nobody waits 6 weeks or over for a key diagnostic test � Not Applicable Not Applicable 1.3% less than 1%

Patients waiting less than 4 hours in A&E (%) � � 95.57% 95.0% 95.30% 95%

Cancelled Operations (%) � 0.93% 0.8% 0.79% 0.8%

Patients with new onset chest pain thought to be angina seen in a RACPC within 2 

weeks of referral (%)
� 99.0% 100% Indicator removed Indicator removed

95th Percentile Time - RTT Pathway - The 95th Percentile time waited for admitted (adjusted) and non-admitted patients whose clocks stopped during the period and for incomplete pathways at the end of the period.

Median Time - RTT Pathway -  The median time waited for admitted and non-admitted patients completing an RTT pathway, and for incomplete pathways. 

 RTT Pathway -  The percentage of patients seen within 18 weeks in respect of Consultant led services to which the 18 weeks referral to treatment standard applies. 

National Priorities 2012/13

Measure DOH MON
2011/2012 2012/2013

P
a
g
e
 7

7



 

52 

 

 

National Priorities Commentary 

Performance by the Trust against National Priorities has been good in 2012-13, with 20 of 26 (76.9%) relevant priorities being achieved against target; compared to 

2011-12 where 22 of 28 (78.5%) of relevant priorities being achieved against target. 

C. Difficile performance remains strong, although the MRSA bacteraemia target was not achieved – ‘ownership’ of this incidence was disputed by the Trust, but due 

to failing to obtain blood samples within the relevant timescale of acceptance of a transfer from another Trust, this has been recorded against TRFT performance. 

TRFT performance for infection prevention and control remains amongst the best in the country. Breastfeeding initiation performance has slipped by 1.5% against 

last year – failing to achieve against the national target which increased by 2% for 2012-13; TRFT continues to strive to drive up performance against this target. 

All applicable Referral To Treatment (RTT) targets have been achieved, bar the target for nobody waiting 6 weeks or over for a key diagnostic test (1.3% vs 1.0% 

target). Stroke, learning disability access and mixed sex accommodation targets have all been achieved. 

Year end position National Target Year end Position National Target

Women who have seen a midwife or a maternity healthcare professional by 12 

completed weeks of pregnancy (%)
� 87.8% 90.0% 87.3% 90%

Patients who spend at least 90% of their time on a stroke unit (%) � 87.3% 80.0% 85.6% 80%

Higher risk TIA cases who are scanned and treated within 24 hours (%)                                                                           � 68.9% 60.0% 87.4% 60%

Access to healthcare for people with a learning disability’, based on 

recommendations set out in Healthcare for All 2008 * collected with special data 

collection
� Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant

Mixed Sex Accommodation -  The number of breaches of sleeping accommodation � 19 breaches 0 breaches 0 breaches 0 breaches

Anti Cancer Drug Treatments - Chemotherapy (%) � � 100% 98.0% 100% 98.0%

Surgery (%) � � 98.3% 94.0% 99.2% 94.0%

Radiotherapy (from 1 January 2011) (%) � � Not Applicable 94.0% Not Applicable 94.0%

Patients treated within two months of consultant upgrade (%) � � 96.8% Not yet available 97.4% Not yet available

From Consultant Screening Service Referral (%) � � 98.2% 90.0% 95.3% 90.0%

Urgent GP Referral (%) � � 93.7% 85.0% 93.3% 85.0%

All cancers � � 99.3% 96.0% 99.3% 96.0%

All cancers (%) � 97.1% 93.0% 95.2% 93.0%

For symptomatic breast patients (cancer not initially suspected) (%) � 95.0% 93.0% 91.6% 93.0%

Health visitor numbers against plan � Not Applicable Not Applicable 41.2 49 Wte

Two week wait from referral to date first seen

National Priorities 2012/13

Measure DOH MON
2011/2012 2012/2013

31-Day Wait For First Treatment (Diagnosis To Treatment)

Patients waiting no more than 31 days for second or subsequent cancer treatment

62-Day Wait For First Treatment (All cancers)

P
a
g
e
 7

8



 

53 

 

Cancer 31 and 62 day targets for first and second/subsequent treatments, including the 31 day diagnosis to treatment, have all been achieved – with half reflecting 

increased improvement on the previous year, the remainder still performing above target having slipped slightly. 

Two week wait from referral to date first seen target has been achieved for ‘all cancers’ – although ‘symptomatic breast’ in isolation, fell just short of the national 

target by 1.3%. A new target for maintaining Health Visitor numbers against plan has not been achieved – falling short by 7.3 whole time equivalents (WTEs). 

P
a
g
e
 7

9



 

54 

 

ANNEXE: Statement on behalf of Local Involvement Networks 

 

LINkrotherham has continued to strengthen partnership working with the Rotherham Foundation Trust 

Hospital during 2012. 

 

LINkrotherham supported by NHS Rotherham and Rotherham Foundation Trust to undertake a 
review of Rotherham’s emergency/out of hours health services.   LINkrotherham arranged and 
facilitated focus groups to provide further understanding as to why people choose the service they do. 
The information gathered from the focus groups is part of a much wider piece of work around 
unscheduled care services.  
 
In LINkrotherham’s analysis, no patterns or consensus emerged about why and when certain people 
accessed specific services. There was a lot of confusion from service user perspective, about which 
was the ‘right’ service and participants weren’t therefore always able to make informed decisions 
about accessing the appropriate health service.  
 

LINkrotherham Board members’ response to Quality Accounts improvements 2012-13 included the 
view that the standards should be regularly reviewed with respect to rates of incidents reporting, 
where higher numbers of reports indicate a positive patient safety culture.  With respect to the Francis 
report recommendations LINkrotherham believe that patient experience, family and friends’ 
satisfaction is paramount and pressures with respect to targets should not distort clinical priorities.  
Neither should it ignore the duty of candour nor override shared decision making. 
 
From the end of March 2013, LINkrotherham will end and its work will transfer to Healthwatch 
Rotherham which will be Rotherham’s consumer champion for patients, service users and the public 
across health and social care.  Healthwatch Rotherham will have additional functions and funding to 
LINkrotherham for supporting individuals to exercise choice and control and provide a local health 
complaints advocacy service. LINkrotherham Governing Board wish Healthwatch Rotherham every 
success. 
 

 
Diana Swanson 

LINkrotherham Chairperson 

27th March 2013 

Page 80



 

 

Annexe: Statement on behalf of Council of 

 

As Lead Governor and Chair of the Patient Safety & Experience Governor & Member Group, a sub

committee of the Council of Governors, I would like to acknowledge the unique contribution that 

individual elected Governors and the Council of Governor

development of The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust and specifically to the development of the key 

quality indicators. 

During the year, Governors have monitored levels of quality in relation to Care Qualit

standards, actively participated in Senior Nurse Walkarounds

quality strategy and also the programme of work planned for 201

Information on the quality of care is shared with Governors on a regular bas

question progress against targets.  The additional work undertaken by the Patient Safety & 

Experience Governor & Member Group ensures we stay close to the quality of care provided to the 

patients and the people of Rotherham.

As a Council of Governors we have seen the content of the Quality Account, and have been involved 

in defining the quality indicators and priorities for the coming year

the on-going work in relation to patients with symptoms of 

will be reported regularly on by the Patient Safety and Experience Committee Governor’s meeting.

 

 

 

Jean Dearden 

Public Governor/Lead Governor 

Chair, Patient Safety & Experience Governor & Member Group

 

11th April 2013 

 

55 

Annexe: Statement on behalf of Council of Governors 

As Lead Governor and Chair of the Patient Safety & Experience Governor & Member Group, a sub

committee of the Council of Governors, I would like to acknowledge the unique contribution that 

individual elected Governors and the Council of Governors as a whole are able to make to the future 

development of The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust and specifically to the development of the key 

During the year, Governors have monitored levels of quality in relation to Care Qualit

in Senior Nurse Walkarounds, contributed to the development of the 

the programme of work planned for 2013-14. 

Information on the quality of care is shared with Governors on a regular basis and we challenge and 

question progress against targets.  The additional work undertaken by the Patient Safety & 

Experience Governor & Member Group ensures we stay close to the quality of care provided to the 

patients and the people of Rotherham. 

uncil of Governors we have seen the content of the Quality Account, and have been involved 

in defining the quality indicators and priorities for the coming year. The Governors specifically support 

going work in relation to patients with symptoms of dementia, aligned to CQUIN targets, which 

will be reported regularly on by the Patient Safety and Experience Committee Governor’s meeting.

Chair, Patient Safety & Experience Governor & Member Group 

As Lead Governor and Chair of the Patient Safety & Experience Governor & Member Group, a sub-

committee of the Council of Governors, I would like to acknowledge the unique contribution that 

s as a whole are able to make to the future 

development of The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust and specifically to the development of the key 

During the year, Governors have monitored levels of quality in relation to Care Quality Commission 

contributed to the development of the 

is and we challenge and 

question progress against targets.  The additional work undertaken by the Patient Safety & 

Experience Governor & Member Group ensures we stay close to the quality of care provided to the 

uncil of Governors we have seen the content of the Quality Account, and have been involved 

. The Governors specifically support 

dementia, aligned to CQUIN targets, which 

will be reported regularly on by the Patient Safety and Experience Committee Governor’s meeting. 

Page 81



 

56 

 

Annexe: Statement from Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group (Commissioners) 

The maintenance of high quality care while delivering efficiencies has remained a priority and key 

challenge up to 31st March 2013. Rotherham PCT ceased to exist on 31st March 2013 and Rotherham 

Clinical Commissioning Group (RCCG) came into full existence on 1st April 2013. The groundwork for the 

relationship between the Trust and the CCG has been firmly laid during the transition and lead up to this 

major change in NHS commissioning.  

The Trust has engaged with the PCT and emerging CCG on many work streams involving service 

delivery/provision regarding referrals management and unplanned care. This work involving the Trust 

Medical Director and Chief Nurse, along with other key senior clinicians and officers, working with 

PCT/CCG clinicians and officers has resulted in improved pathways of care and a series of top tips for 

referring GPs. The Trusts senior clinicians have also engaged with a programme of learning events for 

Primary Care to support work on pathways.  

The involvement of senior clinicians from the Trust in the on-going commissioning and contract 

management remains strong; for example the Chief Nurse and Executive Medical Director both attend 

Contract Quality Meetings and have been involved in the negotiations relating to the 2013-14 CQUIN 

scheme.  

There has been a flurry of negative publicity in relation to the Trust’s financial balance and operational 

issues during replacement of their defunct Patient Administration System with a much more 

comprehensive Electronic Patient Record (EPR) System. These have been largely resolved as a result of 

‘bug’ fixes, collaborative work between TRFT and Meditech to create system enhancements, increased 

staff training and changes to administrative SOPs. Maintaining the quality of data submitted for the 

Commissioning Data Set has been a challenge for the Trust during the implementation of the Meditech 

EPR. This had an impact on the Trust’s ability to get the correct amount of Payment by Results funding. 

Notwithstanding these challenges, the Trust maintained an open and honest relationship with the 

PCT/CCG about the problems and their plans to resolve them. While there have been problems, the CCG 

are reasonably assured that the data included in the quality account is accurate.  

Whilst there have been issues as outlined above, the Trust have made solid achievements in terms of 

providing safe, quality care as evidenced by the findings of the NHS Safety Thermometer and the 

programme of clinically led visits to the Trust. These visits will continue throughout 2013-14 together with 

PCT/CCG representation on the unannounced senior nurse visits to wards and clinical areas where 

patient/GP feedback has raised questions.    

RCCG believe that the data received for the purpose of contract performance monitoring and management 
purposes during 2012-13 has not always been accurate given the issues with the EPR system. However, 
RCCG welcome the Trust’s focus on improving data quality through the CQUIN scheme and other 
programmes of work. The combined effect of remedial activities undertaken by TRFT, alongside the open 
and honest communication with the PCT/CCG and regional and national benchmarking data, is that the 
CCG can take assurance that the submissions that are now being made are suitably robust and accurate, 
as to form the basis of PbR (Payment by Results) fund provision.  

 

Dr Phil Birks 

GP Executive Lead – TRFT Contract: Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group 

8
th
 May 2013

Page 82



 

 

RFT Quality Accounts – formal response from 

 

 

The Quality Accounts were presented to members at their meeting in December 2012.  Members 

appreciate being presented with this information and having considered and discussed these; they 

are fully supportive of the accounts and feel happy with the work which has taken p

 

During the meeting, scrutiny members raised a number of queries in relation to the accounts and 

future sharing of information between the Trust and the Health Select Commission. 

the way in which the Trust has responded to this and continues to work in a positive manner with 

Scrutiny in Rotherham.  

 

Following a recent scrutiny review of Autistic Spectrum Disorder, a number of recommendations were 

made which are specific to the Trust and I look forward to receiving responses to these 

recommendations and hopefully how they have further improved quality in the coming year. 

 

The Health Select Commission feels happy with the willingness of the Trust, from both officer

directors, to attend their meetings and present information to them, as well as taking on board their 

comments and concerns.   The commission members look forward to working much more closely with 

the Trust with on-going matters in the future. 

 

Cllr Brian Steele 

Chair of Rotherham Health Select Commission 

  

57 

formal response from the Rotherham Health Select Commission 

The Quality Accounts were presented to members at their meeting in December 2012.  Members 

appreciate being presented with this information and having considered and discussed these; they 

the accounts and feel happy with the work which has taken p

During the meeting, scrutiny members raised a number of queries in relation to the accounts and 

future sharing of information between the Trust and the Health Select Commission. 

the way in which the Trust has responded to this and continues to work in a positive manner with 

Following a recent scrutiny review of Autistic Spectrum Disorder, a number of recommendations were 

pecific to the Trust and I look forward to receiving responses to these 

recommendations and hopefully how they have further improved quality in the coming year. 

The Health Select Commission feels happy with the willingness of the Trust, from both officer

directors, to attend their meetings and present information to them, as well as taking on board their 

comments and concerns.   The commission members look forward to working much more closely with 

going matters in the future.  

 

Chair of Rotherham Health Select Commission  

the Rotherham Health Select Commission  

The Quality Accounts were presented to members at their meeting in December 2012.  Members 

appreciate being presented with this information and having considered and discussed these; they 

the accounts and feel happy with the work which has taken place for 2012-13. 

During the meeting, scrutiny members raised a number of queries in relation to the accounts and 

future sharing of information between the Trust and the Health Select Commission.  I am pleased with 

the way in which the Trust has responded to this and continues to work in a positive manner with 

Following a recent scrutiny review of Autistic Spectrum Disorder, a number of recommendations were 

pecific to the Trust and I look forward to receiving responses to these 

recommendations and hopefully how they have further improved quality in the coming year.  

The Health Select Commission feels happy with the willingness of the Trust, from both officers and 

directors, to attend their meetings and present information to them, as well as taking on board their 

comments and concerns.   The commission members look forward to working much more closely with 

Page 83



 

58 

 

[For insertion at an appropriate point in the NHS Choices (Graphics Team version) document] 

Case study:  Business Intelligence initiatives continue to support trust staff in driving forward ‘Harm Free 

Care’ – in line with Francis Report recommendations, also gaining nationwide recognition as best practice 

for NHS Safety Thermometer reporting 

   NHS Safety Thermometer was instigated as a National CQUIN for NHS Trusts for 2012-13. Replacing NHS 

QUEST, it covers many of the same areas including falls/pressure ulcer reduction, VTE assessment/ prophylaxis 

and Urinary Tract Infection reduction.  

   The overarching concept of the initiative is to drive upwards the prevalence of ‘harm free care’ – echoing the 

sentiment of Florence Nightingale in that “the very first requirement of a hospital, is that it should do the sick 

no harm”.  

   Reducing patient harm is also stated as a key objective arising from the Francis report on the public inquiry 

into poor quality outcomes and patient care at Mid Staffordshire – which was published in February 2013. In 

this sense, the CQUIN is well aligned to the latest findings and recommendations for future improvement in 

NHS patient care. 

   The CQUIN targets for 2012-13 were simply designed to start Trusts performing the snapshot audits against 

all patients in an acute bed (or treated by District Nurses) on a given day – and submitting the results, on a 

monthly basis, in an appropriate format to the NHS Information Centre for publication and peer comparison. 

   The use of SQL Server 2008TM technology, in combination with SNAPTM optical character recognition 

software enabled seamless data flow from the point of capture, to its availability online on the Trust intranet – 

with ‘drill up’ and ‘drill down’ capability, to enable comparison of results at specialty and ward level. The 

submission to NHS Information Centre is also performed via SQL Server 2008TM technology – ensuring error 

free transmission of data, in a timely fashion. 

   Given that the Trust was already performing a similar audit based approach for Ward Nursing Quality 

Indicators – the decision was made to align NHS ST data requirements with that system. The key benefits of 

this were an already well-established data validation process (linked to Datix incident reporting) and the ability 

to enable a ‘self service’ approach for ward and specialty managers to rapidly see their results online – and 

take corrective action where necessary.  

   This capability has resulted in several core ST metrics reflecting consistent improvement throughout the 

year. The validation and technological approach taken by TRFT, in achieving the aims of this CQUIN, have been 

widely acclaimed as National best practice in a variety of Safety Thermometer forums; it also embodies the 

Trust core value of ‘right first time’. 

Page 84



 

59 

 

Appendix 1: Quality at a Glance indicators 2012-13 progress 

 

 

Quality at a Glance: Acute & Community 
Key indicators  for review

Baseline 

period

Baseline 

value
Target Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 YTD

Qtr 

change

YTD 

Rating

PS_1 Compliance against all of the standards set out in relation to safe and secure storage of medications (composite %) Qtr4 2011-12 68.0% 90% 60.9% 68.4% 64.0% 64.2% 64.3%

PS_2a Have zero ‘Never Events’ 2011-12 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

PS_2b Rate of reported patient safety incidents per 1,000 admissions (IP only - Datix/Data Warehosue Online 01b) 2011-12 78 Increase 84 93 89 92 89

PS_2c Percentage of patient safety incidents resulting in serious harm (semi permanent/permanent) or death (Datix) 2011-12 3.1% Reduce 2.3% 2.2% 1.6% 2.3% 2.1%

PS_3 Number of patients with attributable C. Difficile 2011-12 35 =<31 5 7 6 3 21

PS_4 Number of patients with attributable  MRSA bacteraemia 2011-12 1 0 1 0 0 0 1

PS_5 Number of complaints (all approval status bar rejected, all trusts bar 'blank' and 'OTHNHS', all types bar 'HOLD') 2011-12 653 Increase 213 259 278 188 938

PE_1 Increasing our responsiveness to our patients needs using a composite indicator of care (Patient Experience Tracker) April 2012 82.9 Increase 85.0 89.1 91.0 92.4 89.9

PE_2 Increasing compliance to 65% of 5 key measures on  the Liverpool Care of the Dying  Pathway (LCP) by April 2013 2011-12 38.4% 65% 42.5% 90.0% 83.0% 92.8% 76.0%

PE_3 Increase the proportion of community OT visits for assessment within 28 days April 2012 98.9% 95% 98.7% 99.8% 99.7% 99.6% 99.4%

PE_4 Increase the number of Health Visitor first visit within 10-14 days of birth April 2012 97.0% 97% 96.8% 95.2% 95.8% 96.1% 96.0%

PE_5a Increase in the proportion of patients assessed using the MUST nutritional tool (every 7 days, as a minimum) April 2012 89.4% Increase 83.2% 84.9% 81.6% 84.7% 83.6%

PE_5b Increase in the proportion of patients with completed (and calculated) fluid balance charts April 2012 61.1% Increase 73.8% 83.1% 77.9% 78.3% 78.2%

CE_1 Reducing the number of hospital re-admissions from care homes within 30 days 2011-12 19.7% Reduce 17.2% 9.0% 7.0% - 11.0% -

CE_2 Reducing emergency re-admissions to hospital within 28 days of discharge (CHKS Live)* 2011-12 7.3% Reduce 6.0% 6.3% 5.8% 5.1% 5.8%

CE_3a Reduction in Mortality:  SHMI value - in hospital deaths only (CHKS Live) 2011-12 74.1 Reduce 78.7 74.3 76.6 86.3 79.2

CE_6 Reducing weekend mortality rates (measured as a percentage of IPs who die on Sat/Sun, against total IP deaths) April 2012 24.7% Reduce 23.8% 29.5% 25.6% 29.1% 27.0%

C_1 Applicable staff to have in year PDR (end of Qtr snapshot)
Qtr4 2011-

12
49.0% 100% 50.1% 53.7% 50.9% 46.4% n/a -

C_2 IR1 reporting (all types) 2011-12 7512 Increase 1878 2097 2140 2049 8164

C_3 Staff to maintain compliance against MAST training (end of Qtr snapshot)
Qtr4 2011-

12
75.0% 100% 77.0% 77.3% 77.1% 70.1% n/a -

C_4 Employee sickness rates 2011-12 4.3% Reduce 4.2% 4.5% 4.7% 5.3% 4.7%

DQ_1 Data Quality index - CHKS Live (HRG4 based)* 2011-12 95.9 Increase 95.4 94.7 95.0 93.3 94.6

DQ_2 Blank, invalid or unacceptable primary diagnosis rates - CHKS Live (HRG4 based)* 2011-12 0.2% Reduce 1.0% 0.4% 0.8% 2.7% 1.2%

DQ_3 Depth of coding: average diagnosis per coded episode - CHKS Live (excludes Breathing Space) 2011-12 3.2 Increase 3.2 3.1 3.1 3.1 3.2

DQ_4 SystmOne Data Quality 2011-12 97.4% >97% 96.6% 96.7% 97.0% 97.1% 96.9%

Patient Safety

Patient 

Experience

Clinical 

Effectiveness

Data Quality

Culture

P
a
g
e
 8

5



 

60 

 

Appendix 2a: CQUINs 2012-13 year end position 

 

  

 No. Indicator Name Target and Monitoring

Financial 

Plan

Qtr1

Finance 

Actual

Qtr1

% 

Achieved

Qtr1

Financial 

Plan

Qtr2

Finance 

Actual

Qtr2

% 

Achieved

Qtr2

Financial 

Plan

Qtr3

Finance 

Actual

Qtr3

% 

Achieved

Qtr3

Financial Plan

Qtr4

Finance Actual

Qtr4

% 

Achieved

Qtr4

Full Year 

Plan

Full Year 

Actual

% 

Actual

VTE Risk Assessment (Numerator 1) 
Trust to achieve 90%  monthly data submitted via Unify 

reported on monthly scorecard
£25,515 £25,515 100% £25,515 £25,515 100% £25,515 £25,514.73 100% £25,515 £25,515 100% £102,059 £102,059 100%

Use of Appropriate Prophylax is (Numerator 2)
Trust to achieve 95%  monthly data submitted via Unify 

reported on monthly scorecard
£25,515 £25,515 100% £25,515 £25,515 100% £25,515 £25,514.73 100% £25,515 £25,515 100% £102,059 £102,059 100%

2a
Composite indicator on responsiveness to 

personal needs (National Inpatient Survey)

69.9 Achieved in 2011, Trust to sustain or improve its 

relative position nationally, using the National Patient 

Experience Benchmarking Tool.

£204,118 £204,118 100% £204,118 £204,118 100%

Community Matrons and Breathing Space 

improvement on the baseline established at the end of 

Q2, 2012-13.

£20,004 £20,004 100% £20,004 £20,004 100% £28,576 £28,576 100% £68,584 £68,584 100%

For District Nursing, Health Visiting, Physiotherapy 

Clinics, Podiatry, Orthopaedic Triage, where the Q4 

(2011-12) baseline is below 90% , payment will be 

made on improvement on the baseline.  Where the Q4 

(2011-12) baseline is 90% or above, payment will be 

made on the position being sustained at 90% or above.

£74,299 £74,299 100% £74,299 £74,299 100%

Numerator 1 - No. of patients aged 75 and above 

admitted as emergency inpatients, reported as having 

been asked the dementia case finding question within 

72 hours of admission to hospital or who have a 

clinical diagnosis of delirium on initial assessment or 

known diagnosis of dementia.  Achievement of  90% in 

any three consecutive calendar months.

£81,647 £0 0% £81,647 £0 0%

Numerator 2 - No. of patients aged 65 and above (local 

stretch) admitted as emergency inpatients, reported as 

having been asked the dementia case finding question 

within 72 hours of admission to hospital or who have a 

clinical diagnosis of delirium on initial assessment or 

known diagnosis of dementia. Achievement of  90% in 

any three consecutive calendar months.

£20,412 £0 0% £20,412 £0 0%

Numerator 1 - No.of admissions of patients aged 75 

and above admitted as emergency, inpatients who 

have scored positively on the case finding question or 

who have a clinical diagnosis of delirium reported as 

having had a dementia diagnostic assessment 

including investigations.  Achievement of  90% in any 

three consecutive calendar months. 

£81,647 £0 0% £81,647 £0 0%

Numerator 2 - No. of admissions of patients aged 65 

and above (local stretch) admitted as emergency, 

inpatients who have scored positively on the case 

finding question or who have a clinical diagnosis of 

delirium reported as having had a dementia diagnostic 

assessment including investigations.  Achievement of  

90% in any three consecutive calendar months.

£20,412 £0 0% £20,412 £0 0%

Numerator 1 - No.of all patients aged 75 and above 

admitted as an emergency inpatient who have had a 

diagnostic assessment (in whom the outcome is either 

“positive” or “inconclusive”) who are  referred for further 

diagnostic advice/follow up.  Achievement of  90% in 

any three consecutive calendar months. 

£81,647 £81,647 100% £81,647 £81,647 100%

Numerator 2 - No. of all patients aged 65 and above 

(local stretch) admitted as an emergency inpatient who 

have had a diagnostic assessment (in whom the 

outcome is either “positive” or “inconclusive”) who are  

referred for further diagnostic advice/follow up.   

Achievement of  90% in any three consecutive 

calendar months. 

£20,412 £20,412 100% £20,412 £20,412 100%

Quarter 3 Finance Quarter 4 Finance Quarter 1 Finance Quarter 2 Finance Full Year Financial Outcome

1

3a

3b

3c

2b Patient Experience - Community

Dementia Case Finding (1 - Find)

Dementia Diagnostic Assessment and 

Investigation (2 - Assess and Investigate)

Referral for Specialist Diagnosis (3 - Refer)

P
a
g
e
 8

6



 

61 

 

 

  

 No. Indicator Name Target and Monitoring

Financial 

Plan

Qtr1

Finance 

Actual

Qtr1

% 

Achieved

Qtr1

Financial 

Plan

Qtr2

Finance 

Actual

Qtr2

% 

Achieved

Qtr2

Financial 

Plan

Qtr3

Finance 

Actual

Qtr3

% 

Achieved

Qtr3

Financial Plan

Qtr4

Finance Actual

Qtr4

% 

Achieved

Qtr4

Full Year 

Plan

Full Year 

Actual

% 

Actual

4 NHS Thermometer

Three consecutive quarterly submissions of monthly 

survey data for all relevant patients and settings using 

NHS Safety Thermometer will trigger full payment of 

the CQUIN. Each set of complete data for a single 

Quarter will qualify  the provider for 33.3% of the total 

value for this CQUIN (given only 3 quarters of 2012/13 

are in scope). Commencing Q2

£68,039 £68,039 100% £68,039 £68,039 100% £68,039 £68,039 100% £204,118 £204,118 100%

5a
Assessment of patients in a non-admitted care 

setting

Service re-design of the non-elective pathway to 

accommodate  assessment in a non-admitted setting, 

through TRFT/NHSR clinically led visits and written 

reports from TRFT.  Quarterly milestones to be 

achieved.

£40,824 £0 0% £81,647 £81,647 100% £81,647 £81,647 100% £122,471 £122,471 100% £326,589 £285,765 87.50%

Numerator 1 - Completion of data collection template 

on a daily basis by Fast Response for all patients 

seen and submitted monthly to NHSR

£50,213 £50,213 100% £25,719 £25,719 100% £25,719 £25,719 100% £25,719 £25,719 100% £127,370 £127,370 100%

Numerator 2 -  To increase the number of patients 

assessed by Fast Response in A&E and Assessment 

Area. Target is an avg of 50 patients per month in Q3 

and Q4

£8,573 £8,573 100% £8,573 £8,573 100% £8,573 £8,573 100% £25,719 £25,719 100%

Numerator 3 - Analysis by TRFT  of capacity 

requirements for Intermediate Care, Fast Response 

and other Alternative Levels of Care

£13,880 £13,880 100% £19,187 £19,187 100% £13,880 £13,880 100% £24,494 £24,494 100% £71,441 £71,441 100%

Numerator 2 (Part 1) - Increase the proportion of 

practices with regular MDTs (not palliative 

care/GSF),which are  attended on a regular basis by 

community clinicians (e.g. District Nurses, Community 

Matrons etc). Target is 80% attendance  

£32,659 £32,659 100% £42,865 42864.7485 100% £61,235 £61,235 100% £136,759 £136,759 100%

Numerator 2 (Part 2) - TRFT to submit completed data 

collection template and register/record of attendance.

RFT to provide timetable of Consultant availabilty  in a 

Community setting for access to specialist advice 

following MDT meetings, as required, to all GP 

practices (copy to NHSR). 

£53,071 £53,071 100% £28,576 £28,576 100% £32,659 32658.856 100% £32,659 £32,659 100% £146,965 £146,965 100%

Numerator 4 - Increase the proportion of patients with 

chronic disease/LTC requiring MDT (updated quarterly) 

who have a care plan and named case manager.  

Agreed that patients should be those on the 

community matron's caseload

£42,865 42864.7485 100% £61,235 £61,235 100% £104,100 £104,100 100%

5d

Engagement and improvements to the 

LTC/Urgent Care pathways - CRMC 5 Pathways 

plus in 12-13 Childrens & General/Elderly 

Medicine. Cross -cutting Intermediate care

To reduce the overall number of  emergency 

admissions in 2012-13 to TRFT through engagement 

and improvements to the Long term conditions/Urgent 

Care pathways of COPD,Cardiology/CHD, Diabetes, 

Dementia, Falls, Children and Integrated Medicine. 

Work of the pathway groups reported quarterly through 

CRMC.

£48,988 £48,988 100% £48,988 £48,988 100% £48,988 £48,988 100% £48,988 £48,988 100% £195,953 £195,953 100%

6a

Patient Pathway/Experience in A&E

 - Improve access to A&E Triage Assessment 

and maintain time to treatment 

 To achieve the 15 minute 'Time to triage' for patients 

arriving by ambulance target (Numerator 1) and to 

achieve or maintain a 15% reduction on the 'time to 

see a clinician' (Numerator 2).  This is a year-end 

target with payment for partial achievement.

Both numerators to be achieved to receive full 

payment.

£195,953 £100,018 51% £195,953 £100,018 51%

Quarter 3 Finance Quarter 4 Finance Full Year Financial Outcome

Fast Response engagement in assessment of 

and/or utilisation of alternative levels of care as 

an alternative to admission or further 

assessment.

Community and Secondary Care Clinicians 

engagement with GP practice multi-disciplinary 

team meetings

5c

5b

Quarter 1 Finance Quarter 2 Finance 

P
a
g
e
 8

7



 

62 

 

 

  

 No. Indicator Name Target and Monitoring

Financial 

Plan

Qtr1

Finance 

Actual

Qtr1

% 

Achieved

Qtr1

Financial 

Plan

Qtr2

Finance 

Actual

Qtr2

% 

Achieved

Qtr2

Financial 

Plan

Qtr3

Finance 

Actual

Qtr3

% 

Achieved

Qtr3

Financial Plan

Qtr4

Finance Actual

Qtr4

% 

Achieved

Qtr4

Full Year 

Plan

Full Year 

Actual

% 

Actual

6b

To reduce the average length of time patients 

have to wait to be admitted into a specialty bed 

after a decision to admit has been made by the 

A& E department.

To incentivise individual speciality  areas to improve the 

patient pathway and communication links between 

A&E and the individual speciality areas. There are two 

key elements to this indicator.  

1) The timeliness of A&E staff to access at speciality  

level, Senior Doctors or Consultant's to gain advice on 

individual patients, seven days a week. 

2) Once a decision to admit is made we would like to 

see improvements in the time to admission onto the 

speciality ward. 

Q1 develop action plan with  quarterly milestones and 

hold clinician to clinican meetings on a quarterly basis 

to assess and agree progress.

£40,824 £40,824 100% £106,141 £106,141 100% £183,706 £183,706 100% £183,706 £183,706 100% £514,377 £514,377 100%

7a
Improving quality  & timeliness of clinic letters  

from secondary  to primary care

To increase the proportion of clinic letters for the 

specialties  of Trauma & Orthopaedics, Obstetrics & 

Gynaecology, Ophthalmology, ENT, Dermatology, 

General Medicine and General Surgery, issued from 

secondary care to primary care, which are received by 

GPs in a timely manner and have a quality standard.

Trust to achieve  a total increase of an additional 30% 

on the baseline value up to a maximum target value of 

90% by March 2013 (Q4). If the 90% target is achieved 

in year it is expected that this would then be sustained 

to the end March 2013 (Q4).

£64,909 £64,909 100% £0 £0 N/A £102,875 £102,875 100% £77,157 £77,157 100% £244,941 £244,941 100%

7b

Improving quality  & timeliness of discharge  

letters from secondary  to primary care

To increase the proportion of discharge letters for the 

specialties  of Integrated Medicine (including Diabetes, 

Cardiology, Respiratory and Gastroenterology), and 

A&E (non-admitted), issued from secondary care to 

primary care, which are received by GPs in a timely 

manner and have a quality standard.

The Trust to achieve  a total increase of an additional 

30% on the baseline value for Integrated Medicine and 

20% for A&E up to a maximum target value of 90% by 

March 2013 (Q4). If the 90% target is achieved in year 

it is expected that this would then be sustained to the 

end March 2013 (Q4). 

£57,153 £57,153 100% £40,824 £40,824 100% £40,824 £40,824 100% £57,153 £57,153 100% £195,953 £195,953 100%

7c
Improving quality  & timeliness of handover/case 

management plans  to primary care

To increase the number  and the  quality and 

timeliness of  handover/case management plans  

received by the patients GP for their patients 

discharged/transferred to and from Breathing Space 

and the Virtual Ward and discharged to Intermediate 

Care for T&O and Integrated Medicine.

Year- end target is an improvement on the baseline of 

the quality and  number of handover plans received by 

GPs 

£44,906 £44,906 100% £40,824 £40,824 100% £61,235 £61,235 100% £146,965 £146,965 100%

Quarter 1 Finance Quarter 2 Finance Quarter 3 Finance Quarter 4 Finance Full Year Financial Outcome

P
a
g
e
 8

8



 

63 

 

 

 

 No. Indicator Name Target and Monitoring

Financial 

Plan

Qtr1

Finance 

Actual

Qtr1

% 

Achieved

Qtr1

Financial 

Plan

Qtr2

Finance 

Actual

Qtr2

% 

Achieved

Qtr2

Financial 

Plan

Qtr3

Finance 

Actual

Qtr3

% 

Achieved

Qtr3

Financial Plan

Qtr4

Finance Actual

Qtr4

% 

Achieved

Qtr4

Full Year 

Plan

Full Year 

Actual

% 

Actual

8a

Audits of First and Follow-Up Outpatient 

Appointments and Engagement in the CRMC 

agenda

To undertake a number of audits on First and Follow-

Up Outpatient Appointments, to assess where 

improvements can be made to  the planned care 

pathway across a number of specialties (see Matrix  

8a), determined by the Clinical Referrals Management 

Committee (CRMC). Engagement of secondary care 

clinicans in the CRMC agenda

£57,153 £57,153 100% £40,824 £40,824 100% £0 £0 N/A £97,977 £97,977 100% £195,953 £195,953 100%

8b Diagnostics provision of Datsets

To reduce pathology requesting rate by Rotherham GP 

practices, through the provision of benchmarking data 

to practices.  The benchmarking data will provide 

information on total, specific and repeat request 

activity, which will enable GP practices to reflect on 

activity levels and the appropriateness of requests for 

repeat activity.

Year-end target with payment for partial achievement of 

completion of requirements set out in Numerators 1 to 

3.

£48,988 £48,988 100% £48,988 £48,988 100%

9

Reduction of inappropriate Fast Track 

discharges to Continuing Healthcare (CHC) and 

increasing the number of patients on to LCP 

who are at End of Life

The aim is to ensure that CHC patients are discharged 

on appropriate packages of care and to improve quality 

and care provision of those patients who are deemed 

truly at End of Life. Numerator 1 - LCP 100%

Numerator 2 - No patients assessed using Karnofsky 

scale with a score above 20 are moved to Fast Track.

£48,988 £48,988 100% £48,988 £48,988 100% £97,977 £97,977 100%

10 Implementation of the Safeguarding  Standards

To agree plans and to work towards ensuring full 

compliance against both Adult and Children's 

Safeguarding Standards, which are detailed in Section 

C 7.2 of the 2012-13 NHS Standard Contract. Target is 

to achieve agreed quarterly milestones.

£24,494 £24,494 100% £40,824 £40,824 100% £40,824 £40,824 100% £138,800 £138,800 100% £244,941 £244,941 100%

£616,436 £575,612 93% £653,858 £653,858 100% £784,493 £784,493 100% £2,027,571 £1,727,517 85% £4,082,357 £3,741,480 91.65%

Quarter 1 Finance Quarter 2 Finance Quarter 3 Finance Quarter 4 Finance Full Year Financial Outcome

P
a
g
e
 8

9



 

64 

 

Appendix 2b: CQUINs agreed goals for 2013-14 (also to be found at www.rotherhamhospital.nhs.uk/CQUINqualityindicatorframework) 

 

 

Goal No. Goal Name
Indicator 

Number
Indicator Name

Indicator Weighting 

(% of CQUIN scheme 

available)

Sub-Indicator 

Expected Financial 

Value of Indicator

1.1 Friends and Family Test - phased expansion 2.33% £83,647

1.2 Friends and Family Test - increased response rate 2.33% £83,647

1.3 Friends and Family Test - improved performance on staff test 2.33% £83,647

2
NHS Safety 

Thermometer
2.1 NHS Safety Thermometer - improvement on baseline 4.20% £150,564

3.1 Dementia - Find, Assess, Investigate and Refer (F.A.I.R) 1.75% £62,735

3.2 Dementia  - clinical leadership 1.75% £62,735

3.3 Dementia - supporting carers of people with dementia 1.75% £62,735

3.4 Adherence to the locally agreed dementia pathway 1.75% £62,735

4.1 VTE risk assessment 2.10% £75,282

4.2 VTE root cause analyses 2.10% £75,282

5.1
Improving Waiting Times for Admitted and Non-Admitted Care and Diagnostic 

Waits.  
16.70% £598,672

5.2
Improving Quality and Timeliness of Clinic Letters from Secondary Care to 

Primary Care
8.40% £301,128

5.3
Improving Quality and Timeliness of Discharge Letters from Secondary Care to 

Primary Care including Handover Plans
8.40% £301,128

6.1 Safeguarding (Francis and Winterbourne) 7.00% £250,940

6.2 Community Patient Experience 5.60% £200,752

6.3 Engagement in CRMC including audits 5.60% £200,752

6.4 Engagement in UCMC including audits 5.60% £200,752

6.5
Review of complaints process and implementation of related Francis report 

recommendations
4.20% £150,564

6.6 Review of death certifications 4.20% £150,564

6.7 Nurse leadership/key nurses 11.90% £426,599

Total 100.00% £3,584,863

1

3

4

5

6

Friends and Family 

Test

Dementia

VTE 

Communications and 

Improving Waiting 

Times

Implementing the 

Recommendations of 

Francis

P
a
g
e
 9

0



 

65 

 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

A&E   Accident & Emergency Department 

CEPOD  Confidential Enquiry into Perioperative Deaths 

CMACE  Centre for Maternal and Child Enquiries 

CHKS Comparative Health Knowledge System, a web based performance 

benchmarking system, utilised by many hospitals 

COPD   Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disorder 

Composite indicator An indicator formed from a number of other indicators, providing a high level 

summary of performance 

CQC   Care Quality Commission 

CQUIN  Commissioning for Quality and Innovation – a series of nationally and locally 

agreed improvement targets, linked to a proportion of Payment by Results 

funding as an incentive to achieve 

CSEC   Corporate Safety & Experience Committee 

DAD   Data Assurance Document  

Datix   National risk management and reporting system 

DGH    District General Hospital 

DQI Data Quality Index, a composite indicator reflecting data quality, provided by 

CHKS 

DoH   Department of Health 

EPAU   Early Pregnancy Advisory Unit 

EPR   Electronic Patient Record system 

GP   General Practitioner 

HES  Hospital Episode Statistics – National benchmarking of hospital activity, fed by 

Shared Uses Service (SUS) data 

HoT   Healthcare of Tomorrow 

HRG Healthcare Resource Group – the means of classifying diagnoses and 

interventions for Payment by Results (PbR) 

HSCIC   Health and Social Care Information Centre 

IOFM   Intra Operative Fluid Management 

IR1   Incident Reporting form 

LCP   Liverpool Care Pathway 

LINks   Local Improvement Networks 

Page 91



 

66 

 

MAST   Mandatory and Statutory Training 

MCPCIL  Marie Curie Palliative Care Institute Liverpool 

MDT   Multi-Disciplinary Team 

NCEPOD  National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death 

NCISH  National Confidential Enquiry into Suicide and Homicide by people with mental 

illness 

Never event  Defined by the DoH as a very serious, largely preventable, patient safety 

incident that should not occur if the relevant preventative measures have been 

put in place 

NG   Naso Gastric 

NHSLA  National Health Service Litigation Authority 

NPSA   National Patient Safety Agency 

NRLS   National Reporting and Learning System 

PAS   Patient Administration System 

PEC   Patient Experience Committee 

PET Patient Experience Tracker – a composite survey indicator of patient opinion, 

used in a variety of locations and departments in hospital, including Community 

Services 

PGMC   Post Graduate Medicine Centre 

NHS QUEST Quality improvement collaborative across 12 Trusts in the UK – this has now 

been extended and rebranded as NHS Safety Thermometer, and applies to all 

Acute Trusts as a ‘Harm Free Care’ initiative 

RAG   Red, Amber, Green – classification system for indicator performance review 

RCA   Root Cause Analysis 

RCP   Royal College of Physicians 

RIE   Rapid Improvement Event 

RPS   Royal Pharmaceutical Society 

Safety Thermometer The expanded National patient safety improvement initiative, promoting ‘Harm 

Free Care’, linked to National CQUIN funding – previously known as NHS 

QUEST 

SBAR   Situation, Background, Assessment, Recommendation tool 

SHMI   Summary level Hospital Mortality Indicator 

SI   Serious Incident 

Page 92



 

67 

 

SOP   Standard Operating Procedure 

SPA    Single Point of Access 

SUS  Secondary Uses Service – data submitted by trusts for national analysis and 

benchmarking purposes 

TRFT The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust 

WNAS   Ward Nursing Accreditation System 

 

Page 93



 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 

2.  Date: 14th June 2013 

3.  Title: Scrutiny Work Programme 2013/14 

4.  Directorate: Resources  

 
 
5. Summary 
 
The report updates members of Management Board and all of the Select 
Commissions on the outcomes from the “development session” on the work 
programme, held during OSMB on the 24th May 2013, and the proposals for allocation 
of that work programme to each of the Select Commissions. 
 
 
6. Recommendation 
 
That Members endorse the work programme and consider the following: 
 

• OSMB maintain oversight of the emerging Scrutiny arrangements for 
the City Region Economy and conduct any work as deemed necessary 

• Additional items for both Health Select Commission and Improving 
Places  

• How Self Regulation and/or Improving Places should deal with the 
Local Procurement agenda 

• Reallocation of the Housing Finance agenda from Self Regulation to 
Improving Places 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 14Page 94



 

7. Proposals and Details 
The work programme for 2012/13 was agreed early in the municipal year which gave 
Scrutiny a much earlier start to its work.  This has been reflected in the volume of work 
that has been covered during the year, despite the staffing changes and reductions 
that have taken place.   
 
The aim is to take the same approach this year and with this in mind Management 
Board agreed a headline work programme in a dedicated work planning session held 
at its meeting on the 24th May 2013.  Attached at appendix A is the work programme 
that was agreed during these discussions.  
 
It was agreed that each Commission should aim to have 1 full review and 1 spotlight 
review during the year, but that other items of interest and priority could be managed 
as part of the scheduled meetings with well scoped and planned reports by individual 
officers.  On this basis the appendix identifies not only the work area but whether it will 
be a full review, spotlight review or report to a scheduled meeting. 
 
Whilst information contained within the draft work programme reflects the discussions 
that were held on the 24th May, there are a number of items that will require further 
clarification between the Select Commissions and OSMB.  These are as follows: 
 

• Whilst the importance of the City Region Economy, in terms of key policy 
agendas, was recognised, it was noted that there will be new Scrutiny 
structures on a sub regional basis being devised for this.  It was therefore 
agreed that this was the most sensible way to support scrutiny of the City 
Region and that OSMB keep a watching brief on this as it emerges. 

• Some key suggestions from members of the Health Select Commission were 
not considered on the 24th May due to an omission, these are School Nursing 
and Sexual Health Services.  The Health Select Commission may well 
therefore wish to discuss its work programme further in light of this. 

• Similarly, additional suggestions for Improving Places have also been received 
since the 24th May which include Town Centres and Council house gardens.  
An ongoing work commitment to Pot holes and Section 106 agreements were 
also omitted.  Improving Places Select Commission may also wish to discuss 
its work programme further in light of this. 

• The allocation of Local Procurement to the Self Regulation Select Commission 
was based on the assumption that it could be looked at as part of their 
Commissioning Review.  The scoping of this may result in it becoming more of 
a focus on the economic regeneration implications of this and therefore more 
appropriately allocated to Improving Places  

• Council Housing Finance was allocated to Self Regulation on the 24th May, 
however, there is somewhat of an imbalance between Self Regulation and 
Improving Places in terms of work load so Members may wish to consider re-
allocating this to the Improving Places Select Commission. 

 
By way of assisting Members with these discussions, the terms of reference for all of 
the Select Commissions are attached as appendix B. 
 
It is intended that this report be considered by all Select Commissions and 
Management Board at the following meetings: 
 

Page 95



 

Improving Lives – 12th June 
Health  – 13th June 
OSMB – 14th June 
Improving Places – 19th June 
Self Regulation – 27th June 
OSMB – 28th June 
 
It is intended therefore that upon completion of the June round of meetings, these 
discussions will have been completed and that the work programme can be finalised.  
This would ensure that it could begin in July 2013, in advance of the Summer recess, 
the same as the previous year. 
 

8. Finance 
No direct financial implications. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
The development of a clear work programme maximises the potential for Scrutiny to 
have an impact and mitigates against the risk of using resources with little impact or 
outcome.  It does, however, need to maintain flexibility to allow for uncertainties to be 
accommodated within the planning process.  The work programme should begin by 
July 2013 to ensure the best chances of it being completed in time. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
The Scrutiny work programme aims to add value to corporate priorities by addressing 
key policy and performance priorities.  These are taken into consideration when 
defining the work programme on an annual basis. 
 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 

 

Contact Name: 
Deborah Fellowes, Scrutiny Manager ext 22769  

Page 96



 
Appendix A 
Work Programme 2013/14 – as agreed 24th May 2013 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board – Chair Councillor Glyn Whelbourn, Vice Chair Councillor Brian Steele 
 

Subject Source Work category Scope 

Community Safety Statutory requirement Reports Priority setting  
Anti Social Behaviour Bill 

Flooding 
 

  “               “ Single item As required to fulfil statutory requirements – includes 
Utilities 

Welfare Reform 
 

Scrutiny Cross cutting theme Maintain overview and refer issues to Steering Group 
as required 

Update review of Scrutiny 
function – Member 
structures 
 

Scrutiny Spotlight Review Looking at terms of reference and reviewing how 
effective the new structure is in implementation 

City Region economy – 
jobs and business 
 

Scrutiny and Cabinet/SLT Progress report To be addressed at City Region level 

Deprived 
Communities 
 
 

Cabinet/SLT Full Review Review of impact of policy and look specifically jobs 
and employment issues. To include issue referred from 
Welfare Reform Steering Group. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

7



 
 
Health Select Commission – Chair Councillor Brian Steele, Vice Chair Councillor Judy Dalton 
 

Subject Source Work category Scope 

Excess Medication 
 

Scrutiny Spotlight Review Aim to find ways to reduce wastage and save 
resources 

Continence Services 
 

Scrutiny Spotlight Review Aim to find ways for more preventive approaches and 
save resources 

How to improve health in 
Rotherham 
 

Cabinet/SLT Progress Reports This is a wide area – work with Health and Wellbeing 
Board on Health and Wellbeing strategy monitoring 

Access to GPs 
 

Scrutiny Full Review To follow on from issues raised in Urgent Care review 

Continuing Health care for 
Children and Young 
People 

Officer Report Follow on from Adults review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

8



 
 
Self Regulation Select Commission – Chair Councillor Simon Currie, Vice Chair Councillor Dominic Beck 
 

Subject Source Work category Scope 

Private Finance Initiative 
update 

Scrutiny Report  

Local procurement 
policies 

Officer Report This could be a separate piece of work around 
economic benefits or part of Commissioning review 

Commissioning Scrutiny Review Brought forward from 2012/13 

Budget setting process 
 

Cabinet/SLT and Scrutiny Review Members input into the process.  Self Regulation to 
consider including impact on equalities. 

Budget monitoring Scrutiny Progress Reports Regular monitoring reports. 

Performance 
monitoring/review of 
Corporate Plan outcomes 
 

Scrutiny Progress Reports plus 
potential report on refresh 
of Corporate Plan 

Regular monitoring reports. 

Post RBT savings  
 

Scrutiny Progress report as part of 
budget items 

Have savings been made as originally projected. 

Impact of budget cuts on 
equalities 
 

Scrutiny Report To be considered as part of budget review 

Council Housing rents and 
supplementary charges 
for community rooms and 
laundry charges 
 

 
Scrutiny 

Report With Improving Places 

Council Housing finance – 
impact of Welfare Reform 
 

Scrutiny Spotlight Review Report on officer review currently taking place 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 9

9



 
 
Improving Places Select Commission – Chair Councillor Jacquie Falvey, Vice Chair Councillor Kath Sims 
 

Subject Source Work category Scope 

Local Plan - Sites and Allocations 
Policy 
 

Scrutiny Progress reports Consideration of progress via 
consultation and development of 
policy.  In collaboration with Local 
Plan Steering Group 

Community assets/Community 
Right to Buy 
 

Scrutiny 
 
 
 

Potential report – later on in 
programme 
 
 

Consideration of progress if 
required 

Housing repairs  
 

Scrutiny Progress reports Quarterly reports required on 
repairs and voids. 

Council Housing rents and 
supplementary charges for 
community rooms and laundry 
charges 
 

 
Scrutiny 

Report With Self Regulation 

Customer Service Centre and 
Libraries 

Scrutiny Full Review Impact of new opening hours and 
changes to services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
0



 
 
Improving Lives Select Commission – Chair Councillor Ann Russell, Vice Chair Councillor Chris Read 
 

Subject Source Work category Scope 

School places update 
 

Scrutiny Progress Report Progress on issues raised – also 
links to Section 106 reports to 
Improving Places and Local Plan 
Steering Group work. 

Child Sexual Exploitation 
 

Scrutiny Progress report Picking up outstanding issues 
from 2012/13 

Update on Families for Change  Scrutiny Progress Report  

Support for improving outcomes 
at Key Stage 2; 
 

Scrutiny Progress Report Follow on from performance clinic 
work – also focus on impact of 
Learners First and pupil premium 

Outcomes and impact of the 
Lifestyle Survey – six-month 
progress review; 
 

Scrutiny Report  

Outcomes for Looked After 
Children (based on the 10 
questions to ask…) 
 

Scrutiny Report  

Poverty – children and older 
people 
 

Officer – census information Full Review To be completed but needs to be 
focused. 

Review of IYSS 
 

Scrutiny   
 
 

To review one year following start 
– defer to 2014/15 

Safeguarding  
 

Cabinet/SLT Spotlight Review Initiate with Annual Report then 
look at alcohol and drug misuse, 
transition to adults services. 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
2



 
Appendix B – terms of reference: specific functions of Select 
Commissions 

 
SELF-REGULATION  

The Self Regulation Select Commission is tasked with carrying out in-depth 
overview and scrutiny reviews as directed by the OSMB, including  

• scrutinising the Council’s self-assessment processes as part of the self-
regulation framework;  

• scrutinising issues and actions emerging from external assessments 
(peer review, inspection etc);  

• monitoring and holding to account the performance of service delivery 
within the Council and its partners etc with particular reference to the 
Corporate Plan and Community Strategy;  

• scrutinising and monitoring whether efficiency savings are achieved or 
exceeded;  

• co-ordinating the carrying out of value for money reviews;  

• scrutinising the annual budget setting process; and  

• monitoring the Council’s budget and medium term financial strategy.  

 
HEALTH  

The Health Select Commission is tasked with carrying out in-depth overview 
and scrutiny reviews as directed by the OSMB, including  

• performing the role of the Council’s designated scrutiny body for any 
issue relating to health and the public health agenda;  

 

• scrutinising the health services commissioned for the people of 
Rotherham (under the powers of health scrutiny as outlined in the 
Health and Social Care Act 2001);  

 

• scrutinising partnerships and commissioning arrangements in relation 
to health and well-being and their governance arrangements;  

 

• scrutinising measures for achieving health improvements and the 
promotion of wellbeing for Rotherham’s adults and children;  

 

• scrutinising measures designed to address health inequalities;  
 

• scrutinising public health arrangements;  
 

• scrutinising food standards and environmental health ; and 
 

• scrutinising issues referred to the select commission by the Local 
Involvement Network (or any successor body).  

 

Page 103



The Health Select Commission will also act as a consultee in respect of those 
matters of “substantial variation” on which NHS bodies must consult with the 
Council in relation to its health scrutiny function.  
 
The Health Select Commission will lead on the overview and scrutiny of any regional 
and specialist health service health matters affecting residents of two or more local 
authorities within Yorkshire and the Humber, and will conduct such overview and 
scrutiny reviews in accordance with the Protocol for the Yorkshire and the Humber 
Council’s Joint Health Scrutiny Select Commission.  
 
IMPROVING LIVES  

The Improving Lives Select Commission is tasked with carrying out in-depth 
overview and scrutiny reviews as directed by the OSMB including  

 

• scrutinising the Every Child Matters agenda (note Health Select 
Commission responsibilities);  

 

• scrutinising the “Think Family” and early intervention/ prevention 
agendas; 

 

• scrutinising other cross-cutting services provided specifically for 
children and young people;  

 

• scrutinising employment and skills development; and  
 

• scrutinising non-health related adult social care.  
 
 
IMPROVING PLACES  

The Improving Places Select Commission is tasked with carrying out in-depth 
overview and scrutiny reviews as directed by the OSMB, including  

 

• scrutinising community cohesion and social inclusion and the Council’s 
specific initiatives to promote them;  

 

• scrutinising tourism, culture and leisure services and strategies; 
 

• scrutinising borough wide housing and neighbourhood strategies; 
 

• scrutinising economic development and regeneration strategies; and 
 

• scrutinising the environment and sustainable development.  

Page 104


	Agenda
	7 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	8 Health and Wellbeing Board
	12 Quality Accounts for Rotherham Foundation Trust
	14 Scrutiny Work Programme 2013/14
	Scrutiny Work Programme Appendix A
	Scrutiny Work Programme Appendix B


